
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

City Hall—Council Chambers, 3989 Central Ave NE  

Tuesday, May 07, 2024  

6:00 PM  

 AGENDA 
 

ATTENDANCE INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
Members of the public who wish to attend may do so in-person, by calling 1-312-626-
6799 and entering meeting ID 252 586 988 371 and passcode ugquG3 on Microsoft Teams. For 
questions please call the Community Development Department at 763-706-3670. 

Auxiliary aids or other accommodations for individuals with disabilities are available upon request when 
the request is made at least 72 hours in advance. Please contact Administration at 763-706-3610 to 
make arrangements. 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

APPROVE MINUTES 

1. Approval of April 2, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Interim Use Permit for a Seasonal Fireworks Sales Tent at 4001 Central Avenue 
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution 2024-PZ03, there being ample 
copies available to the public.  
MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 2024-PZ03, being a resolution approving an 
Interim Use Permit for a fireworks sales tent at 4001 Central Avenue NE, from June 17, 
2024 until July 10, 2024 within the City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, subject to certain 
conditions stated in the resolution.  

3. Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.106 General Development Standards (M) 
Landscaping and Screening to include Tree Preservation and Planting Standards 
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Ordinance amendment No. 1696, there being 
ample copies available to the public.  
MOTION: Move to recommend that the Planning Commission give a positive 
recommendation on draft Ordinance amendment No. 1696 to City Council to approve draft 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1696 as presented.  

4. Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.107 Specific Development Standards (16) Day 
Care Centers 
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Ordinance amendment No. 1697, there being 
ample copies available to the public.  
MOTION: Move to recommend that the Planning Commission give a positive 

1



City of Columbia Heights AGENDA May 07, 2024 
Planning Commission  Page 2 

 

recommendation on draft Ordinance amendment No. 1697 to City Council to approve draft 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1697 as presented.  

5. Minor Subdivision for 5085 Central Avenue NE 
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution No. 2024-036, a Minor Subdivision 
for 5085 Central Avenue NE, there being ample copies available to the public.  
MOTION: Move to recommend the Planning Commission give a positive recommendation 
to draft Resolution No. 2024-036, a Minor Subdivision for 5085 Central Avenue NE, and 
recommend City Council approve draft Resolution No. 2024-036 as presented and subject 
to the conditions of approval listed in the draft resolution. 

6. Site Plan Review for 5085 Central Avenue NE 
MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution No. 2024-037, a Site Plan Review 
for 5075 Central Avenue NE, there being ample copies available to the public.  
MOTION: Move to recommend the Planning Commission approve draft Resolution No. 
2024-037, a Site Plan Review for 5075 Central Avenue NE, as presented and subject to the 
conditions of approval listed in the draft resolution. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Auxiliary aids or other accommodations for individuals with disabilities are available upon request when the request is 
made at least 72 hours in advance. Please contact Administration at 763-706-3610 to make arrangements. 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, APRIL 02, 2024  

6:00 PM 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Vice Chair Sahnow.  
 
Boucher noted that there were two new Commissioners and asked that they would introduce 
themselves.  
 
Paul Moses introduced himself and noted that he has lived in the City for over 11 years and works at 
Cummins Power Generation.  
 
Ahmed Maamiri introduced himself and explained that he moved to the City last year and was 
previously living in Fridley. He explained that he is a business owner and would like to bring his 
perspective to the Commission.   
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners present:  Eric Sahnow, Tom Kaiser, Laurel Deneen, Paul Moses, Ahmed Mamiri, and 
John Gianoulis 
 
Commissioners absent: Clara Wolfe 
 
Also present: Aaron Chirpich, Community Development Director; Andrew Boucher, City Planner; Sarah 
LaVoi, Administrative Assistant; Mitch Forney, Community Development Coordinator; Connie 
Buesgens, Council Liaison  
 
Chirpich explained that since President Wolfe was absent, and Vargas was no longer on the Planning 
Commission, there would need to be a vote for a new Vice Chair. He reordered the agenda to first 
consider item 3.  
 
3. Vote for New Chair and Vice Chair (Terms from April 2024 - March 2025). 
 
Kaiser nominated Sahnow. Deneen seconded the nomination.  
 
Motion by Kaiser, seconded by Deneen, to nominate Eric Sahnow as Vice Chair of the Planning 
Commission. All ayes. MOTION PASSED.  
 
1. Oath of Office/Introductions (Three Commissioners; April 2024 - March 2027). 

 
Sahnow noted that the new Commissioners had already signed the Oath of Office.  
 

2. Overview of Boards and Commissions/Orientation. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
4. Approval of February 6, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  

3

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 2 

 
 

 
Motion by Kaiser, seconded by Gianoulis, to approve the minutes from the meeting of February 6, 
2024.  All ayes.  MOTION PASSED. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
5. Minor Subdivision (Lot Line Adjustment) 334 and 344 40th Avenue NE 
 

Introduction: Boucher explained that Michael Gondek, owner of Gondek Properties LLC, has 
requested approval of a Minor Subdivision, per City Code Section 9.104 (k), for abutting parcels of 
land located at 334 and 344 40th Avenue NE. The subject sites are both zoned GB-General 
Business. 334 40th is occupied by a small two-tenant commercial building, and 344 40th, is 
occupied by a single-family home. The properties are located near commercial uses to the west, 
northwest, and southwest. To the north and east of the subject sites there are single-family homes. 
The applicant is the owner of both properties, and they are requesting the lot line adjustment 
because some of the parking area for the commercial property at 334 40th is located on the single-
family lot at 344 40th. This condition was created when the owner purchased the adjacent single-
family home to provide more off-street parking for the commercial property. The proposed lot line 
adjustment will allow the commercial parking area to be fully located on the commercial parcel at 
334 40th. To be noted, the applicant is also proposing to establish a 35’ X 16’ driveway easement, 
and 20’ X 20’ parking easement on the commercial property (post lot line adjustment) that will be 
in favor of the single-family parcel. These easements will allow future users/owners of the single-
family residential property access and parking on the commercial property. The single-family 
residential property also has parking to the rear of the site that is accessible from the alley to the 
south. Should the easement be vacated in the future, the single-family property will still have 
adequate parking on-site. 
 
Boucher reviewed the issues and analysis:  
 
Lot Requirements. In consideration of the minor subdivision application, a determination should be 
made that the newly created lots meet the minimum lot area and width requirements of the 
applicable GB-General 38 Business zoning district. According to Section 9.110.C of the Zoning 
Ordinance, lots within GB Districts must have a minimum lot area of 6,000 square feet and a 
minimum width of 40 feet.  
 
Presently, the west parcel (334 40th Avenue) measures approximately 12,910 square feet in size 
and has a width of 105 feet. As a result of the proposed lot line adjustment, the parcel would be 
increased to 15,230 square feet in size and increased in width to 132 feet on the north end of the 
parcel (along 40th Avenue).  
 
Presently, the east parcel (344 40th Avenue), measures 8,610 square feet in size and has a width of 
70 feet. As a result of the proposed lot line adjustment, the parcel would be decreased to 6,290 
square feet in size and decreased in width to 43 feet on the north end of the parcel (along 40th 
Avenue). Both proposed lots meet the minimum area and lot width requirements of the GB District.  
 

4

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 3 

 
 

Setbacks. The proposed lot line adjustment will result in a change to side yard structure setbacks. 
According to Section 9.110.C of the Zoning Ordinance, lots within the GB District do not have side 
yard setback requirements, as structures can be placed right up to the side yard property line. As a 
result of the proposed lot line adjustment, part of the side yard structure setback for the 
commercial building on the west parcel will be increased from 1.3 feet to 28.3 feet while the side 
yard setback for the single-family home on the east parcel will be reduced from 35 feet to 8 feet. 
After the adjustment, both proposed lots will meet the minimum structure setback requirements 
of the GB District. The minimum side-yard parking setback in the GB District is 5 feet. The proposed 
lot line adjustment will bring the existing commercial parking area fully onto the commercial lot. 
The side yard setback for the parking area after the adjustment will result in a compliant 5-foot 
setback.  
 
Easements. The submitted survey does not illustrate any drainage and utility easements upon the 
subject properties. Thus, it is not necessary to vacate an easement along the shared side lot line. As 
previously mentioned, the applicant is also proposing to establish a 35’ X 16’ driveway easement, 
and 20’ X 20’ parking easement on the commercial property (post lot line adjustment) that will be 
in favor of the single-family parcel.  
 
Recording. As a condition of minor subdivision approval, the applicant will be responsible for the 
filing the approved subdivision with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office. If the minor subdivision is 
not filed with the Anoka County recorder’s Office within one year of the date of City Council 
approval, it will become invalid. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT  
Section 9.104 (K) of the Zoning Code outlines specific conditions in order for the City Council to 
approve a minor subdivision. They are as follows:  
1. The proposed subdivision of land will not result in more than three lots. The proposed 

subdivision will result in two conforming lots.  
2. The proposed subdivision of land does not involve the vacation of existing easements. No 

vacation of existing easements will occur as a result of the minor subdivision.  
3. All lots to be created by the proposed subdivision conform to lot area and width requirements 

established for the zoning district in which the property is located. Both newly created lots will 
conform to the lot width and lot area requirements of the applicable GB-General Business 
zoning designation.  

4. The proposed subdivision does not require the dedication of public rights-of-way for the 
purpose of gaining access to the property. The proposed subdivision does not require the 
dedication of public rights-of-way for the purpose of gaining access to the property.  

5. The property has not previously been divided through the minor subdivision provisions of this 
article. The subject property has not previously been subdivided via a minor subdivision 
process.  

6. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the conveyance of land. The proposed subdivision 
will not hinder the conveyance of land.  

7. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the making of assessments or the keeping of 
records related to assessments. The proposed subdivision is not expected to hinder the making 
of assessments or the keeping of records related to assessments. 

5

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 4 

 
 

8. The proposed subdivision meets all the design standards specified in Section 9.115. As a 
condition of minor subdivision approval, all applicable design standards of Section 9.115 of the 
Zoning ordinance must be satisfied. 

 
Recommendation:  Staff review finds that the proposed Minor Subdivision (lot line adjustment) 
application meets the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. As a result, Staff recommends that 
the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed Minor Subdivision for the 
properties located at 334 and 344 40th Avenue NE, subject to certain conditions. 

 
Questions/Comments from Members: 
 
Kaiser asked if the applicant intends to expand the parking lot of the commercial property and if 
that was part of the scope of work. 
 
Boucher replied that it is not the applicant’s intent and instead is trying to organize everything so 
that there would not be any nonconformities in case he would like to sell the commercial or the 
residential property in the future. There are no longer term plans for this.  
 
Deneen asked if it was a rental property or if the owner lived in the home. Boucher replied that he 
believed that the owner lived in the home currently.  
 
Sahnow noted that the nonconforming property in this case is the commercial property. Boucher 
explained that technically both properties were nonconforming.  
 
Sahnow asked if the pavement from the parking lot was taken off of the residential property, would 
the commercial property would still have enough parking to meet the Ordinance for that 
commercial property. Boucher replied that he did not look into that and would have to come back 
with the answer.  
 
Chirpich explained the history of the property and noted that it is incomplete but at some point the 
commercial property owner acquired the single property because he was getting parking. He added 
parking to the single family property without going through the motions of the lot line adjustment. 
A building permit is not needed for a driveway. Thankfully, the owner has the authority to make it 
right.  
 
Sahnow noted while the revised lot line meets the zoning requirements for minimum lot sizes, it 
seems to reduce the viability of the property if the owner would like to sell it. If the asphalt was 
removed and the current lot line was kept from the residential property, it would maintain a wide 
property line. Boucher agreed and also noted that if the parking lot was not removed it would still 
be nonconforming and would have a barrier.  
 
Kaiser asked if Chirpich replied that it is a functionally obsolete property and does not have a 
permit use itself and is legally nonconforming. The property was conforming at the time it was 
built. Boucher added that since it is legally nonconforming, the property owner would not be able 
to expand upon the use due to the zoning use not allowing it.  

6

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 5 

 
 

 
Moses asked if the recommendation was to move the lot line due to not enough parking spaces. 
Boucher replied it was due to parking setbacks. Moses asked if the proposal was to move the lot 
line to the residential property so that there would be enough of a setback. Boucher agreed.  

 
Deneen asked if the bituminous on the back of parcel A was a driveway going into a garage. 
Boucher replied that it was asphalt and a driveway.  

 
Public Hearing Opened. 

 
There were no public comments.  
 
Public Hearing Closed. 
 
Motion by Gianoulis, seconded by Moses, to waive the reading of the draft Resolution 2024-19, 
there being ample copies available to the public.  All ayes.  MOTION PASSED. 

Motion by Deneen, seconded by Sahnow, that the Planning Commission recommends to the City 
Council to approve Resolution 2024-19, approving a Minor Subdivision (lot line adjustment) for the 
properties located at 334 and 344 40th Avenue NE, within the City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, 
subject to certain conditions stated in the resolution. All ayes.  MOTION PASSED. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. Review Purchase of 4416 Central Avenue NE 
 

Introduction:  Boucher stated pursuant to State Statue, Section 462.356, Subdivision 2, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (the “Planning Commission”) in and for the City is required to 
review and ultimately determine that the proposed acquisition of real property by the City’s 
Economic Development Authority (EDA), conforms to the Comprehensive Plan of the City. 
Therefore, the EDA has requested that the Planning Commission review the acquisition of 4416 
Central Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421 (the “Subject Property”) to determine if its 
acquisition conforms to the Comprehensive Plan of the City. 
 
Boucher noted The EDA has a long-standing practice of acquiring blighted single-family homes to 
facilitate scattered site redevelopment, and the proposed acquisition of the Subject Property 
responds to several goals and policies adopted in the Comprehensive Plan. Specifically, in Chapter 
3: Land Use. Below are the specific goals and policies from the Comprehensive Plan that directly 
and indirectly correlate to the conformity of the proposed acquisition. 
 
LAND USE AND REDEVELOPMENT 
Goal: Provide mechanisms for successful redevelopment of vacant lands and targeted areas within 
the community.  
1. Enhance the image and viability of the Central Avenue corridor while protecting and enhancing 

adjacent residential areas.  
7

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 6 

 
 

2. Encourage infill development that demonstrates compatibility with existing neighborhood 
characteristics in terms of quality, design, building height, placement, scale, and architectural 
quality. 

 
Questions/Comments from Members: 
 
Deneen asked what about the property would be considered blighted and how did it come to the 
attention of the City. Chirpich replied that it is not a blighted property or poor condition but is 
certainly functionally absent. He added that the City has a specific redevelopment program that 
targets properties such as the one being discussed. The property came to the attention of the City 
through the owner’s family since the occupant had passed away and the property got transferred 
to the siblings. The new owners were aware of the City’s imitative and contacted the City to make 
Staff aware of the property. He noted that the EDA has discussed that the depths of the lots are 
challenging on the corridor and it is a long term strategy of acquiring the properties to create 
deeper commercial lots. He added that it is likely that when the Comprehensive Plan is reviewed, 
Staff will identify blocks or areas that could be envisioned for larger redevelopment efforts.  
 
Buesgens explained that two Council’s ago, they voted to start to try to acquire the small houses on 
Central Avenue for redevelopment. There were 22 houses at the time and 3-5 homes have been 
acquired by the City since then.  
 
Ahmed asked if the house was ever put up for public sale. Chirpich replied that it was not.  
 
Deneen asked what the plan was for the lot and if they were going to decommission or demo the 
house. Chirpich replied that it will be a vacant lot and it is still being determined on how it will get 
to that point. Currently, the Fire Department is working on their training exercises. The EDA has 
engaged with Deconstruction Services Company and will continue to work with them to determine 
how much value can be extracted from some of the building materials.  
 
Buesgens noted that one of the advantages on purchasing the house is that it gives the City 
leverage so that it gives the City some control if a developer comes in. Kaiser expressed his 
gratitude for being so proactive.  
 
Deneen stated that she likes that the City is bringing in decommission agents because sustainability 
is important. Gianoulis agreed.  
 
Moses asked if Staff had received any feedback from surrounding neighbors on what they thought 
about the lot. Chirpich replied that Staff have engaged with the nearby multifamily property to let 
them know that it was coming. He added that the process with the current home owner has been 
well received.  
 
Motion by Kaiser, seconded by Gianoulis, to waive the reading of Resolution 2024-PZ02,, there 
being ample copies available to the public.  All ayes.  MOTION PASSED. 

Motion by Moses, seconded by Deneen, to adopt Resolution 2024-PZ02, a resolution finding that 
8

Item 1.



City of Columbia Heights MINUTES April 02, 2024 
Planning Commission Meeting  Page 7 

 
 

the acquisition of certain land for redevelopment purposes by the Columbia Heights Economic 
Development Authority is consistent with the City of Columbia Heights’ Comprehensive Plan. All 
ayes.  MOTION PASSED. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Gianoulis, seconded by Moses to adjourn the meeting at 6:45 pm. All ayes.  MOTION 
PASSED. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Sarah LaVoie, Administrative Assistant  
 

9

Item 1.



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA SECTION PUBLIC HEARINGS 

MEETING DATE MAY 7, 2024 

 

ITEM: Interim Use Permit for a Seasonal Fireworks Sales Tent at 4001 Central Avenue 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner – 
04/16/24 

CASE NUMBER: 2024-PZ03 

DATE: May 7, 2024 

TO: Columbia Heights Planning and Zoning Commission 

APPLICANT: Renaissance Fireworks 

LOCATION: 4001 Central Avenue NE (PID 36-30-24-32-0248) 

REQUEST: Interim Use Permit 

PREPARED BY: Andrew Boucher, City Planner 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Renaissance Fireworks, Inc. has applied for an interim use permit to allow the operation of a seasonal fireworks 
sales tent at 4001 Central Avenue NE. 
 
This application is identical to an interim use permit request approved by the City in May of last year which 
made a temporary allowance for the sale of fireworks upon the subject site.  The temporary allowance of the 
activity was however, granted for and applied to the 2023 calendar year.   Thus, the processing of a new interim 
use permit (for 2024) is necessary. 
 
The specific development standards for outdoor fireworks sales/display are provided in Section 9.107 (C) (22) 
of the City Code and are included as recommended conditions of approval for this permit. 
 
The configuration and orientation of the fireworks tent upon the subject site is illustrated on the attached 
property and tent location map. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates the property for commercial use. The proposal for seasonal 
fireworks sales, a retail activity, is consistent with the intent of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE 
The subject property is zoned CBD, Central Business within which “seasonal fireworks sales” are listed as an 
interim use and therefore subject to interim use permit processing.  
 
Properties located north and west of the site are likewise zoned Central Business.  Properties located to the east 
are zoned R-4, Multiple Family Residential while the site to the south of the subject property is zoned as a 
Planned Unit Development, which includes a mixture of multi-family residential, commercial, and institutional 
uses.  in the Central Business Zoning District. 10

Item 2.



 Page 2 
 

 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
Section 9.104 (I) of the Zoning Ordinance outlines seven findings of fact that must be met in order for the City 
to grant an interim use permit.  The findings are as follows: 
 
(a) The use is one of the interim uses listed for the zoning district in which the property is located, or is a 

substantially similar use, as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 
 
Fireworks tents are specifically listed as an interim use in the Central Business District, and are considered a 
retail sales activity, which is permitted. 

 
(b) The use is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
The Comprehensive Plan designates the property for commercial use, including retail sales.  The proposal is 
consistent with the intent of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 
(c) The use will not impose hazards or disturbing influences on neighboring properties. 

 
The proposed temporary use should not impose hazardous or disturbing influences on neighboring 
properties because of its proximity to Central Avenue.  The proposed use has been and will be screened 
from adjacent residential uses by the surrounding commercial buildings. 

 
(d) The use will not substantially diminish the use of property in the immediate vicinity. 

 
The fireworks tent is not expected to diminish the use of the adjacent properties. 

 
(e) The use will be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in a manner that is compatible with the 

appearance of the existing or intended character of the surrounding area. 
 
The Fire Department will conduct an on-site inspection prior to any temporary sales.  As a condition of 
interim use permit approval, all State and City requirements regarding fireworks sales must be met. 

 
(f) Adequate measures have been or will be taken to minimize traffic congestion on the public streets and to 

provide for appropriate on-site circulation of traffic. 
 
The traffic generated by the fireworks tent will not significantly increase the flow of traffic on the public 
streets.  Additionally, the site is large enough to handle additional on-site traffic. 

 
(g) The use will not cause a negative cumulative effect on other uses in the immediate vicinity.  

 
The fireworks tent should not have a negative impact on other uses in the immediate vicinity, which are all 
zoned commercial. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Interim Use Permit to allow the operation of a 

11

Item 2.



 Page 3 
 

 
seasonal fireworks sales tent at 4001 Central Avenue, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The fireworks sales tent, display area, access aisles, and surrounding area shall be reviewed by the Fire 
Department prior to operation.  The applicant must contact the Fire Department to set up an 
inspection prior to any sales occurring on the property. 

2. The sale of fireworks shall meet all requirements of Chapter 24 of the Fire Code and NFPA Chapter 
1124. 

3. The fireworks sales tent shall be accessory to a commercial use. 
4. Fireworks sales tents located within the public right-of-way are prohibited. 
5. All goods shall be displayed on a designated impervious surface area. 
6. All goods shall be displayed in an orderly fashion, with access aisles provided as needed. 
7. Music or amplified sounds shall not be audible from adjacent residential properties. 
8. The fireworks sales tent shall not reduce the amount of off-street parking provided on-site below the 

level required for the principal use. 
9. An appropriate transition area between the use and adjacent property shall be provided by 

landscaping, screening, or other site improvements consistent with the character of the neighborhood. 
10. Signage shall be limited to two (2) professionally made signs, with a combined square footage not 

exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet.  Signs related to the proposed retail activity shall be subject to 
sign permit processing. 

11. Fireworks sales tents may be allowed for a maximum of ninety (90) days per calendar year. 
12. Any electrical use associated with the temporary sales will require an electrical permit and is required 

to be inspected by the State Electrical Inspector. 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): 

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution 2024-PZ03, there being ample copies available to 
the public.  
 
MOTION: Move to adopt Resolution No. 2024-PZ03, being a resolution approving an Interim Use Permit for 
a fireworks sales tent at 4001 Central Avenue NE, from June 17, 2024 until July 10, 2024 within the City of 
Columbia Heights, Minnesota, subject to certain conditions stated in the resolution.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Draft Resolution 2024-PZ03 
Application and Narrative 
Site Location Map 
Existing Conditions Survey 
Proposed Conditions Survey 

12

Item 2.



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024- PZ03 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS APPROVING AN 

INTERIM USE PERMIT TO ALLOW RENAISSANCE FIREWORKS TO OPERATE A TEMPORARY SALES TENT AT 
4001 CENTRAL AVENUE NE, COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, MN, 55421 (PIN 36-30-24-32-0248) 

 
WHEREAS, a proposal (Planning Case #2024-PZ03) has been submitted by Renaissance Fireworks to the 
Planning Commission requesting an Interim Use Permit from the City of Columbia Heights at the following site: 
 
LOCATION: 4001 Central Avenue NE (36-30-24-32-0248) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: On file at City Hall 
 
THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING: An Interim Use Permit to allow for the operation of a seasonal 
fireworks sales tent on the subject property. 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held a public hearing as required by the City of Columbia Height’s 
Zoning Code on May 7, 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the advice and recommendations of City staff regarding 
the effect of the proposed Interim Use upon the health, safety, and welfare of the community and its 
Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concerns related to compatibility of uses, traffic, property values, light, air, 
danger of fire, and risk to public safety in the surrounding areas; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Planning Commission of the City of Columbia Heights after reviewing 
the proposal, accepts and adopts the following findings: 

 
1. The use is one of the interim uses listed for the zoning district in which the property is located, or is a 

substantially similar use, as determined by the Zoning Administrator. 
2. The use is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Comprehensive Plan. 
3. The use will not impose hazards or disturbing influences on neighboring properties. 
4. The use will not substantially diminish the use of property in the immediate vicinity. 
5. The use will be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in a manner that is compatible with 

the appearance of the existing or intended character of the surrounding area. 
6. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to minimize traffic congestion on the public streets and 

to provide for appropriate on-site circulation of traffic. 
7. The use will not cause a negative cumulative effect, when considered in conjunction with the 

cumulative effect of other uses in the immediate vicinity. 
 
FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the attached conditions, maps, and other information shall become part of this 
permit and approval; and in granting this permit the City and the applicant agree that this permit shall become 
null and void if the project has not been completed within one (1) calendar year after the approval date, subject 
to petition for renewal of the permit. Further, the permit is subject to certain conditions of approval that have 
been found to be necessary to protect the public interest and ensure compliance with the provisions of the 
Zoning and Land Development Ordinance, including: 
 
 
 

13

Item 2.



City of Columbia Heights – Planning Commission Resolution  Page 2 
 
 

CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The fireworks sales tent, display area, access aisles, and surrounding area shall be reviewed by the Fire 
Department prior to operation. The applicant must contact the Fire Department to set up an inspection 
prior to any sales occurring on the property.  
 

2. The sale of fireworks shall meet all requirements of Chapter 24 of the Fire Code and NFPA Chapter 
1124. 
 

3. The fireworks sales tent shall be accessory to a commercial use. 
 

4. Fireworks sales tents located within the public right-of-way are prohibited. 
 

5. All goods shall be displayed on a designated impervious surface area. 
 

6. All goods shall be displayed in an orderly fashion, with access aisles provided as needed. 
 

7. Music or amplified sounds shall not be audible from adjacent residential properties. 
 

8. The fireworks sales tent shall not reduce the amount of off-street parking provided on-site below the 
level required for the principal use. 
 

9. An appropriate transition area between the use and adjacent property shall be provided by 
landscaping, screening, or other site improvements consistent with the character of the neighborhood. 
 

10. Signage shall be limited to two (2) professionally made signs, with a combined square footage not 
exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet.  Signs related to the proposed retail activity shall be subject to 
sign permit processing. 
 

11. Fireworks sales tents may be allowed for a maximum of ninety (90) days per calendar year. 
 

12. Any electrical use associated with the temporary sales will require an electrical permit and is required 
to be inspected by the State Electrical Inspector. 

 

 
Passed this 7th day of May 2024. 
 
Offered by:  
Seconded by:  
Roll Call:   
 
               
                                            Chair 
        
Sarah LaVoie, Administrative Assistant II 

 
14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



 
CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the City of Columbia Heights will conduct a public 
hearing in the City Council Chambers of City Hall at 3989 Central Avenue NE on Tuesday, May 7, 2024, at 
6:00 p.m.  The order of business is as follows:  

 
A request for an Interim Use Permit to allow for Renaissance Fireworks to operate a temporary 
sales tent at 4001 Central Avenue NE, per Code Section 9.110 (F)(4)(a).  Section 9.104 (I) of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing to approve the 
Interim Use Permit. 

 
Notice is hereby given that all persons having an interest will be given an opportunity to be heard.  For 

questions, contact Andrew Boucher, City Planner, at (763) 706-3673. 

26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA SECTION PUBLIC HEARINGS 

MEETING DATE MAY 7, 2024 

 

ITEM: Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.106 General Development Standards (M) 
Landscaping and Screening to include Tree Preservation and Planting Standards 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
                   April 18, 2024 

 
CASE NUMBER: 2024-PZ04 

APPLICANT:   The City of Columbia Heights 

LOCATION:  Citywide  

REQUEST:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

PREPARED BY:  Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
At the April Work Session, City Council discussed a potential amendment to City Code 9.106 General 
Development Standards in relation to amending Landscape and Screening Requirements to include Tree 
Preservation and Planting Standards and directed the City Planner and Urban Forester to prepare a zoning text 
amendment for the May 7, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. Tree preservation ordinances were examined 
by peer-reviewing other cities such as Fridley, New Hope, Shakopee, St. Anthony’s Village, Maple Grove, and 
Minneapolis for key components. Fridley, St. Anthony’s Village, and Minneapolis do not have tree preservation 
ordinances. Additionally, staff have consulted with the League of Minnesota Cities and the City Forester for 
their guidance on what a model ordinance should include. 
 
SUMMARY OF CURRENT STATUS: 
At the time, staff felt it was necessary to amend the existing ordinances to establish a process to include the 
City Forester in development review and adopt standards aligned with industry and agency best practices as 
well as reflecting the securities and letter of credit language that is seen across municipalities. The ordinance 
currently does not reflect the most up-to-date information, standards, or processes that ensure successfully 
mature tree canopies or preservation of the existing canopy.  
 

The 6th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in F.P. Development, LLC vs. Charter Township of Canton, Michigan found 
that, Canton’s ordinance classification of certain trees as “significant trees”, created permitting requirements, 
restricted tree removal, and required mitigation for removal. A property owner that removed trees was 
required to either pay into a town fund or replant trees; the town enforced action against a developer that 
removed 159 trees and argued that, under the ordinance, the developer had to replant trees or pay the town 
approximately $50,000. The 6th Circuit found that the ordinance violated the Fifth Amendment’s 
“unconstitutional conditions” doctrine, if a permit is conditioned on the waiver of constitutional rights, then 
the local government permitting may be found unconstitutional.  
 
Local governments may choose whether and how a permit applicant mitigates developmental impacts, but 
they must establish an “essential nexus and rough proportionality to those impacts” and “make some sort of 

31

Item 3.



 Page 2 
 

 
individualized determination that the required mitigation is related both in nature and extent to the impact of 
the proposed development.” 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
By using the most recent versions of the ANSI A300 and ISA Best Management Practices for tree management 
during construction as well as the MN DNR “Pocket Guide to Planting Trees”, the amendment to City Code 
(9.106 General Development Standards) to include tree preservation language and planting standards in the 
Landscaping and Screening section reflects industry and agency standards and best practices. In this regard, 
the following Zoning Ordinance modifications are recommended by Staff with the full draft ordinance 
attached: 
 
1) Amending 9.106 M to read as “Tree Preservation and Planting Standards for Landscaping and Screening” 

and including language recognizing the value and benefits to preserving and increasing tree canopy cover 
of Columbia Heights by protecting and preserving mature trees during construction and development. 
 

2) Adopting ANSI A300 Part 5 – Management of Tres and Shrubs During Site Planning, Site Development, and 
Construction & ISA Best Management Practices – Managing Trees During Construction and apply these 
industry and agency standards, definitions, and best practices to all demolition, building permit 
applications, land alteration permits, public or private, that require a survey. A construction tree inventory 
plan and tree protection plan shall be reviewed, approved, and inspected by the City Forester and 
replacement policy calculations shall be subject to a size-based replacement policy. 
 

3) Defining criteria for the removal of protected and removable trees; protected trees may be removed 
within the footprint of the building pad of a new or remodeled building, or within a 10’ radius of the 
footprint as well as within driveways and parking areas meeting all other City ordinances as well as 
establishing replacement requirements, exemptions, and the process for removing protected trees that 
are dead, diseased, or hazardous. 
 

4) Establishing protected tree varieties, soil volume requirements, definitions and rules for calculating soil 
volume in Table 1, Table 2, and Appendix B, respectively.  
 

5) Updating the letter of credit or other security language to reflect the estimated cost of landscaping and/or 
screening and including language stating that the property owner is responsible for continued 
maintenance of landscaping and screening materials to remain in compliance with the requirements of this 
section, plant material that shows signs of disease shall be  
 

Staff Review 
 
The Public Works Department, Police Department, and Fire Department have been provided copies of the 
application materials and had no concerns amending the Landscaping and Screening requirements to include 
Tree Preservation and Planting Standards. The proposed zoning text amendment is subject to review by the City 
Attorney for the purposes of determining if the proposed ordinance establishes an essential nexus and rough 
proportionality between the impact of the development and the standard required by code; the ordinance must 
also document an individualized determination process after the standards are applied. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT 
 32

Item 3.



 Page 3 
 

 
Section 9.104 (F) of the Zoning Ordinance outlines certain findings of fact that must be met in order for the 
City to grant approval for a zoning amendment.  The findings are as follows: 
 

(a) The amendment is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
 

The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan identifies community resilience, climate adaptation, public health, 
equity, and sustainability as Emerging Topics. One of the key land use goals identified in the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan includes enhancing community gateways, prioritizing landscaping and other forms 
of buffering between uses, and continuing the City’s participation in Tree City USA. 
 

(b) The amendment is in the public interest and is not solely for the benefit of a single property owner. 
 

A healthy, resilient and robust urban forest, tree canopy, and landscaping enhances the aesthetic, 
environmental, and economic well-being of the City by establishing buffers between non-compatible 
land uses, screen unsightly views, reduce noise and glare, minimize stormwater runoff as well as offer 
carbon sequestration, erosion mitigation, and reduction of the urban heat island effect.  
 

(c) Where the amendment is to change the zoning classification of a particular property, the existing use 
of the property and the zoning classification of property within the general area of the property in 
question are compatible with the proposed zoning classification. 
 
The amendment is not to change the zoning classification of a particular property and the existing use 
is compatible with the general area of the property.  

 
(d) Where the amendment is to change the zoning classification of a particular property, there has been 

a change in the character or trend of development in the general area of the property in question, 
which has taken place since such property was placed in its current zoning classification. 
The amendment is not to change the zoning classification of a particular property.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend the following to the City Council: 
 

A. Approval of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment which amends City Code 9.106 General Development 
Standards and establishes Tree Preservation and Planting Standards for Landscaping and Screening as 
presented. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): 

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Ordinance amendment No. 1696, there being ample copies 
available to the public.  
 
MOTION: Move to recommend that the Planning Commission give a positive recommendation on draft 
Ordinance amendment No. 1696 to City Council to approve draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1696 
as presented.  

33

Item 3.



 Page 4 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Work Session Memo from April 1, 2024 
Draft Ordinance No. 1696 
Application 
Existing Code 
Proposed Code 
LMC Recommendations  
Maple Grove Code 
New Hope Code  
Shakopee Code 
Public Hearing Notice 
 

34

Item 3.



 

 
  

ITEM: Update to 9.106 General Development Standards to Include Tree Preservation  

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner  
                  April 1, 2024 

CORE CITY STRATEGIES: (please indicate areas that apply by adding an “X” in front of the selected text below) 

X Healthy and Safe Community 

_Equitable, Diverse, Inclusive, and Friendly 

_Trusted and Engaged Leadership 

_Thriving and Vibrant Destination Community  

_Strong Infrastructure and Public Services 

X Sustainable 

 

BACKGROUND: 
Tree preservation, landscaping, and the urban canopy have been identified by the City of Columbia Heights 
through 2040 Comprehensive Plan goals per Land Use and Redevelopment Goals and Policies to provide a 
natural buffer between uses and promote community health. However, the current Zoning Code does not 
specifically address tree preservation or planting standards and should include measures to ensure the long-
term health and safety are maintained during the development process and so trees can mature in a way that 
they are productive and beneficial to the urban canopy. 
 
The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan identifies community resilience, climate adaptation, public health, equity, 
and sustainability as Emerging Topics. One of the key land use goals identified in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
includes enhancing community gateways, prioritizing landscaping and other forms of buffering between uses, 
and continuing the City’s participation in Tree City USA. By using the most recent versions of the ANSI A300 
and ISA Best Management Practices for tree management during construction as well as the MN DNR “Pocket 
Guide to Planting Trees”, the amendment to City Code (9.106 General Development Standards) to include  
tree preservation language and planting standards in the Landscaping and Screening section would reflect 
industry and agency standards and best practices. 
 
Columbia Heights can maintain and enhance the urban canopy by: 

• Applying preservation, protection, and replacement standards of Protected Trees to all permits that 
require a survey and including the City Forester in the review process to approve tree inventory and 
protection plans as well as conducting inspections. 

• Establishing standards for the removal of protected and removable trees as well as newly planted and 
replacement trees to ensure diversity and resiliency of the canopy, soil volume requirements and 
formulas for calculating soil volume, and defining protected tree varieties. 

• Defining replacement requirements based on size and plantings in accordance with the standards set 
forth in the MN Department of Natural Resources publication “Pocket Guide to Planting Trees” 

• Adjusting the letter of credit or other security, as acceptable to the city, from 10% of the tree, 
landscaping, and screening estimated cost to an amount equal to the estimated cost. The letter of 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING 

AGENDA SECTION WORK SESSION ITEM 

MEETING DATE APRIL 1, 2024 

35

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Council Letter  Page 2 
 

 
credit or other security as acceptable to the city, or portions, thereof, shall be forfeited to maintain 
and/or replace materials for a period of time to include at least two growing seasons. A portion of the 
letter of credit or other security as acceptable to the City may be released after one growing season; 
after two growing seasons, the security can be released minus costs incurred through damage or 
replacement. 

 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT STATUS: 
At the time, staff felt it was necessary to amend the existing ordinances to establish a process to include the 
City Forester in development review and adopt standards aligned with industry and agency best practices as 
well as reflecting the securities and letter of credit language that is seen across municipalities. The ordinance 
currently does not reflect the most up-to-date information, standards, or processes that ensure successfully 
mature tree canopies or preservation of the existing canopy.  
 
The 6th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in F.P. Development, LLC vs. Charter Township of Canton, Michigan found 
that, Canton’s ordinance classification of certain trees as “significant trees”, created permitting requirements, 
restricted tree removal, and required mitigation for removal. A property owner that removed trees was 
required to either pay into a town fund or replant trees; the town enforced action against a developer that 
removed 159 trees and argued that, under the ordinance, the developer had to replant trees or pay the town 
approximately $50,000. The 6th Circuit found that the ordinance violated the Fifth Amendment’s 
“unconstitutional conditions” doctrine, if a permit is conditioned on the waiver of constitutional rights, then 
the local government permitting may be found unconstitutional.  
 
Local governments may choose whether and how a permit applicant mitigates developmental impacts, but 
they must establish an “essential nexus and rough proportionality to those impacts” and “make some sort of 
individualized determination that the required mitigation is related both in nature and extent to the impact of 
the proposed development.” 
 
Tree preservation ordinances were examined by peer-reviewing other cities such as Fridley, New Hope, 
Shakopee, St. Anthony’s Village, Maple Grove, and Minneapolis for key components. Fridley, St. Anthony’s 
Village, and Minneapolis do not have tree preservation ordinances. Additionally, staff has consulted with the 
League of Minnesota Cities and the City Forester for their guidance on what a model ordinance should include.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council direct staff on whether to pursue a tree preservation and planting 
standards ordinance and have the City Attorney review the proposed language for purposes of determining if 
the ordinance establishes an essential nexus and rough proportionality and documents an individualized 
determination process after applying the standards. 
  

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Existing Code 
Proposed Code 
Tree Preservation – League of Minnesota Cities 
New Hope Tree Preservation and Replacement Ordinance 
Shakopee Tree Preversation Ordinance 
Maple Grove Tree 

36

Item 3.



Ordinance No.1690 

DRAFT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1696
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9.106 OF THE CITY CODE OF 2005  
TO AMEND GENERAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND INCLUDE TREE PRESERVATION AND PLANTING 

STANDARDS FOR LANDSCAPING AND SCREENING 
 
 
The City of Columbia Heights does ordain: 
 
Section 1 
 
The definition of the term “Tree Preservation and Planting Standards for Landscaping and Screening,” as 
provided in Section 9.106 of the City Code of 2005, is hereby established to read as follows: 
 

(M)   Tree Preservation and Planting Standards for Landscaping and Screening. 
(1) Purpose. The City of Columbia Heights recognizes the great value trees, landscaping, and 

screening provide to all residents of the City. A healthy, resilient, and robust urban forest 
enhances the aesthetic, environmental, and economic well-being of the City. Tree 
preservation and planting standards, landscaping and screening requirements are 
established to buffer non-compatible land uses, screen unsightly views, reduce noise and 
glare, minimize storm water runoff, and generally enhance the quality and appearance of 
development within the community. 

a. Preserve and increase the tree canopy cover of Columbia Heights by protecting 
mature trees throughout the City. 

b. Protect and enhance property values by conserving trees. 
c. Improve quality of life for all stakeholders, including residents, visitors, and wildlife. 
d. Preserve and increase the environmental services provided by the urban forest 

including sequestration of CO2, erosion and stormwater mitigation, reduction of air 
pollutants, reduction of the urban heat island effect, and reduction of noise 
pollution.  

e. Protect and maintain healthy trees in the development and building permit process. 
Protect and maintain healthy trees by ensuring best tree protection practices during 
construction and development.  

(2) Preservation, protection, and replacement of Protected Trees: 
a. This ordinance applies to all demolition, building permit applications, and land alteration 

permits, public or private, that require a survey. 
b. Definitions: 

i. Protected Tree: Any tree variety on the List of Protected Tree Varieties as 
maintained and published by City staff with a diameter of 6” or greater as 
measured at 4.5’ above ground (DBH, Diameter at Breast Height). The List of 
Protected Tree Varieties may be amended from time to time. 

ii. Removable Tree: Any tree not defined as a Protected Tree. 
iii. City-Owned Tree: Any tree originating within the City right-of-way or 

originating from a City park or City-owned property. 
c. Demolition and building permit applications must include a construction tree inventory 

plan indicating the location, species, and diameter of the trunk at 4.5’ above the ground 

37

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 2 
 
 

(DBH) for all Protected Trees on the property and City-Owned Trees on or adjacent to 
the construction site. The plan must also indicate any Protected Trees that are proposed 
to be removed, as well as their replacement tree(s) location, species, and size. 
Applications must also include a tree protection plan describing in detail how Protected 
Trees and City-Owned Trees will be preserved and protected during construction. The 
tree protection plan shall follow the standards as presented in the most recent version 
of the following publications: 

i. ANSI A300 Part 5- Management of Trees and Shrubs During Site Planning, Site 
Development, and Construction  

ii. ISA Best Management Practices- Managing Trees During Construction 
d. The construction tree inventory plan and tree protection plan must be reviewed and 

approved by the City Forester. Approved tree protection measures shall be fully 
installed and inspected by City staff prior to commencement of any construction 
activities or vehicular traffic on site.  

e. During the demolition and building process, the permit holder shall not leave any 
Protected Tree or adjacent City-owned tree without sufficient guards and protections to 
prevent injury to the protected tree during construction. Tree protection shall follow the 
standards as presented in the publications listed above (3.b.). City Forestry Staff 
monitoring is required for all projects with affected Protected Trees and/or replacement 
trees. Replacement trees will be monitored for three (3) years to ensure proper 
establishment. 

f. Protected Tree varieties that are less than 6” in caliper must be moved to another 
location on the property if possible. Exceptions must be granted in writing by the City 
Forester. 

g. If a Protected Tree is removed, except as allowed for in paragraph 5 below, it is subject 
to a size-based replacement policy. 

i. Protected trees with DBH 6”-15” are subject to a 2:1, “two for one” 
replacement requirement. 

ii. Protected trees with DBH 15”-20” are subject to a 3:1, “three for one” 
replacement requirement. 

iii. Protected trees with DBH  20”-25” are subject to a 4:1, “four for one” 
replacement requirement. 

iv. Protected trees with DBH >25” are subject to a 5:1, “five for one” replacement 
requirement. 

v. Replacement trees must be varied by species and are subject to approval by 
the City Forester. 

vi. Replacement trees are subject to the size and diversity requirements as 
outlined below. 

vii. A payment of $400 for each tree may be made to the City in lieu of planting 
replacement trees where sufficient space does not exist on the property. 
Payments will support the planting of replacement trees by City staff on City 
property. 

viii. Replacement trees shall be planted according to the standards set forth in the 
MN Department of Natural Resources publication “A Pocket Guide to Planting 
Trees”. All replacement trees are subject to inspection by City staff for a period 

38

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 3 
 
 

of 2 years beginning the day of planting. Any trees determined to be unhealthy 
or poorly established during this period shall be subject to replacement.  

(3) Removal of Protected and Removable Trees: 
a. Protected Trees may be removed in the following areas: 

i. Within the footprint of the building pad of a new or remodeled building, or 
within a 10’ radius of the footprint. 

ii. Within driveways and parking areas meeting all other City ordinance 
requirements. 

b. Protected Trees removed in accordance with sections (i.) and (ii.) above are required 
to be replaced at a rate of 1:1, “one for one.” Replacement trees are subject to all 
requirements listed in paragraph (3.) above. 

c. Removable Trees may be removed for any development or building permit without 
replacement. 

d. If Protected Trees are dead, diseased, or hazardous their removal must be approved 
in writing by the City Forester before removal. Dead, diseased, or hazardous trees 
are not subject to replacement requirements. 

(4) Exemptions from Tree Preservation Ordinance: Tree removal on property with an existing 
building or structure that is not being modified is exempt from this ordinance. 

(5) Standards for Newly Planted Trees and Replacement Trees 
a.    Landscaping and screening. 

i. Landscape plan required. A landscape plan is required for all new 
commercial, industrial, institutional, and multi-family development. For 
development having an anticipated construction value in excess of $750,000, 
the landscape plan must be prepared by a landscape architect registered in 
the State of Minnesota. Said landscape plan shall include the location, size, 
quantity, and species of all existing and proposed plant materials. 

ii. Design considerations. The following design concepts and requirements 
should be considered when developing a landscape plan for submittal to the 
city: 

1. To the maximum extent possible, the landscape plan shall incorporate 
existing vegetative features on the site. 

2. The overall composition and location of landscaped areas should 
complement the scale of the development and its surroundings. 

3. The use of native species is preferred in all landscaping choices, and a 
minimum of 80% of all plants used shall be native to MN. 

4. The City of Columbia Heights is committed to enhancing the diversity 
and resiliency of its urban forest. A variety of trees and shrubs shall 
be used to provide visual interest year-round and meet diversity 
requirements. No more than 25% of the required number of trees or 
shrubs may be comprised of any one species or genus. No less than 
50% of the required number of trees shall be over-story deciduous 
trees and no less than 10% shall be coniferous. New trees and 
replacement trees shall be planted according to the standards set 
forth in the MN Department of Natural Resources publication “A 
Pocket Guide to Planting Trees”. All replacement trees are subject to 
inspection by City staff for a period of 3 years beginning the day of 

39

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 4 
 
 

planting. Any trees determined to be unhealthy or poorly established 
during this period shall be subject to replacement. 

5. Final slopes greater than 3:1 will not be permitted without special 
treatment such as terracing, retaining walls or special ground covers. 

6. All plant materials shall meet the minimum size standards listed in 
Table 1; all planting locations shall meet the soil volume requirements 
for the plant material listed in Table 2. Soil volume requirements 
must be met by contiguous, uncompacted soil suitable for the plant 
type. Soil depth beyond 3 feet shall not be counted towards soil 
volume requirements.  Landscaped areas should be of adequate size 
to allow proper plant growth, protect plantings from both pedestrian 
and vehicular traffic, and provide adequate area for plant 
maintenance. Definitions and rules for calculating soil volume 
provided in Appendix B. 
 

Table 1: Plant Size Requirements 

Table 2: Soil 
Volume 

Requirements          

Expected Tree Size at Maturity Minimum Soil Volume Requirement (ft3) 

Small trees: 10-25 ft crown spread, 8-12” 
mature DBH 

400 

Medium trees: 25-35 ft crown spread, 12-18” 
mature DBH 

800 

Large trees: 35+ ft crown spread, 18”+ mature 1200 

Plant Type Minimum Size at Planting 

Trees 

   Evergreen-over-story 6 feet in height 

   Evergreen—ornamental  6 feet in height 

   Deciduous–over-story 2.5 inches diameter, measured 2 feet from 
base 

   Deciduous–ornamental 2 inches diameter, measured 2 feet from 
base 

Shrubs 

   Evergreen 2 feet in height 

   Deciduous 2 feet in height 

   Screening shrubs–either 3 feet in height 

  
 
 

40

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 5 
 
 

DBH 

 
Appendix A: List of Protected Tree Varieties 

Common Name Botanical Name 

Birch Betula spp. 

Buckeye, Ohio Aesculus glabra 

Catalpa, Northern Catalpa speciosa 

Cedar, Eastern Red Juniperus virginiana 

Cedar, Northern White Thuja occidentalis 

Elm (except Siberian/Asian elms) Ulmus spp.  (Except U. pumila) 

Fir, White Abies concolor 

Hackberry Celtis occidentalis 

Hemlock, Eastern Tsuga canadensis 

Hickory Carya spp. 

Honey locust Gleditsia triacanthos 

Ironwood Ostrya virginiana 

Kentucky coffee Gymnocladus dioica 

Linden Tilia spp. 

Maple, Black  Acer nigrum 

Maple, Red Acer rubrum 

Maple, Sugar Acer saccharum 

Mountain ash Sorbus spp. 

Oak Quercus spp. 

Pine, Red Pinus resinosa 

Pine, White Pinus strobus 

Spruce, Norway Picea abies 

Spruce, White Picea glauca 

Walnut, Black Juglans nigra 

  

  

  

  

 
Appendix B: Definitions and Rules for Calculating Soil Volume 
 
The following definitions apply to soil media for newly planted trees in the City of Columbia Heights: 
 
Open soil. Exclusively refers to either uncompacted native soils (no greater than 80% Proctor), or 
amended soils meeting the Minnesota Department of Transportation standards for approved topsoil, 
that are not covered by hardscape or paved surfaces. 
 
Available open soil. The uncovered length by width of a planting bed, multiplied by depth of 
preparation up to 36 inches deep. Most unprepared urban subgrade is highly compacted and does not 
qualify as available. 

41

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 6 
 
 

 
Covered soil. Soil volume provided below hardscape or paved surfaces in the form of suspended soil 
cells or structural soil. Only 25% of the volume of structural soils may be counted towards soil volume 
requirements. 
 
Shared soil. Soil media shared by more than one tree in a planting bed sharing open soil, or an 
individual tree in a planting bed that is connected to other open soils via Soil Cells or Structural Soil. 
Areas of shared soil must have a continuous root path that does not restrict to less than 4 feet wide or 
2 feet deep. 
 
Isolated soil. Soil media in a tree well or small enclosed planting bed that is not connected to other 
prepared soil volumes and is totally isolated by hardscape such as driveways, sidewalks, or vaults. 
 
Connected soil. Two or more areas of open soil that are connected below hardscape with either soil 
cells or structural soil. These connected beds can now qualify as shared soil.  
 
The following standards and exceptions apply to calculating soil volumes: 
 
1) The total soil volume provided for a tree shall be calculated in cubic feet by adding the available 

open soil volume to the available covered soil volume within a 50-foot radius of the tree. 
 

2) When total soil volume consists of more than one planter bed or open soil area, those areas must 
be connected by continuous root paths at least 4 feet wide and 2 feet deep. 
 

3) Soil volumes for covered soil shall be calculated by using only the space available to roots and may 
not include the components providing structure. 90% of the volume of cell-type hardscape 
suspension systems may be counted towards total soil volume; 25% of the volume of structural 
soils may be counted towards total soil volume. A maximum depth of 36” may be used when 
calculating total soil volume; depths beyond 36” may not be counted towards soil volume 
requirements. 
 

(6) Landscaping requirements. Landscaping shall be provided in accordance with the following 
requirements: 

a. All required setbacks shall be landscaped with turf grass, native grasses, trees, 
shrubs, vines, perennial flowering plants, or other pervious ground cover.  

b. A minimum of one tree shall be planted for every 50 feet of street frontage or 
fraction thereof. The trees shall be planted within the front yard and may be 
arranged in a cluster or placed at regular intervals to best complement existing 
landscape design patterns in the area. 

c. A minimum of four trees shall be planted for every one acre of lot area covered by 
buildings, parking areas, loading areas, exterior storage areas and other impervious 
surfaces. 

d. Parking areas shall have a minimum of 100 square feet of landscape area and one 
over- story tree for each 20 spaces or, fraction thereof. The remainder of the 
landscape area shall be covered with turf grass, native grasses, trees, shrubs, vines, 
perennial flowering plants, or other pervious ground cover. 

42

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 7 
 
 

(7) Screening requirements. Screening shall be provided in accordance with the following 
requirements: 

a. All off-street parking areas containing six or more parking spaces and located 
adjacent to a residential or residentially zoned property, the parking area shall be 
screened along the boundary with the residential use. Where any commercial or 
industrial use is located adjacent to or across a public alley from a residential or a 
residentially zoned property, the commercial or industrial use shall be screened 
along the boundary with the residential use. 

b. Exterior storage of materials or equipment, except for allowed retail sales and 
temporary placement of equipment, shall be screened from all adjacent non-
industrial uses and from the public right-of-way. 

c. Required screening shall consist of a fence, wall, earthen berming and/or vegetation 
no less than six feet in height and no less than 80% opaque on a year round basis. 
Said screening shall be located as close to the property line as practicable and no 
closer than 15 feet from the edge of a public right-of-way. 

(8) Installation and maintenance. The following regulations shall govern the installation and 
maintenance of landscaping and screening materials. 

a. All landscaping materials and screening materials shall be installed in conjunction 
with site development and prior to issuance of a final certificate of occupancy. 

b. A letter of credit or other security as acceptable to the city shall be deposited with 
the Zoning Administrator, in an amount equal to 100% of the estimated cost of 
landscaping and/or screening. The letter of credit or other security as acceptable to 
the city, or portions thereof, shall be forfeited to maintain and/or replace materials 
for a period of time to include at least two growing seasons. A portion of the letter 
of credit or other security as acceptable to the city may be released after one 
growing season as determined by the Zoning Administrator.The property owner 
shall be responsible for continued maintenance of landscaping and screening 
materials to remain in compliance with the requirements of this section. Plant 
materials that show signs of disease or damage shall be promptly removed and 
replaced within the next planting season. 

c. The property owner shall be responsible for continued maintenance of landscaping 
and screening materials to remain in compliance with the requirements of this 
section. Plant materials that show signs of disease or damage shall be promptly 
removed and replaced within the next planting season. 

(9) Screening of parking areas from adjacent properties. All parking and loading areas 
(including drive-through facilities, pump island service areas and stacking spaces) abutting 
a public street or sidewalk shall provide: 

a. A landscaped frontage strip at least five feet wide along the public street or 
sidewalk. If a parking area contains over 100 spaces, the minimum required 
landscaped frontage strip shall be increased to eight feet in width. 

b. Screening consisting of either a masonry wall, fence, berm or hedge or combination 
that forms a screen a minimum of three feet in height, a maximum of four and one 
half feet in height, and not less than 50% opaque on a year-round basis. For reasons 
of personal safety and security, parking lot screening should allow clear visibility of 
pedestrians above the three-foot high viewing range. 

43

Item 3.



City of Columbia Heights - Ordinance Page 8 
 
 

c. Trees shall be planted at regular intervals of no greater than 50 feet within the 
frontage strip. 

 
 
Section 2 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 30 days after its passage. 
 
First Reading:  
Offered by:  
Seconded by:  
Roll Call:  
  
Second Reading:  
Offered by:  
Seconded by:  
Roll Call:  
  
Date of Passage:  
 
 
               
       Amáda Márquez Simula, Mayor 
Attest:  
 
 
        
Sara Ion, City Clerk/Council Secretary 
 
 

44

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 
 

ZONING AMENDMENT APPLICATION   
ORDINANCE NO.: 9.104 (F) 

 

This application is subject to review and acceptance by the City. Applications will be processed only if all 

required items are submitted.   

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Project Address/Location: _______________________________________________________________________ 
Legal Description of property: ____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Present zoning of property: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Proposed zoning of property: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Section Number of text to be changed: _____________________________________________________________ 
 

PROPERTY OWNER (As it appears on property title): 
Company/Individual (please print): __________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person (please print): ______________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  ________________________________________________________________________________                                    
City:  ______________________________  State: ____________       Zip:  ___________________________________ 
Daytime Phone: __________________________  Cell Phone: ____________________________________________ 
E-mail Address: _________________________________________________________________________________                                   
 
Signature/Date: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT: 
Company/Individual (please print): __________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person (please print): ______________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  ________________________________________________________________________________                                    
City:  ______________________________  State: ____________       Zip:  ___________________________________ 
Daytime Phone: __________________________  Cell Phone: ____________________________________________ 
E-mail Address: _________________________________________________________________________________                                   
 
Signature/Date: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Disclaimer:  Applicant’s name, contact information and a summary of the proposed application may be made 
available on the city’s website as part of public record.   
 
 

 

 

45

Item 3.

Citywide





                  9.106 General Development Standards - Landscaping & Screening

City of Columbia Heights - Community Development 
Andrew Boucher



3989 Central Avenue NE
Columbia Heights                 MN                                55421



763-706-3673
aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST  (please provide a written narrative that explains how the existing use of the property and the 
zoning classification of other properties within the general area are compatible with the proposed zoning 
classification.  Also describe whether there has been a change in the character or trend of development in the general 
area that has taken place since the property was originally placed in its current zoning classification.  If applicable, 
provide the existing text that you are requesting be changed and provide the proposed text.) 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
CASE NO: _______________________                                  
APPLICATION REC’D BY: ________________________                DATE APPLICATION REC’D: _______________ 
$1000 APPLICATION FEE REC’D: _____________________         RECEIPT NUMBER: ____________________                          
 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revised June 2017 

46

Item 3.



(M)   Landscaping and screening. 

      (1)   Purpose. Landscaping and screening requirements are established to buffer 
non-compatible land uses, screen unsightly views, reduce noise and glare, minimize 
storm water runoff, and generally enhance the quality and appearance of development 
within the community. 

      (2)   Landscape plan required. A landscape plan is required for all new commercial, 
industrial, institutional and multi-family development. For development having an 
anticipated construction value in excess of $750,000, the landscape plan must be 
prepared by a landscape architect registered in the State of Minnesota. Said landscape 
plan shall include the location, size, quantity and species of all existing and proposed 
plant materials. 

      (3)   Design considerations. The following design concepts and requirements should 
be considered when developing a landscape plan for submittal to the city: 

         (a)   To the maximum extent possible, the landscape plan shall incorporate 
existing vegetative features on the site. 

         (b)   The overall composition and location of landscaped areas should 
complement the scale of the development and its surroundings. 

         (c)   Landscaped areas should be of adequate size to allow proper plant growth, 
protect plantings from both pedestrian and vehicular traffic, and provide adequate area 
for plant maintenance. 

         (d)   A variety of trees and shrubs should be used to provide visual interest year 
round. No more than 50% of the required number of trees or shrubs may be comprised 
of any one species. No less than 25% of the required number of trees shall be over-
story deciduous trees and no less than 25% shall be coniferous. 

         (e)   Final slopes greater than 3:1 will not be permitted without special treatment 
such as terracing, retaining walls or special ground covers. 

         (f)   All plant materials shall meet the following minimum size standards: 

Plant Type Minimum Size at Planting 

Plant Type Minimum Size at Planting 

Trees 

   Evergreen 6 feet in height 

   Deciduous–over-story 2.5 inches diameter, measured 2 feet from 

base 

   Deciduous–ornamental 2 inches diameter, measured 2 feet from base 

Shrubs 

   Evergreen 2 feet in height 

   Deciduous 2 feet in height 

47

Item 3.



   Screening shrubs–either 3 feet in height 

  

  

      (4)   Landscaping requirements. Landscaping shall be provided in accordance with 
the following requirements: 

         (a)   All required setbacks shall be landscaped with turf grass, native grasses, 
trees, shrubs, vines, perennial flowering plants, or other pervious ground cover. 

         (b)   A minimum of one tree shall be planted for every 50 feet of street frontage or 
fraction thereof. The trees shall be planted within the front yard and may be arranged in 
a cluster or placed at regular intervals to best complement existing landscape design 
patterns in the area. 

         (c)   A minimum of four trees shall be planted for every one acre of lot area 
covered by buildings, parking areas, loading areas, exterior storage areas and other 
impervious surfaces. 

         (d)   Parking areas shall have a minimum of 100 square feet of landscape area 
and one over- story tree for each 20 spaces or, fraction thereof. The remainder of the 
landscape area shall be covered with turf grass, native grasses, trees, shrubs, vines, 
perennial flowering plants, or other pervious ground cover. 

      (5)   Screening requirements. Screening shall be provided in accordance with the 
following requirements: 

         (a)   All off-street parking areas containing six or more parking spaces and located 
adjacent to a residential or residentially zoned property, the parking area shall be 
screened along the boundary with the residential use. Where any commercial or 
industrial use is located adjacent to or across a public alley from a residential or a 
residentially zoned property, the commercial or industrial use shall be screened along 
the boundary with the residential use. 

         (b)   Exterior storage of materials or equipment, except for allowed retail sales and 
temporary placement of equipment, shall be screened from all adjacent non-industrial 
uses and from the public right-of-way. 

         (c)   Required screening shall consist of a fence, wall, earthen berming and/or 
vegetation no less than six feet in height and no less than 80% opaque on a year round 
basis. Said screening shall be located as close to the property line as practicable and 
no closer than 15 feet from the edge of a public right-of-way. 

      (6)   Installation and maintenance. The following regulations shall govern the 
installation and maintenance of landscaping and screening materials. 

         (a)   All landscaping materials and screening materials shall be installed in 
conjunction with site development and prior to issuance of a final certificate of 
occupancy. 

48

Item 3.



         (b)   A letter of credit or other security as acceptable to the city shall be deposited 
with the Zoning Administrator, in an amount equal to 10% of the estimated cost of 
landscaping and/or screening. The letter of credit or other security as acceptable to the 
city, or portions thereof, shall be forfeited to maintain and/or replace materials for a 
period of time to include at least two growing seasons. A portion of the letter of credit or 
other security as acceptable to the city may be released after one growing season as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator. 

         (c)   The property owner shall be responsible for continued maintenance of 
landscaping and screening materials to remain in compliance with the requirements of 
this section. Plant materials that show signs of disease or damage shall be promptly 
removed and replaced within the next planting season. 

      (7)   Screening of parking areas from adjacent properties. All parking and loading 
areas (including drive-through facilities, pump island service areas and stacking spaces) 
abutting a public street or sidewalk shall provide: 

         (a)   A landscaped frontage strip at least five feet wide along the public street or 
sidewalk. If a parking area contains over 100 spaces, the minimum required landscaped 
frontage strip shall be increased to eight feet in width. 

         (b)   Screening consisting of either a masonry wall, fence, berm or hedge or 
combination that forms a screen a minimum of three feet in height, a maximum of four 
and one half feet in height, and not less than 50% opaque on a year-round basis. For 
reasons of personal safety and security, parking lot screening should allow clear 
visibility of pedestrians above the three-foot high viewing range. 

         (c)   Trees shall be planted at regular intervals of no greater than 50 feet within the 
frontage strip. 

 

49

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

 

New Hope 

4.3 c. Tree preserva on and replacement. Landscape plans associated with commercial, industrial, 
mul ple family, or ins tu onal uses shall include measures to preserve or replace significant, preferred 
trees within any site development or redevelopment projects whenever possible, in accordance with this 
sec on of the New Hope City Code. 

1. Inspec on. With submission of a development applica on, the tree inspector shall conduct a site 
inspec on and iden fy significant, preferred trees that may be impacted or lost due to site 
improvements, grading, and/or u lity work associated with the project. 

2. Preserva on measures. The applicant shall include tree preserva on measures on the landscape 
measures that will be put in place during site construc on to protect significant, preferred trees, 
including: 

a. Snow fencing or polyethylene laminar safety ne ng placed at the drip line or cri cal 
root zones. 

b. Installa on of signage at all tree protec on areas that instructs workers to stay out. 
c. Erosion control methods. 
d. Tree removal procedures including direc onal felling away from exis ng trees to be 

saved and trenching to separate root systems prior to bulldozing trees or stumps. 
e. Coordina on of u lity planning with tree preserva on plan to strategically extend u lity 

connec ons from the street to the building in a manner that protects trees intended to 
be saved. 

f. Measures for preven ng changes in soil chemistry due to concrete wash-out and leakage 
or spillage of toxic materials such as fuels or paints. 

g. No soil disturbance shall occur within the lot un l the tree preserva on plan is approved 
and tree protec on measures are in place. 

h. Builders, contractors, or others working on site shall not fill, stockpile materials, or store 
equipment or vehicles against the trunk of the tree, in the cri cal root zone, or under 
the drip line of a tree to be saved. 

3. Replacement. 
a. No tree replacement is required for the following: 

i. Removal of non-significant, preferred trees. 
ii. Removal of non-preferred trees/invasive vegeta on, nuisance plants or trees 

that are diseased or dead. 
iii. Removal of significant, preferred trees within 15 feet of the building footprint of 

a proposed building or building addi on. 
b. Tree replacement will be required for the loss of any significant, preferred trees from the 

site due to site grading, construc on of parking lots, loading areas, open outdoor storage 
areas, or stormwater management features. 

c. The City will require the replacement of all trees at a one-inch to 0.5-inch ra o. 
d. Replacement trees shall consist of tree(s) from the preferred tree list as defined in 

sec on 4-2(b) of the City Code and shall meet the minimum size requirements as set 
forth in subsec on (d)(4)b.1. of this sec on. 

50

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

e. The site landscape plan shall iden fy tree loca ons, species, and sizes for replacement 
trees being planted on site. If the site plan does not offer space for the required number 
of replacement trees, the city may permit off-site replacement trees planted on public 
property. 

f. Any replacement tree which is not alive or healthy, as determined by the tree inspector, 
or which subsequently dies due to construc on ac vity within two years a er the date 
of project closure, shall be removed by the applicant and replaced with a new healthy 
tree mee ng the same minimum size requirements. 

4. Compliance with plan. The applicant shall implement the tree preserva on plan prior to and 
during any construc on. The tree protec on measures of the plan shall remain in place un l all 
grading and construc on ac vity is terminated, or un l a request is made to and approved by 
the city. The city shall have the right to inspect the development and/or building site in order to 
determine compliance with the approved tree preserva on plan. The city shall determine 
whether compliance with the tree preserva on plan has been met. 

  

51

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Shakopee 

151.113 Tree Preservation Regulations 

1. Purpose. The city regards natural features such as woodlands and bluffs as part of the 
community's identity, attracting residents and businesses to the area, City Council 
recognizes that not protecting these assets would have a quantifiable economic, social, 
and environmental loss. An objective of the city's Comprehensive Plan is to preserve, 
enhance, and maintain natural wooded areas within the city. This section aims to 
achieve this objective by encouraging responsible land development through rewarding 
those who use creative site design and minimize the impact to existing landscape and 
neighborhood character. 

2. Regulations. The following requirements and standards shall apply to any tree removal 
including, a preliminary plat, final plat, minor subdivision, building permit, demolition 
permit, conditional use permit variance, or grading permit is required by the city on any 
parcel of land containing a significant tree. The city is authorized to deny or revoke any 
permits extended by the city for individuals or organizations in violation of this section. 

3. Applicability. The following developments are exempt from the requirements for tree 
replacement: 

1. Any alteration of the tree canopy taking place on a residential property less than 
two and a half acres in size other than for an initial dwelling; 

2. Home gardens or an individual's home landscaping, repairs, and maintenance 
work; 

3. Existing agricultural, horticultural, or silvicultural operations. Expansions of 
existing agricultural operations will be subject to the requirements for tree 
replacement; 

4. Emergency work to prevent or alleviate immediate damages to life, limb, 
property, or natural resources. In such event, if tree replacement had been 
required but for emergency, the obligations of this division (C) shall apply and 
shall be performed at the earliest reasonable time thereafter; 

5. Maintenance of existing infrastructure by the city is exempt from the 
requirements of this section. 

4. Definitions. For the purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless 
the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  
 
APPLICANT. Any person submitting an application to the city for any activity for which 
a preliminary plat, final plat, minor subdivision, building permit, demolition permit, 
conditional use permit, variance, or grading permit is required on land containing a 
significant tree.  
 
BASIC INFRASTRUCTURE. Includes roads, streets, sidewalks, rights-of-way, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer, septic tanks, dram fields, water, natural gas, electric, cable 
television service, drainage ways, and storm ponds.  
 
BUILDABLE LAND. Any land not considered a wetland or easement as defined in the 

52

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

City Code or a bluff impact zone as defined in the design criteria.  
 
BUILDING PARAMETER. The footprint of a building or structure with a distance not to 
exceed 20 feet in each direction thereof. The area of disturbance on either side of a 
driveway, when added together, shall not exceed 20 feet.  
 
CALIPER INCH. The measurement of a tree trunk measured at 4.5 feet above the root 
ball.  
 
COMMON TREE. Any of the following trees: poplar; red maple; ash; elm; cedar; mulberry; 
balsam fir; birch; pine; spruce; tamarack; black locust; or other fast growing deciduous 
trees not listed as an exceptional tree. Trees that are not included in overall tree 
inventory and are not required to be replaced are ash, buckthorn, willow, fruit trees, 
cottonwood.  
 
CONTIGUOUS WOODLAND. A contiguous tree canopy greater than 2 acres regardless of 
land ownership.  
 
CRITICAL ROOT ZONE or CRZ. A radius of 1½ feet for every 1 inch of DBH for the tree 
trunk of the tree being preserved. Example: If a tree's DBH is 10 inches, its CRZ is 15 feet 
(10 x 1 1/2 = 15).  
 
DEVELOPMENT. Any activity for which a preliminary plat, final plat, minor 
subdivision, building permit, demolition permit, conditional use permit, variance, fence 
permit, or grading permit is required on land containing a tree.  
 
DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT or DBH. The diameter of the trunk of a tree measured 
in inches 4 1/2 feet above the ground from the uphill side of the tree.  
 
DIAMETER AT ROOT COLLAR or DRC. Used for measuring multi-stem trees. Trees are 
examined to see if they have a unified crown and are counted at each stem and 
multiplied by .6. Single trees are measured individually if there is no shared canopy.  
 

 
 
EXCEPTIONAL TREE. Any of the following trees: oak; hickory; basswood; sugar maple; 

53

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

black maple; cherry; catalpa; walnut; hackberry; hornbeam; coffee tree; butternut; 
buckeye; or horse chestnut.  
 
FORESTRY SPECIALIST. A state registered land surveyor, civil engineer, landscape 
architect, forester, or certified arborist, who is capable of identifying a tree by species. 
Only an arborist can identify and classify trees that are in poor health or considered 
hazardous.  
 
HAZARD TREE. A tree posing a threat to property or people that has visible hazardous 
defects such as dead wood, cracks, weak branch unions, decay, cankers, root problems, 
or poor tree architecture as defined by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, 
Northeastern Area's publication How to Recognize Hazardous Defects in Trees (NA-FR-
01-96).  
 
HIGH PRIORITY AREA. A group of three or more exceptional trees ten inches DBH or 
greater with near contiguous canopies or group of any trees that provide a buffer or 
screening along an adjacent property or street.  
 
HIGH PRIORITY TREE. An exceptional tree 15 inches DBH or greater, or any tree the city 
has a strong desire to preserve and is declared healthy by the city's staff.  
 
MULTI-STEM TREE. A group of trees that share both a unified crown and common root 
stock. The diameter is recorded as the diameter at root collar.  
 
REPLACEMENT TREE.  A tree that replaces diameter inches of a removed tree. The 
number of replacement trees required is based off the number of replacement inches 
calculated with the "remove:replace" ratio.  
 
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT. A building permit required for the building of an 
initial dwelling.  
 
SIGNIFICANT TREE. A living specimen of a woody plant species that is either an 
exceptional tree whose diameter is 4 inches or greater DBH; a common tree whose 
diameter is six inches or greater DBH, or a multi-stem tree with 2 or more stems 
measuring four inches or greater in diameter measured above the root collar.  
 
TREE PRESERVATION PLAN. The tree inventory, site plan, and tree replacement sheet 
for a site where an applicant proposes to remove a significant tree.  
 
TREE PROTECTION FENCE. Orange snow fencing or polyethylene laminate safety 
netting placed at the critical root zone of a tree to be preserved.  
 
TREE REPLACEMENT ESTIMATE. The city's cost for a three inch balled and burlapped 
tree for the current year. The city is required to get three quotes per year and post the 

54

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

chosen quote in the current fee schedule.  
 
WOODLAND ALTERATION. Any private or public infrastructure and utility installation, 
building construction, excavation, grading, clearing, filling, or other earth change on 
any parcel of land, where any cutting, removal, or killing of a significant tree on any 
parcel of land will occur. Residential parcels of land less than two and a half acres in 
size are subject to the requirements in this section only if the WOODLAND ALTERATION 
for an initial dwelling.  
 
WOODLAND ALTERATION PERMIT. A permit to allow woodland alteration. 

5. Tree preservation plan requirements. 
1. Requirements generally.  All applicants are required to submit and follow the 

approved tree preservation plan. 
2. Requirements of the tree preservation plan. The tree preservation plan must be 

completed by a forestry specialist and meet the following requirements. 
1. Tree inventory. 

1. The tree inventory must include every significant tree on buildable 
land on the property where the permit is being applied for. In 
addition to trees on said property, significant trees on adjacent 
property which have CRZ overlapping onto said property must be 
inventoried. Each inventoried tree must be tagged with a unique 
identification number. 

2. In circumstances where larger areas of the site are not being 
altered/graded or have no flexibility in planning around 
significant trees, the applicant may request permission from the 
city's Planning Department to use a stratified random sample with 
a fixed area plot to calculate an estimated tree DBH and species for 
each stratum. The survey results must be within less than 10% of 
standard error for each stratum. Plots must be marked to allow for 
replication of survey if necessary. 

3. The applicant must provide a working digital copy and hard copy 
spreadsheet displaying the following information for each 
inventoried tree: 

1. Identification number; 
2. Tree size (DBH or DRC); 
3. Tree species; 
4. Tree type (common, exceptional, or high priority); 
5. On-site or off-site (adjacent property); 
6. Critical root zone (if being preserved); 
7. Removed or preserved; 
8. Whether the tree is within a contiguous woodland or high 

priority area; and 
9. The total diameter inches of both high priority trees and 

significant trees inventoried must be displayed. 

55

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

2. Site plan. 
1. Generally. A scaled drawing of the site including: 

1. The location, identification number, and tree type 
(common, exceptional, or high priority) of all inventoried 
trees; 

2. Proposed trees to remove and preserve: 
3.  High priority areas and contiguous woodland area; 
4. Critical root zones of all trees being preserved along with 

any area within critical root zone that will be impacted; 
5. Proposed construction/grading limits, lot lines, building 

parameter, basic infrastructure, buildable land, and 
building footprint/elevation; 

6. Locations of tree protection fence and silt fence; and 
7. Soil stockpile and parking locations during construction. 

2. Additional requirements. 
1. A survey of the lot meeting all possible requirements of the 

tree inventory and site plan must be provided to the builder 
of the lot. The city must be provided a digital copy of the tree 
survey for each individual lot. 

2. Note areas with oak wilt, Dutch elm disease. Emerald Ash 
Borer, invasive plants such as buckthorn or others listed on 
the current year's State Department of Agriculture's 
noxious weed list. 

3. Tree replacement sheet. 
1. The tree replacement sheet is a scaled drawing of the site depicting 

where the replacement trees will be planted. 
2. The plan must include: 

1. Calculations for determination of required replacement 
trees and landscaping required by division (H) below; 

2. Locations of all trees and other plants being installed on-
site; 

3. Plant list including species, size, and stock type of installed 
plants; 

4. Planting details that meet the city's tree planting 
specifications; and 

5. Easements, right-of-ways, construction limits, building 
pads, driveways, and basic infrastructure. 

3. Residential building permit tree preservation plan. The applicant 
must complete the city's "residential building-tree preservation 
plan" as their tree preservation plan which includes a survey 
meeting all requirements of this division (E) to the city. 

4. Permit prerequisites. No woodland alteration, grading, or building 
permits shall be issued by the city until the applicant has installed 

56

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

any required tree protection fencing and it has been inspected and 
approved by the city. 

5. Changes to tree preservation plan. Any changes to the tree 
preservation plan shall be submitted in writing to the city by the 
applicant for approval. If the change includes any additional 
significant tree removal, an additional inspection and approval by 
the city of the tree protection fencing will be required. 

6. Current tree preservation plan. All information contained in the 
tree preservation plan must not be more than two years old at the 
time of submittal. City staff may grant reasonable exceptions to 
this requirement for residential builders of an individual lot. 

7. Removal of significant trees. Significant trees required to be 
removed pursuant to § 130.17, shall be identified as removed on the 
tree preservation plan and must be removed. Significant trees that 
are removed for this reason are exempt from the replacement 
requirements of this division (E). 

6. Allowable tree removal. 
1. Generally. 

1. Developers and builders are required to save as many trees as feasible 
when grading or building a site. 

2. When developing the site plan the developer or builder shall: 
1. Identify high priority trees and areas (using the tree inventory) 

that are most worthy of preservation; 
2. Locate roads, buildings, utilities, parking areas, or other 

infrastructure so as to minimize their impacts on exceptional and 
high priority trees; 

3. Preserve trees in groves or clusters recognizing that survivability 
is greater for groups of trees than individuals; 

4. Manipulate proposed grading and the limits of disturbance by 
changing the elevation/location of building pads, parking lots, and 
streets, and consider the use of retaining walls to reduce the 
impact of the trees; and 

5. Review all construction factors that influence tree survivability. 
2. Standards for site developments. 

 

Type of 
Development 

Permitted 
Removal 

Caliper Inches 
Significant Trees 
Above Permitted 

Removal 

Caliper 
Inches 
High 

Priority 
Trees 

Excluded Trees 
and Trees 

Health 
Classified 

"Poor"/Hazard 
Trees 

57

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Residential 
buildings 6 
units or less 
during 
subdivision 

30% of 
inventoried DBH 

1:1 DBH 
inventoried 

1:1.5 
(remove: 
replace) 

None 

Residential 6 
units or less 
after 
subdivision 

100% DBH 
within building 
parameter 

None None None 

Commercial. 
industrial > 6 
unit residential 
buildings 

60% of 
inventoried DBH 

1:1 DBH 
inventoried 

1:1.5 
(remove: 
replace) 

None 

Redevelopment 
60% of 
inventoried DBH 

1:1 DBH 
inventoried 

1:1.5 
(remove: 
replace 

None 

1. Tree removal beyond the lot being built on is allowed only for the 
installation of basic infrastructure. 15% of the inventoried DBH on the 
buildable land for that lot may be removed without replacement; and 

2. Removal in excess of this 15% requires replacement of 1:1.5 DBH (remove: 
replace). 

3. For any applicant proposing redevelopment of a lot, 30% of the inventoried DBH 
on the buildable land for the lot being redeveloped is allowed to be removed 
without replacement. Removal in excess of this 30% requires replacement of 1:1.5 
DBH (remove:replace). 

4. Proposal to remove more than 35% of high priority trees. If an applicant proposes 
to remove more than 35% of the high priority trees or 25% of a contiguous 
woodland, based on DBH, the city must be shown site plan alternatives 
considered by the applicant as evidence an attempt to remove less than said 
amount of trees was made and an explanation as to why this plan does not work. 

7. Tree preservation requirements. 
1. The applicant must preserve all trees identified to be preserved on the tree 

preservation plan. 
2. For grading being done between the dates of April 1 and July 31, the CRZ for an 

oak tree may be increased due to threat of oak wilt. During this time, wound 
dressing will be applied immediately after damage of an oak tree takes place. 

3. A tree shall be considered removed if: 
1. More than 30% of the CRZ is compacted over 80% of Standard Proctor or 

200 PSI, cut, filled, or paved; 

58

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

2. More than 30% of the circumference of the trunk is damaged; 
3. The hydrology in the area of preserved trees changes due to site grading; 

or 
4. Severe damage to an oak tree takes place between April 1 and July 31. 

4. Tree protection fence shall be placed outside of the CRZ of trees being preserved. 
If fencing is not possible, covering and maintaining the CRZ with geotextile 
fabric and six plus inches of wood-chip mulch will suffice. 

5. There may be no construction activity within the CRZ of a significant tree located 
on an adjacent property. 

8. Tree replacement standards. 
1. A replacement tree shall not be any species presently under disease or insect 

epidemics, considered invasive, or a species that composes a high percentage of 
the city's urban forest without prior written approval from the city. 
Recommended species can be found in the city's Forestry Specification Manual. 

2. Replacement trees must meet the planting size requirements for required 
landscaping. 

3. All replacement trees must be installed during appropriate season for that 
planting stock. 

4. Replacement trees are not to be installed until exterior construction activities are 
complete in that area. 

5. If there are greater or equal to 30 trees that are required, they shall be composed 
of no more than 10% of one species, 20% of one genus, and 30% of one family. If 
there are less than 30 trees are required, one species shall make up no more than 
25% of the total. 

6. Replacement trees shall not be planted in a location that will interfere with other 
infrastructure or be in extreme competition for resources with other trees at 
maturity. 

7. The city may accept other vegetative or environmental alternatives proposed by 
an applicant if those alternatives are monetarily or ecologically equivalent to the 
value of the replacement trees required by this section. 

8. Replacement trees shall be planted not more than 18 months from the date of the 
final approved tree replacement sheet as part of the tree preservation plan. 
Extensions may be requested in writing to the city. 

9. If the number of replacement trees cannot be met on-site, the following is 
required: 

1. A cash payment of $400 per replacement tree shall be provided to the city 
for the planting of trees that are as close as possible to the site that 
payment was received for or to subsidize trees sold to the city's residents; 

2. Trees may be planted in city-owned or managed land as approved by the 
city; 

3. Replacement trees may be installed on other properties owned by the 
applicant within the city. If a buffer area as defined by the natural 
resource corridor map is on said property, replacement trees shall be 
planted in this area first. 

59

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

9. Unauthorized significant tree removal. 
1. Any person, firm, or corporation who removes or causes the loss of a significant 

tree identified to be preserved on an approved tree preservation plan or without 
a permit allowing woodland alteration, shall be required to complete 1 of the 
following as determined by the city: 

1. Installation of replacement trees within the same development at a 1:2 
DBH (remove:replace); or 

2. Payment to the city of $500 for every one inch of significant tree removed 
that was unauthorized. Measurement of each tree will be at DBH or 
diameter of the stump, whichever is readily available. This amount may 
be taken by the city from the financial security posted by the applicant for 
tree replacement, if any. A minimum of $15,000 payment will be required 
if measurements are unavailable. 

2. This provision also applies to a conservation easement area that is disturbed 
during or after development as well as removing a publicly managed tree of any 
size without written city authorization. 

3. The city may withhold permits from any person, firm, or corporation who fails 
to complete the requirements above. 

10. Financial security. 
1. The applicant shall provide the city with a cash escrow, or other form of security 

that the city deems acceptable, in the amount of 150% of the total tree 
replacement estimate. 

1. Formula. Number of replacement trees x tree replacement estimate x 
150%= financial security due. 

2. The financial security required for the replacement trees is due prior to the 
issuance of the grading permit or the commencement of any woodland 
alteration activity. 

3. All replacement trees must be warrantied to guarantee survival. The warranty 
period shall begin upon inspection and acceptance by city staff of the installed 
trees for proper planting, size, species, health, and location. If at any time during 
the warranty period replacement trees are found to be unhealthy by city staff 
they are required to be replaced with the same size and species by the applicant 
at the soonest appropriate planting time. 

1. For commercial/industrial sites and residential developers, up to 75% of 
the financial security may be returned upon inspection and acceptance 
by the city of installed trees and the submittal of a city-approved two year 
warranty from the landscape contractor who installed the trees. This 
warranty must cover tree health issues relating to excess or insufficient 
water. The remaining financial security will be held by the city for 2 
years. When reducing the financial security, 75% will be returned unless 
city staff feels the trees have a heightened risk of failure. 

2. For builders of individual residential lots within a subdivision who 
receives a one-year warranty from the landscape contractor who 
installed the trees, 100% of the financial security will be returned upon: 

60

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

1. Inspection and acceptance of installed trees by the city; and 
2. Providing the lot buyer with the copy of the two-year warranty 

from the landscape contractor and contact information to make a 
claim on the warranty. 

4. If the financial security has not been returned in full after the inspection of the 
installed trees, at the end of a 2-year warranty period, the applicant shall 
schedule a final inspection with city staff. 

1. Prior to scheduling the inspection, the applicant shall confirm the 
following conditions are met: 

1. All trees have 1 dominate leader, are free of deadwood, and injured 
branches; 

2. All tree wrap is removed; 
3. All stakes and wires are removed; and 
4. Trees are in leaf. 

2. At the time of final inspection the city shall decide to: 
1. Refund the financial security in full; or 
2. Require the planting of new trees to replace the replacement trees 

which do not survive or are declared unhealthy by city staff. If 25% 
or more of the replacement trees are required to be replaced, the 
appropriate amount of financial security will be held for an 
additional 2 years for said trees. 

5. The financial security will be used by the city only if the applicant does not 
install the initial or subsequent replacement trees required in this chapter. 

6. Any trees required to be removed per § 130.17 from a site, shall be removed and 
disposed of according to § 130.17 prior to release of the financial security. 

7. The city shall be exempt from the financial security requirement of this section. 
11. General regulations. 

1. If the applicant disagrees with the city staff's decision with respect to the 
interpretation or enforcement of this chapter, the applicant may appeal that 
decision by following the procedure established in § 151.016. 

2. Land previously planted for commercial tree farm purposes shall be subject to 
tree replacement requirements as determined appropriate by the city with the 
maximum requirement being the current allowable tree removal requirements 
of division (F) above. 

3. Inspections required in this chapter will be conducted by staff from the city's 
Natural Resources Department or other city staff as assigned. 

12. Effective Date. This section becomes effective from and after its passage and 
publication. 

 

 
 

 

61

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Maple Grove: DIVISION 6. - T TREE PRESERVATION DISTRICT 

Sec. 36-728. - Tree preserva on standards associated with site development. 

SHARE LINK TO SECTIONPRINT SECTIONDOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONSEMAIL SECTION 

Unless provided otherwise in an approved forest management plan set forth in sec on 36-727, the 
condi ons following the submission requirements in this sec on shall apply to removal of trees having a 
trunk diameter of eight inches or more DBH. 

1) Applica on. Any person desiring to develop all or part of any property within a T-zone shall submit 
an applica on (subdivision, site plan, planned unit development, among others) to the city's 
community and economic development department together with a filing fee as set forth in chapter 
16, ar cle XI, of this Code. Accompanying the appropriate applica on shall be the following: 
a) Tree inventory. Tree inventory shall include the species, diameter, condi on and loca on of 

all trees at least eight DBH inches and shall be prepared by a forester, natural resources 
specialist, cer fied arborist, landscape architect or another qualified individual. Such qualified 
individual shall require approval by the community development director. 

b) Tree preserva on plan. The tree preserva on plan shall show and specify: 
i) Total diameter inches and species composi on of trees at least eight DBH inches to 

be preserved; 
ii) Total number of diameter inches of trees at least eight DBH inches to be removed; 
iii) Limits of tree clearing, tree protec on zones and fencing; 
iv) Loca on, size and species of replacement trees required in sec on; 
v) Construc on staging areas for parking and material storage including concrete washout 

areas; 
vi) Loca on of all underground u li es; 
vii) Dripline analysis showing the approximate loca on of the dripline from each tree. If a clear 

dripline cannot be established, said analysis shall es mate the dripline using a 1½-foot radius 
for the dripline for each inch of tree diameter; 

viii) Root cu ng with a vibratory plow, trencher or other device approved by the director of 
community and economic development must be conducted along the limits of clearing 
adjacent to tree preserva on areas and a root cu ng detail shall be provided; 

ix) Grading in the dripline shall be no more than one-third the radius of the es mated dripline 
or the tree shall be counted as removed in the plan. Said grading shall be only on one side of 
the tree. 

 

x) Fencing detail for any fencing required under sec on 36-730. 

62

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

xi) Signage details for any required signage under sec on 36-730. 
xii) All tree removal shall be accounted for with the ini al plan and include proposed grading for 

all lots in a development. 
xiii) For single-family detached residen al property, trees within 20 feet of the building pad may 

be preserved but shall not count as preserved on the reten on schedule. 
c) Sequencing plan. The sequencing plan shall show the following sequencing schedule: 

i) Root cu ng; 
ii) Installa on of tree protec on fence and signage; 
iii) Grading. 

2) Standards of preserva on during development. Development means part of a development proposal 
under review such as, but not limited to, a planned unit development or subdivision review. 

a. 

Development Type Removal limit before replacement is 
required (in DBH inches) 

Residen al (PUD or 
otherwise) 

50% 

Industrial (non-
PUD) 

70% 

Commercial (non-
PUD) 

80% 

Industrial and 
Commercial PUD's 

70% 

  

3) Replacement table for planned unit developments: The replacement for planned unit developments 
has a replacement ra o that gets higher as removal gets higher and puts a limit on removal. The 
intent is to limit removal and provide more replacement with more removal. 

Residen al PUD Replacement Table Replacement Ra o 
(replacement inches to 
removal inches) 

Removal up to 50% of DBH inches 0:0 

63

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Residen al PUD Replacement Table Replacement Ra o 
(replacement inches to 
removal inches) 

Removal over 50—55% of DBH inches 2:1 

Removal over 55—60% of DBH inches 3:1 

Removal over 60—65% of DBH inches 4:1 

Removal over 65—70% of DBH inches 5:1 

No removal allowed over 70% 

 

Commercial and Industrial PUD 
Replacement Table 

Replacement Ra o 

Removal up to 70% of DBH inches 0:0 

Removal over 70—75% of DBH inches 2:1 

Removal over 75—80% of DBH inches 3:1 

Removal over 80—85% of DBH inches 4:1 

Removal over 85—90% of DBH inches 5:1 

No removal allowed over 90% 

  

The replacement ra o shall apply to the en re replacement. For example, removal in a residen al PUD 
of 60 percent would have a 3:1 replacement ra o, 61 percent removal would trigger at 4:1 replacement 
ra o. 

64

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

4) Density bonus and transfer for residen al development. As an incen ve to retain trees, density 
bonuses can be considered for preserva on. Density bonuses are based on the percentage 
of trees retained over 50 percent and apply to the area of a project that is in a T-zone. Density 
bonuses for T-zone preserva on can be in addi on to any density bonuses in the PUD sec on. 

a. For each net acre, or por on thereof, above 50 percent of the T-zone area that 
is preserved, a density bonus may be considered. Wetland and floodplain areas will not 
count toward the calculated area of preserva on as these areas already have 
protec ons. 

b. The density bonus shall be based on two mes the maximum density of the underlying 
land use guiding in the comprehensive plan. 

c. At least 55 percent of the inches must be retained before the density bonus shall apply. 
d. To calculate the total number of units allowed on a site, the bonus units would be added 

to the number of units using the base density mul plied by the net acres of the site for 
the par cular land use category. The base densi es are as follows and are based on 
historical averages for these land uses: 

i. Low-Medium Density: 2.5 units per acre. 
ii. Medium Density: 6.75 units per acre. 

iii. High Density: 18 units per acre. 
iv. Mixed Use High Density: 22 units per acre. 

e. Example table for a low-medium density guided site: 

Total T-zone Acres 10.0 

Percent of T-zone acres preserved 60% 

Acres over 50% preserved 1.0 

Base Density 2.5 units per acre 

Max Density in Comprehensive plan 4.0 units per acre 

Density Bonus 8.0 units per acre 

Bonus units (1 acre above 50% x Density 
Bonus) 

8 

Base units 25 

65

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Total Units with Bonus Units 33 

Net Density 3.3 units per acre 

  

f. The addi onal units can be transferred to the remainder of the site or an alterna ve site 
subject to city approval. 

g. The city may consider flexibility with regard to unit types and lot sizes to accommodate 
the greater amount of open space that would occur with greater tree preserva on. For 
example, smaller single-family lots or more a ached housing in the low-medium 
residen al areas could be considered. 

h. For sites that have both T-zone areas and non-T-zone areas, density bonuses shall be 
calculated independently from each other. Open space preserva on bonuses would only 
be gained if open space was created in the non-T-zone area above what is required by 
code. 

i. The maximum density in low-medium residen al guided land may not be exceeded. 
5) Standards of preserva on when not connected with a development review. This sec on shall 

govern the development of individual vacant lots and/or new construc on in a T-zone in which 
removal was not previously accounted for through some other review process such as, but not 
limited to, planned unit development or subdivision review. Note that exis ng homes proposing 
addi ons, or other such improvements, will be subject to the requirements of sec on 36-731. 

a. Single-family detached and two-family dwellings. The builder shall be responsible for 
working with the community development department for the protec on of the trees to 
be preserved on a par cular lot. 

i. The building pad shall include an area from the front lot line to a line 85 feet 
behind the front lot line. 

ii. The building pad shall extend across the en re width of the lot. 
iii. The builder shall be required to replace trees removed from within the building 

pad on a basis of one-half inch of replacement for each DBH inch of removal. 
iv. Trees protected within the building pad may count toward replacement at a 

ra o of two inches of replacement for every DBH inch of trees protected. 
v. If trees are removed from the area outside the building pad, they shall be 

replaced at a ra o of two inches of replacement for each DBH inch removed. 
b. Other development types: 

Development Type Removal limit before replacement is required (in DBH inches) 

A ached single-family 
dwellings and apartments 

50% 

66

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

Development Type Removal limit before replacement is required (in DBH inches) 

Industrial 70% 

Commercial 80% 

c. Trees removed in excess of the removal limit above shall be replaced at a ra o of two 
inches of replacement for each DBH inch removed. 

6) Standards of preserva on in all other circumstances. Whenever trees are removed under any 
circumstances other than those iden fied in subsec ons (2) and (5) of this 
sec on, preserva on and replacement ra os set forth in subsec on (5) shall apply. 

Sec. 36-729. - Replacement standards. 

a) As shown on a tree preserva on plan required in sec on 36-728 (1)b, replacement shall occur in 
the following order: 
i) In the area from which the trees are removed. For single-family residen al developments, or 

other types of development as determined by the city council, said area shall be common 
areas, outlots or other lots other than private, individually owned lots. 

ii) If this is not desirable for the health or survival of the replacement trees, the trees shall be 
replanted elsewhere within the T-zone from which the trees were removed. For single-family 
residen al developments, or other types of development as determined by the city council, 
said area shall be common areas, outlots or other lots other than private, individually owned 
lots. 

iii) If this is also undesirable for the health or survival of the replacement trees, then the 
replan ng may occur outside of the designated T-zone but shall occur within the 
development. For single-family residen al developments, or other types of development as 
determined by the city council, said area shall be common areas, outlots or other lots other 
than private, individually owned lots. 

iv) If this is not desirable for the health or survival of the replacement trees, then the 
landowner shall consult and work with the city to determine a be er alterna ve plan ng 
loca on for the replacement trees. 

v) Otherwise, at the discre on of the city council, the tree conserva on fee shall be paid to the 
city in an amount as is set forth by the city council in the adopted fee schedule. Funds 
received by the tree conserva on fee will be maintained within a separate account and used 
to replant trees on public lands or within forest preserva on lands. 

b) Any replan ng shall be done with overstory trees of the primary species of the affected forest. 
No more than 20 percent of the replacement trees shall be composed of any one genus. At 
plan ng, the trunks of deciduous trees shall be at least 2½ inches DBH. Coniferous trees shall be 
at least five feet in height. 

c) Replacement trees shall be iden fied as such un l they are eight inches in DBH, shall be 
considered at least eight inches in DBH regardless of size and shall be treated accordingly for 
purposes of this division. 

67

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

d) A coniferous tree replacement shall be counted at a ra o of one inch DBH for every two feet in 
height of the coniferous tree. 

e) If any replan ng is to occur outside the limits of the T-zone, the parcel on which the replan ng 
occurs shall be rezoned so as to be governed by the provisions of the T-zone. 

f) Any replacement tree required to be planted by sec on 36-728 shall be in addi on 
to trees required to be planted on any residen al lot, including single-family detached, two-
family or any lot needing to comply with the requirements of sec on 36-831, Required 
landscaping. 

Sec. 36-730. - Requirements before and during construc on. 

a) Tree protec on and preserva on standards. 
i) Trees designated for preserva on shall be protected by a highly visible fence or other 

temporary structure deemed acceptable by the city. The protec on area shall be defined by 
the projec on of the tree dripline downward to the ground. If less protec on is necessary 
due to the proximity of building structures or infrastructure, such reduced protec on area 
shall require approval by the city prior to any construc on ac vity taking place. 

ii) The loca on and means of tree protec on shall require inspec on and approval by the city 
prior to any construc on ac vity taking place, including any grading work on the site. The 
city shall also inspect the construc on site during construc on. The tree protec on shall 
remain in place un l the city has conducted an inspec on of the lot and has approved the 
removal of the fencing. 

iii) No equipment, chemicals, soil deposits or construc on materials shall be placed within a 
protec ve barrier. 

iv) Any landscaping ac vity subsequent to the removal of the barriers shall be accomplished 
with hand labor. 

v) If, during construc on, ac vi es take place in areas designated for preserva on in viola on 
of the above standards, trees in the impacted area may be deemed removed and subject to 
the penal es in sec on 36-722 and any necessary replacement requirements. 

vi) Any tunneling under trees for u li es should be a minimum of two feet underground from 
the top of the tunnel to minimize root loss. 

b) Site signage. 
(1) Prior to any tree being removed pursuant to subsec ons 36-728(2) or (3), the property 

owner shall cause to be posted on the perimeter of the site involved in the 
development, subdivision, excava on or construc on ac vity signs readily visible to and 
understandable by the public iden fying the trees and ac vity on the site as being 
subject to the provisions of T-zone regula ons of the city. 

(2) Such signs will be provided by the city, shall be placed in proximity to planned entrances 
to the development and shall remain in place un l the ac vity has passed final approval 
by the city departments monitoring it. 

(3) In addi on, the property owner shall securely a ach signs to the tree protec on fence 
required under sec on 36-730 every 50 feet of protec on fencing or por on thereof. 
Such signs will be provided by the city. 

68

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

(4) All site ac vity that would impact trees shall cease if signage and/or fencing are not in 
place, un l said signage and fencing are deemed adequate by the monitoring city 
departments. 

c) Performance guarantee. 
1) Based upon the replacement trees iden fied in sec on 36-729, and prior to any 

construc on ac vity taking place, the applicant shall submit a cash escrow, le er of 
credit or other surety acceptable to the city in the amount of 100 percent of the cost of 
the replacement trees proposed for the project area. Such surety shall remain in force 
for two full growing seasons following installa on of the replacement trees to guarantee 
survival. At the end of the second growing season or subsequent two-year period, the 
city shall review the project area in coordina on with the applicant and shall make a 
determina on to: 

a. Refund the appropriate performance surety; or 
b. Require the plan ng of new trees to replace the replacement trees which did 

not survive the ini al or subsequent two full growing seasons or subsequent 
periods un l such me as the replacement trees have survived two full growing 
seasons. 

2) For purposes of this sec on, all trees shall be alive and in sa sfactory growing condi on 
at the end of two full growing seasons. The growing season shall include the period May 
1 through September 30. The two-year guarantee period for plant materials installed 
a er the growing season ends shall commence the following year. 

d) Survey of trees prior to issuance of building permit. Prior to the issuance of a building permit by 
the city for a lot within a development subject to the requirements of this sec on, the applicant 
for such building permit shall provide a cer fied survey of the lot or lots for which the building 
permit is to be issued iden fying the loca on, size and species of all trees eight inches DBH or 
larger in size. Such survey shall indicate trees that are to be removed, those that are to be saved 
and any required replacement trees. Diagrams of protec ve fencing shall be shown on the 
survey consistent with sec on 36-730. If required by the city, a tree replacement plan shall be 
provided complying with the provisions of this sec on. 

e) Survey of trees prior to approval of occupancy. Prior to the city approving final occupancy for any 
structure contained within a T-zone, the applicant for such occupancy shall provide a cer fied 
survey of the lot verifying the informa on required in subsec on (e) of this sec on. If the city 
determines that addi onal tree inches are removed a er the comple on of site improvements 
based on the survey, the city shall require addi onal tree replacement. 

f) Further requirements during subdivision are set forth in chapter 30, pertaining to subdivisions, 
and include, but are not limited to, sec on 30-16(3)m. 

 

Sec. 36-731. - Tree preserva on standards a er site development. 

a) For all development types, except for single-family detached homes, the tree preserva on plan 
associated with that development shall govern and addi onal tree removal shall be compared 
with the removal in the original approval. Any required replacement shall be subject to the 
requirements of this chapter. 

69

Item 3.



Tree Preserva on Ordinance Research  

b) For single-family detached homes, a er a cer ficate of occupancy has been granted, addi onal 
removal of trees eight inches in diameter at breast height (DBH) shall require the replacement of 
one tree for each tree removed. Replacement trees shall meet the requirements of sec on 36-
729. 

Sec. 36-732. - Excep ons. 

The provisions of this division shall not apply to: 

1) The removal of trees from commercial nurseries or hor cultural proper es, such as tree farms, 
orchards or commercial forests. This excep on shall not be interpreted to include lumber 
harves ng incidental to imminent development of the land. 

2) The removal of trees on public rights-of-way conducted by or on behalf of a federal, state, 
county, municipal, or other governmental agency in pursuance of its lawful ac vi es or func ons 
in the construc on or improvement of public rights-of-way. 

3) The removal of trees deemed to be diseased, dying, or dead. Said determina on shall be made 
by a cer fied arborist, landscape architect or other natural resource professional. 

4) The removal of any tree which has become or threatens to become a danger to human life or 
property. 

5) The removal of any tree by a public u lity when such tree has the reasonable poten al of 
endangering the facili es operated by the u lity.  

70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



-Public Notice Ad Proof-

 
 Ad ID: 1388209
 Copy LIne: May 7 PH Zoning Text Amendment

 PO Number: 
 Start: 04/19/24
 Stop: 04/19/2024
 Total Cost: $57.50
 # of Lines: 44
 Total Depth: 4.917
 # of Inserts:  1
 Ad Class: 150
 Phone # (763) 691-6000
 Email: publicnotice@apgecm.com
 Rep No: CA700

 Date: 04/12/24
 
 Account #: 414681

 Customer: CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS
 

 Address: 3989 CENTRAL AVE NE
  COLUMBIA HEIGHTS

 Telephone: (763) 767-6580
 Fax: (763) 706-3637

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates
indicated below. Please proof read carefully. If changes are needed,

please contact us prior to deadline at
Cambridge (763) 691-6000 or email at publicnotice@apgecm.com 

Ad Proof
Not Actual Size

Publications: 
BSLP Col Hght Frid Life

Contract-Gross

CITY OF 
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the 
Planning Commission of the City 
of Columbia Heights will conduct 
a public hearing in the City Council 
Chambers of City Hall at 3989 Cen-
tral Avenue NE on Tuesday, May 
7, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.  The order of 
business is as follows: 

A request for a Zoning Text 
Amendment from the City of Co-
lumbia Heights proposing to amend 
City Code 9.106 General Develop-
ment Standards (M) Landscaping 
and Screening and establish Tree 
Preservation and Planting Stan-
dards allowing the Urban Forester 
to review public and private proj-
ects that require a certificate of sur-
vey. Section 9.104 (F) of the Zoning 
Ordinance requires the Planning 
Commission to hold a public hear-
ing on the zoning amendment and 
make findings before submitting a 
recommendation to City Council 

Notice is hereby given that all 
persons having an interest will be 
given an opportunity to be heard.  
For questions, contact Andrew 
Boucher, City Planner, at (763) 706-
3673.

Published in
The Life 

April 19, 2024
1388209

74

Item 3.



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA SECTION PUBLIC HEARINGS 

MEETING DATE MAY 7, 2024 

 

ITEM: Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.107 Specific Development Standards (16) Day Care 
Centers 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
                   April 25, 2024 

 
CASE NUMBER: 2024-PZ05 

APPLICANT:   JDA Design Architects, Inc. on behalf of Mohamed Abdulle (2201 37th Avenue NE) 

LOCATION:  Citywide 

REQUEST:  Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

PREPARED BY:  Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
JDA Design Architects, Inc. representing Mohamed Abdulle has requested approval of a Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment to amend the Specific Development Standards in City Code 9.107 for Day Care Centers. The 
applicant is specifically proposing to modify (16)(c): a requirement for child day care centers to provide at least 
75 sq. ft. of outdoor play area for each child under care to allow for the submission of a written plan to use an 
adjacent public park to satisfy this requirement subject to approval by the City Manager or their designee. The 
proposed text amendment would make the City Code less restrictive and bring local requirements into 
alignment with MN State Statute 9502.0425 (Physical Environment) which allows day cares to use public parks 
if the on-site play areas are not sufficient.  
 
Staff have worked with the owner of 2201 37th Avenue NE, a block south of Prestemon Park, on a proposed 
child day care center building permit application through administrative review under the current code 
requirements providing a 2,700 sq. ft. on-site play area as well as on the proposed zoning text amendment 
which would allow the applicant to serve a greater number of children. The proposed zoning text amendment 
changes the child day care outdoor play area language to reflect the standards that allow adult day care 
facilities to use an adjacent park subject to approval of a written plan reviewed by the City Manager or their 
designee.  
 
Family Day Cares as defined in City Code 9.103 Definitions as “a facility that provides care, protection, and 
supervision of children in a private residence for periods of less than 24 hours” or “Home Day Cares” as 
defined in City Code 9.107 Specific Development Standards are not included in the scope of this zoning text 
amendment as these have a different set of requirements and pertain to day care operations within 
residential houses. 
 
SUMMARY OF CURRENT STATUS: 
Staff has determined that the proposal is identical to a similar zoning text amendment the City processed and 
approved in 2017 to allow adult day care facilities use of an adjacent public park to satisfy outdoor play area 
requirements after this development standard was expressed to be a barrier to entry for a perspective day 

75

Item 4.



 Page 2 
 

 
care facility at the time. Staff recommended approval of the amendment so that an alternative approach to 
providing on-site outdoor space could be considered, which was approved by the City Council.  
 
In review of the zoning text amendment application, staff examined existing day care facilities and their 
outdoor play areas, zoning districts that allow child and adult day care facilities as uses, and identifying parks 
that would be within the 1,500-foot distance from any commercially zoned properties to better understand 
the impact of the proposed zoning text amendment.  
 
There are approximately 11 existing day care centers that this amendment would apply to, but each of these 
centers appears to provide on-site play areas or are on a site, such as a place of worship or school facility, that 
has those facilities readily available. Existing day care centers would be able to expand their operations if their 
occupancy is currently limited by the on-site play area, but this amendment would likely be more applicable to 
future day care centers.  
 
The proposed zoning text amendment would be applicable to only city parks that have a commercially zoned 
property within 1,500 feet of them where a future child day care center could propose a written plan for 
review to use the park. These parks are: 

 Edgemoor Park 

 Gauvitte Park 

 Huset Park 

 Labelle Park 

 Prestemon Park 

 Sullivan Lake Park 
 
The remaining parks are either outside the distance allowed for a day care to use the park or the parks do not 
have any commercial zones where a child day care center would be allowed. The property owners within 350 
feet of each of these six parks were sent a Notice of Public Hearing regarding the zoning text amendment 
because staff determined it was appropriate, within the scope of the zoning text amendment, to give the 
public ample notice of the application and provide time for adequate public comment. Staff has received 
multiple written comments, phone calls, and in-person visits from residents at the writing of this report 
regarding the proposed zoning text amendment, these have been included as part of the public record. Any 
additional public comments received after this report is published will be read into the public record at the 
May 7, 2024 Planning Commission and included in the staff report as additional exhibits. 
 
Staff also examined the city code requirements of Andover, Big Lake, Maple Grove, Minneapolis, Minnetonka, 
Richfield, Roseville, and Saint Paul to better understand how cities are regulating day care facilities in relation 
to MN State Statute 9502.0425. Cities such as Andover, Richfield, and Roseville do not have specific 
development standards for day care centers and adhere to the state requirements. Big Lake, Maple Grove, 
and Saint Paul require play areas for day cares to be enclosed with a fence. Minneapolis allows for public parks 
to be used accessory to a child care center.  
 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
It is the opinion of staff that the proposed zoning text amendment, as presented, is consistent with the 2040 
Comprehensive Plan and would bring city code requirements in alignment with MN State Statute 9502.0425 
governing the physical environments of day care facilities. The proposed text amendment is identical to a 
previous zoning ordinance amendment from 2017 that was approved by City Council and the requirement of an 

76

Item 4.



 Page 3 
 

 
approved written plan will benefit providers as well as the City to ensure that public access of the parks is not 
compromised. 
 
In this regard, the following Zoning Ordinance modification to City Code 9.107 Specific Development Standards 
is recommended by Staff and is highlighted in red: 
 

1. The existing specific development standards for Day Care Centers shall be amended to include additional 
language for “child day care facilities” that specifies that if a subject property does not have sufficient 
outdoor play area on-site, then  the property owner must submit a written proposal that demonstrates 
that recreational activities for adults under the facility’s care will be provided off-site subject to approval 
or denial by the City Manager or their designee. 

 
(C) Specific development standards. The following uses are subject to specific development standards:  
 
 (16) Day care center 

(c) For child day care facilities, at least 75 square feet of outdoor play area shall be 
provided for each child under care. If there is not sufficient space for an outdoor play area 
on-site, then the property owner must submit a written proposal that demonstrates 
recreational activities for children under the facility’s care will be provided off-site within 
1,500 feet of the facility.  

 
Staff Review 
 
The Public Works Department, Police Department, and Fire Department have been provided copies of the 
application materials and had no concerns regarding the amendment to allow child day care facilities to use a 
public park in lieu of an on-site play area. The City Attorney does not have any concerns regarding liability as 
these businesses are required to carry appropriate insurance to cover any potential damages. The City Building 
Official prepared a memorandum of understanding regarding the importance of accessible playground 
equipment at daycare facilities highlighting inclusivity, physical development, social interaction, legal 
compliance, and community engagement as reasons to consider maintaining the existing code, this memo is 
included as an attachment.  
 
FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Section 9.104 (F) of the Zoning Ordinance outlines certain findings of fact that must be met in order for the 
City to grant approval for a zoning amendment.  The findings are as follows: 
 

(a) The amendment is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
 

The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan identifies establishing and maintaining a strong sense of 
community, strengthening the identity and image of the community as a desirable place to live, work, 
and play, and promoting the safety of residents and ensure a safe environment for pedestrians, 
bicyclists, and other vulnerable roadway users as some of the land use goals and policies.  
 

(b) The amendment is in the public interest and is not solely for the benefit of a single property owner. 
 

77

Item 4.



 Page 4 
 

 
The amendment is in the public interest and not solely for the benefit of a single property owner as the 
property owner has demonstrated a willingness to comply with the current code requirements and this 
has been a barrier to entry for numerous perspective day care providers to the extent that a previous 
zoning text amendment was approved for adult day care facilities. The proposed amendment will allow 
for more child care capacity and remove a barrier to entry for future day care providers while also 
providing the City with greater understanding how public parks are being used.  
 

(c) Where the amendment is to change the zoning classification of a particular property, the existing use 
of the property and the zoning classification of property within the general area of the property in 
question are compatible with the proposed zoning classification. 
 
The amendment is not to change the zoning classification of a particular property and the existing use 
is compatible with the general area of the property.  

 
(d) Where the amendment is to change the zoning classification of a particular property, there has been 

a change in the character or trend of development in the general area of the property in question, 
which has taken place since such property was placed in its current zoning classification. 
The amendment is not to change the zoning classification of a particular property.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend the following to the City Council: 
 

A. Approval of the Zoning Ordinance Amendment which amends City Code 9.107 Specific Development 
Standards for (16) Day Care Centers, allowing for the owner of a child day care center to submit a 
written plan, in lieu of providing an on-site play area, to use an adjacent public park for recreational 
activities subject to approval or denial by the City Manager or their designee. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): 

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Ordinance amendment No. 1697, there being ample copies 
available to the public.  
 
MOTION: Move to recommend that the Planning Commission give a positive recommendation on draft 
Ordinance amendment No. 1697 to City Council to approve draft Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1697 
as presented.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Draft Ordinance No. 1697 
Application 
Applicant Narrative 
Site Location 
Existing Code 
Proposed Code 
State Statute 9502.0425 78

Item 4.



 Page 5 
 

 
Examples of Other City Codes 
Letter to Neighbors 
Public Hearing Notice 
Memorandum of Understanding from the Building Official 
Email from Donna Conwell at 1001 41st Avenue NE 
Email from Jen Kane at 250 44th Avenue NE 
Email from Renee Gowen at 542 Huset Parkway NE 
Email from Steven Stromquist – 649 51st Avenue NE 
Email from Randall Schmit at 3983 Arthur Street NE 

79

Item 4.



Ordinance No.1697 

DRAFT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1697
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9.107 OF THE CITY CODE OF 2005  
RELATING TO CHILD DAY CARE ZONING REGULATIONS 

 
 
The City of Columbia Heights does ordain: 
 
Section 1 
§ 9.107 SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 
City Code of 2005, is proposed to include the following addition and shall hereafter read as follows, to wit: 
 
(C)(16)(c) For child day care facilities, at least 75 square feet of outdoor play area shall be provided for each 
child under care. If there is not sufficient space for an outdoor play area on-site, then the property owner 
must submit a written proposal that demonstrates recreational activities for children under the facility’s care 
will be provided off-site within 1,500 feet of the facility. The City Manager, or his or her designee, is authorized 
to approve or deny this proposal.  
 
Section 2 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 30 days after its passage. 
 
First Reading:  
Offered by:  
Seconded by:  
Roll Call:  
  
Second Reading:  
Offered by:  
Seconded by:  
Roll Call:  
  
Date of Passage:  
 
 
               
       Amáda Márquez Simula, Mayor 
Attest:  
 
 
        
Sara Ion, City Clerk/Council Secretary 
 
 

80

Item 4.



81

Item 4.



82

Item 4.



83

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: John D Anderson <jdadesignarch@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 12:01 PM
To: Andrew Boucher
Subject: Re: johnny five

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Andrew, and thank you for your follow up. 
 
Here is the text we are proposing. It matches the state statues very closely. 
 
........" For child day care facilities, at least 75 square feet of outside play area shall be provided for each 
child under care. The outdoor play area provided shall be either on the premises, or offsite. 
Outdoor activity area: Outdoor space must be at least 1,500 square feet total and at least 75 square feet 
per child; If offsite, be within 2000 feet of the center; be enclosed if adjacent to traffic and other hazards; 
be free of litter and other hazards; and have the required outdoor large muscle equipment." 
  
Indoor space: The licensed capacity is limited by the amount of indoor space. A minimum of 35 square 
feet is required for each child. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thank Andrew 
 
On Tue, Mar 26, 2024 at 10:57 AM Andrew Boucher <ABoucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> wrote: 

John, 

  

I just wanted to confirm that you received my email yesterday;  

  

(16)   Day care center. 

         (a)   The building and any exterior fenced areas shall meet the setback requirements for a principal structure 
in the zoning district in which the use is located. 

         (b)   The play area shall be located away from the main entrance to day care, and shall be contained with a 
fence constructed of masonry, painted or treated wood or metal, at least five feet in height. 

         (c)   For child day care facilities, at least 75 square feet of outside play area shall be provided for each child 
under care. 

84

Item 4.



2

         (d)   For adult day care facilities, at least 150 square feet of outdoor area for seating or exercise shall be 
provided. If 150 square feet of outdoor is not available on the site, the property owner must submit a written 
proposal that demonstrates that recreational activities for adults under the facility’s care will be provided off-site. 
The City Manager, or his or her designee, is authorized to approve or deny this proposal. 

         (e)   The use shall provide a designated area for the short-term parking of vehicles engaged in loading and 
unloading of children or adults under care. The designated area shall be located as close as practical to the 
principal entrance of the building and shall be connected to the building by a sidewalk. 

         (f)   To the extent practical, new construction or additions to existing buildings shall be complementary and 
compatible with the scale and character of the surroundings and exterior materials shall be compatible with 
those used in the immediate neighborhood. 

         (g)   An appropriate transition area between the use and adjacent property shall be provided by landscaping, 
screening or other site improvements consistent with the character of the neighborhood. 

         (h)   The facility shall meet all applicable housing, building and fire codes and be licensed as required by the 
State of Minnesota. 

         (i)   Day care centers located in a school or religious institution building originally constructed for use as a 
school or religious institution shall be considered a permitted accessory use, provided the standards contained 
herein are met. 

         (j)   Day care centers located within an existing commercial or industrial facility and used only by employees 
of the operation conducted on the site shall be considered a permitted accessory use, provided the standards 
contained herein are met. 

  

  

Here is the existing text, please let me know what you would like the proposed language to be. 

  

Thanks, 

  

Andrew 

  

From: John D Anderson <jdadesignarch@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 25, 2024 3:40 PM 
To: Andrew Boucher <ABoucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> 
Subject: Re: johnny five 

  

Hi Andrew, 

85

Item 4.



86

Item 4.



9502.0425 PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT.

Subpart 1. Indoor space. The licensed capacity of the day care residence must be limited by
the amount of usable indoor space available to children. A minimum of 35 square feet of usable
indoor space is required per child.

A. Bathrooms, closets, space occupied by major appliances, and other space not used by
children may not be counted as usable space. Space occupied by adult furniture, if it is used by
children, may be counted as usable indoor space.

B. Usable indoor space may include a basement if it has been inspected by a fire marshal,
is free of hazard, and meets the minimum exiting standards specified in subpart 4.

Subp. 2. Outdoor play space. There must be an outdoor play space of at least 50 square feet
per child in attendance, adjacent to the residence, for regular use, or a park, playground, or play
space within 1,500 feet of the residence. On-site supervision must be provided by a caregiver for
children of less than school age when play space is not adjacent to the residence. Enclosure may
be required by the agency to provide protection from rail, traffic, water, or machinery hazard. The
area must be free of litter, rubbish, toxic materials, water hazards, machinery, unlocked vehicles,
human or animal wastes, and sewage contaminants.

Subp. 3. Water hazards. Swimming and wading pools, beaches, or other bodies of water on
or adjacent to the site of the residence must be inaccessible to children except during periods of
supervised use. Wading pools, as defined in chapter 4717, must be kept clean. When children use
a swimming pool, as defined in chapter 4717, or beach, an attendant trained in first aid and
resuscitation shall be present. Any public swimming pool, as defined in chapter 4717, used by
children must meet the requirements of chapter 4717.

Subp. 4. [Repealed, L 2019 1Sp9 art 2 s 134]

Subp. 5. Occupancy separations. Day care residences with an attached garage must have a
self-closing, tight fitting solid wood bonded core door at least 1-3/8 inch thick, or door with a fire
protection rating of 20 minutes or greater and a separation wall consisting of 5/8 inch thick gypsum
wallboard or its equivalent on the garage side between the residence and garage.

Subp. 6. Vertical separations. For group family day care homes with a licensed capacity of
more than ten children, a 1-3/4 inch solid wood core door or a door and frame with at least a
20-minute fire protection rating, must be provided whenever more than two floors of the residence
are connected. These doors must be equipped with self-closing devices.

Subp. 7. Heating and venting systems. The following heating and venting guidelines must
be met:

A. Stove and heater locations must not block escape in case of a fire.

B. Gas, coal, wood, kerosene, or oil heaters must be vented to the outside in accordance
with the State Building Code.

Copyright © 2019 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.

9502.0425MINNESOTA RULES1

87

Item 4.



C. Combustible items must not be located within 36 inches of the furnace or other heating
sources.

D. Whenever in use, fireplaces, wood-burning stoves, solid fuel appliances, space heaters,
steam radiators, and other potentially hot surfaces, such as steam pipes, must be protected by guards
to prevent burns. All fireplaces, wood-burning stoves, space heaters, steam radiators, and furnaces
must be installed according to the State Building Code.

E. The furnace, hot water heater, and workshop area must be inaccessible to children.
Separation may be by a door, partition, or gate. There must be allowance for air circulation to the
furnace.

F. Ventilation of usable space must meet the requirements of the State Building Code.
Outside doors and windows used for ventilation in summer months must be screened when biting
insects are prevalent.

Subp. 8. Temperature. A minimum temperature of 62 degrees Fahrenheit must be maintained
in indoor areas used by children.

Subp. 9. Infant and newborn sleeping space. There must be a safe, comfortable sleeping
space for each infant and newborn. A crib, portable crib, or playpen with waterproof mattress or
pad must be provided for each infant or newborn in care. The equipment must be of safe and sturdy
construction that conforms to volume 16, parts 1508 to 1508.7 and parts 1509 to 1509.9 of the Code
of Federal Regulations, its successor, or have a bar or rail pattern such that a 2-3/8 inch diameter
sphere cannot pass through. Playpens with mesh sidings must not be used for the care or sleeping
of infants or newborns.

Subp. 10. Stairways. All stairways must meet the following conditions.

A. Stairways of three or more steps must have handrails.

B. Any open area between the handrail and stair tread must be enclosed with a protective
guardrail as specified in the State Building Code. The back of the stair risers must be enclosed.

C. Gates or barriers must be used when children between the ages of 6 and 18 months are
in care.

D. Stairways must be well-lighted, in good repair, and free of clutter and obstructions.

Subp. 11. Decks. Decks, balconies, or lofts used by children more than 30 inches above the
ground or floor must be surrounded by a protective guardrail and be constructed in accordance with
the State Building Code. Wooden decks must be free of splinters and coated with wood preservative,
paint, or constructed with treated wood.

Subp. 12. Locks and latches. Door locks and latches must meet the following guidelines:

A. a closet door latch must be made so that children can open the door from inside the
closet;

Copyright © 2019 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.

2MINNESOTA RULES9502.0425

88

Item 4.



B. every bathroom door lock must permit opening of the locked door from the outside and
the opening device must be readily accessible to all caregivers; and

C. double cylinder (key required both sides) locks on exit doors are prohibited.

Subp. 13. Sewage disposal. Day care residences must have toilet facilities and sewage disposal
systems that conform to the State Building Code or local septic system ordinances. The toilets must
flush thoroughly. Outdoor toilets are permissible when local ordinances allow.

Subp. 14. Construction, remodeling. During construction or remodeling, children shall not
have access to dangerous construction or remodeling areas within or around the residence.

Subp. 15. Interior walls and ceilings. The interior walls and ceilings within the residence, as
well as corridors, stairways, and lobbies must have a flame spread rating of 200 or less.

Subp. 16. [Repealed, L 2019 1Sp9 art 2 s 134]

Subp. 17. [Repealed, L 2019 1Sp9 art 2 s 134]

Subp. 18. Electrical services. The following electrical guidelines must be met:

A. all electric receptacles accessible to children under first grade must be tamper-proof or
shielded when not in use;

B. all major electrical appliances must be properly installed, grounded in accordance with
the state electric code, and in good working order;

C. extension cords shall not be used as a substitute for permanent wiring; extension cords
and flexible cords shall not be affixed to structures, extended through walls, ceilings, floors, under
doors or floor coverings, nor be subject to environmental damage or physical impact; and

D. electrical wiring must be sized to provide for the load and be in good repair.

Subp. 19. Smoking prohibited in group family child care home. Pursuant to Minnesota
Statutes, section 144.414, subdivision 2, smoking is prohibited in a group family child care provider's
home during hours of operation.

Statutory Authority: MS s 14.386; 14.388; 245A.09; 252.28
History: 9 SR 2106; 10 SR 2617; 30 SR 585; L 2019 1Sp9 art 2 s 134
Published Electronically: October 30, 2019

Copyright © 2019 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.

9502.0425MINNESOTA RULES3

89

Item 4.



90

Item 4.



91

Item 4.



92

Item 4.

ABoucher
Typewriter
City of Big Lake



93

Item 4.

ABoucher
Typewriter
City of Minneapolis



3. Specific standards in the B-1, Office Business District.

In addition to the standards specified in subdivision 2, no conditional use permit shall be granted unless the city council determines that
each of the following specific standards will be met.

a)   Business service uses normally associated with office developments and containing limited retail activity:

   1)   shall not result in any exterior building modifications, including truck docks, separate entrances, freestanding signs or overnight
truck parking; and

   2)   shall not exceed more than 25 percent of the gross floor area.

b)   Residential dwelling units:

   1)   building and site design shall provide a quality residential environment which is compatible with the permitted use;

   2)   residential uses must be within an existing building or constructed as part of a mixed use development;

   3)   at least two off-street parking spaces must be provided for the dwelling unit, with such parking to be in a garage, carport or on a
paved area specifically intended for that purpose, but not within a required turnaround;

   4)   the dwelling unit must be in compliance with all applicable building, housing, electrical, plumbing, heating and related city codes;

   5)   the use will be permitted only where the dwelling unit will not have an undue adverse impact on adjacent properties and where
there will not be a substantial alteration of the neighborhood character; and

   6)   the city may require buffering or screening if needed.

c)   Restaurants and cafeterias incorporated within a principal structure and oriented predominantly towards serving the needs of
employees of the surrounding area but excluding drive-up and exterior walk-up facilities:

   1)   only wall mounted signs, subject to the limitations of section 325 of the code of city ordinances, shall be permitted;

   2)   shall not exceed 15 percent of the gross floor area or 3,000 square feet, whichever is less;

   3)   parking and vehicular circulation shall be in compliance with the requirements of section 300.28 of this ordinance and shall be
adequate to accommodate the restaurant;

   4)   shall only be permitted when it can be demonstrated that operation will not significantly lower the existing level of service as
defined by the institute of traffic engineers on streets and intersections; and

   5)   hours of operation shall be limited to 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.

d)   Storage, assembly or servicing incidental to the principal use:

   1)   shall not require any exterior modifications to the structure.

e)   Hospitals and medical clinics:

   1)   shall not be adjacent to low density residential areas;

   2)   site shall have direct access to collector or arterial street as defined in the comprehensive plan; and

   3)   emergency vehicle access shall not be adjacent to or located across a street from any residential use.

f)   Minor manufacturing or assembly incidental to the principal use:

   1)   shall be no outside storage of materials or trucks;

   2)   truck deliveries shall only be permitted when it is evident that they will not detract from the site or adjoining residential areas; and

   3)   shall not exceed 25 percent of the gross floor area.

g)   Heliports:

   1)   shall conform to all applicable federal aviation administration regulations;

   2)   shall establish and utilize approach and departure routes over non-residential areas to the maximum extent possible;

   3)   hours of operation limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., inclusive, excluding emergencies;

   4)   shall not be located within 500 feet of residential areas; and

   5)   shall be provided with a dust free landing pad.

h)   Hotels and motels:

   1)   shall not be located adjacent to any low density residential parcels as identified in the comprehensive plan;

   2)   shall be developed to serve primarily the office district in which the use is located; and

   3)   shall only be permitted when it can be demonstrated that operation will not significantly lower the existing level of service as 94

Item 4.

City of Minnetonka



defined by the institute of traffic engineers on streets and intersections.

i)   Financial institutions, with or without drive-up facilities: drive-through facilities and stacking areas are subject to the following
requirements:

   1)   must not be located adjacent to any residential lot lines;

   2)   must be provided with a suitable visual screen from adjacent properties;

   3)   stacking for a minimum of six cars per aisle must be provided within applicable parking lot setbacks;

   4)   will only be permitted when it can be demonstrated that operation will not significantly lower the existing level of service as
defined by the institute of traffic engineers on streets and intersections; and

   5)   must be subordinate to and associated with a permitted use located within a building on the site.

j)   Licensed day care facilities:

   1)   shall have loading and drop-off points designed to avoid interfering with traffic and pedestrian movements;

   2)   outdoor play areas shall be located and designed in a manner which mitigates visual and noise impacts on adjoining residential
areas;

   3)   one parking space for each six children based on the licensed capacity of the center; and

   4)   shall obtain all applicable state, county and city licenses.

k)   Cemeteries:

   1)   minimum lot size of five acres;

   2)   located in proximity to a collector or arterial roadway as identified in the comprehensive plan or otherwise located so that access
can be provided without conducting significant traffic on local residential streets;

   3)   direct views from all adjoining residential parcels shall be buffered by appropriate means; and

   4)   site and building plan subject to review pursuant to section 300.27 of this ordinance.

l)   Marinas:

   1)   minimum lot size of two acres;

   2)   located in proximity to a collector or arterial roadway as identified in the comprehensive plan or otherwise located so that access
can be provided without conducting significant traffic on local residential streets;

   3)   direct views from all adjoining areas shall be screened, with particular attention to screening exterior storage;

   4)   approval by city fire marshal and by all governmental agencies having jurisdiction over adjacent body of water; and

   5)   site and building plan subject to review pursuant to section 300.27 of this ordinance.

m)   Public buildings or facilities and cabinets larger than 150 cubic feet that hold utility equipment:

   1)   site and building plan subject to review pursuant to section 300.27 of this ordinance.

n)   Telecommunications facilities are subject to the provisions of Section 300.34.

o)   Utility poles and appurtenances (such as wires) that are over 60 feet in height and freestanding upon the ground, transmission lines
that are not subject to state review under the Minnesota power plant siting act, and substations and other related facilities:

   Phase I (Application for Conditional Use Permit):

   1)   The applicant must first participate in a task force study with city staff. The task force may also include landowners representing
residential interests that may be affected. The task force will review alternatives for the proposed location. The applicant must submit an
alternatives analysis to the task force that includes:

      a.   documentation demonstrating the need and purpose for such a facility so that alternatives to the facility can be adequately
assessed;

      b.   all of the alternatives considered by the applicant;

      c.   alternative locations;

      d.   a “no-build” alternative that discusses measures that could be taken in an attempt to meet the documented need without
construction of the facility; and

      e.   designation of the applicant's preferred location.

   2)   The city may retain an independent technical expert paid for by the applicant to assist the task force. The expert must be acceptable
to the applicant, who may not unreasonably withhold this acceptance. The applicant will have five business days to reject the city's
selected expert after receiving notice from the city. If the applicant does not reject the expert within that time, the expert will be deemed95

Item 4.



to be acceptable. The task force will conduct an analysis of the alternatives and present its report to the city council. The council will
narrow the alternatives to two for each facility. One of those alternatives may be a no-build alternative.

   3)   The applicant will then submit an application for a conditional use permit with the following information for each alternative
selected by the city council:

      a.   the cost;

      b.   the amount of vegetation that would be removed or damaged;

      c.   for an electrical transmission line or substation, a summary of current research regarding the health effects of EMF levels,
conducted by health and scientific professionals, including those who do and do not receive utility sponsorship;

      d.   for an electrical transmission line or substation, EMF levels under maximum and average anticipated loading at the base of the
utility poles, underneath the wires between the poles, at ground level above underground wires, at the edge of the property line, at the
edge of the closest habitable building, and at the point above ground where there would be the greatest EMF level;

      e.   for an electrical transmission line or substation, reasonable and prudent measures to minimize EMF levels along all alternative
routes; and

      f.   depictions of the views of the proposed facility, if above ground, from at least two directions selected by city staff.

   4)   All alternative routes for transmission lines must comply with the following unless the applicant shows that this is not reasonable
or prudent:

      a.   the routes must be on or along corridors presently used for public roads, public trails, railroads, or above-ground utilities, or on
corridors which were previously used for such purposes and which are being retained for future public or utility purposes;

      b.   arterial or collector streets must be used instead of local roadways, except that local roadways may be used where above-ground
electrical lines already exist; and

      c.   platted utility easements in residential zones which do not abut public roads or roadway easements may not be used, unless the
lines are placed underground.

   5)   After receiving a complete application, the planning commission must hold a public hearing on the application. At least 10 days
before this hearing, the city must mail notice of the hearing to all owners of property wholly or partially within a 400-foot radius of any
portion of the alternative locations to be presented to the planning commission.

   6)   The planning commission will recommend a preferred alternative to the city council. The city council will select an alternative for
each facility by a majority vote of the members present. The planning commission and council may impose reasonable conditions as part
of the approval to protect adjacent property and people.

   7)   In making their decisions, the planning commission and city council must consider the following factors:

      a.   the potential adverse aesthetic, economic, environmental, social, health, and safety impacts on adjacent properties or people;

      b.   the potential interference with public use of public property;

      c.   the applicant's need to adequately and reliably serve customers within the relevant service area now and in the foreseeable future;

      d.   compliance with the requirements in subparagraph 4;

      e.   cost; and

      f.   the purposes in section 300.01 and the general standards in section 300.16, subd. 2 and section 300.21, subd. 2.

   8)   The applicant may notify the city and request selection of a different alternative after the council's action if the applicant believes
that it cannot use the selected alternative because of a reason that was beyond its own control and not apparent during the selection
process. The council will choose a different alternative if it finds that the applicant is prevented from the using the selected location.

   Phase II (Site Plan Review):

   9)   The applicant must apply for site plan approval after receiving the conditional use permit and before beginning construction. At the
applicant’s request, the city council may choose to consider the site plan at the time of the conditional use permit. The application must
comply with the conditions specified in paragraphs (9) through (13). The applicant must obtain sufficient interest in the property needed
for that alternative before applying for the approval. The city planner must reject an application for a location other than the selected
alternative, and it will not be considered.

   10)   The applicant must submit a landscape plan prepared by a registered landscape architect. The plan must be designed to mitigate
the amount of trees removed for the facility and must minimize the visual impact on abutting properties caused by the facility. The
landscape plan will be subject to review and approval by the city pursuant to section 300.27, subd. 14 through subd. 19 of this code,
except the minimum landscape requirements in subd. 15(a). The applicant must submit financial security acceptable to the city to ensure
compliance and must install and maintain the landscaping in compliance with those code provisions and the plan as approved by the city.
With the concurrence of the abutting property owner, the landscape plan may include plantings on abutting property. In that case, the
applicant will be responsible for installation, and the abutting property owner will be responsible for the maintenance of the landscaping.

   11)   The applicant must design the facility to minimize its visual impact. The applicant must submit configuration, material and color
options that are technically feasible. The city may require the applicant to design the facility in a manner that reduces the visual impact 96

Item 4.



of the project, including regulating the height and spacing of utility poles. Utility poles may not exceed 80 feet in height, except when
needed to cross a major roadway such as a freeway.

   12)   The facility must not interfere with the use of public right-of-way, including use for vehicular and pedestrian travel, snow storage,
and lateral support.

   13)   The applicant and any subsequent owner must continually maintain the facility in good condition, including repainting or
restaining deteriorated surface finishes, securing poles and guy wires to the ground, and replacing poles that are in a deteriorated
condition.

(Amended by Ord. 2016-08, effective May 23, 2016; Amended by Ord. 2014-07, adopted March 24, 2014; amended by Ord. 2012-07,
adopted June 25, 2012; Ord. 2011-02, adopted April 18, 2011; amended by Ord. No. 2023-02, effective February 27, 2023)

97

Item 4.



98

Item 4.

ABoucher
Typewriter
City of Roseville



99

Item 4.



100

Item 4.

ABoucher
Typewriter
City of St. Paul



 

City of Columbia Heights | Community Development Department  
3989 Central Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421  ▪  Ph: 763-706-3670  ▪  Fax: 763-706-3671  ▪  
www.columbiaheightsmn.gov 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Date of Hearing: May 7, 2024 
 
Subject: Public Hearing Notice – Zoning Text Amendment from JDA Design Architects and Mohamed 

Abdulle proposing to amend City Code 9.107 Specific Development Standards related to Day 
Care Centers. 

 
Dear Resident/Affected Property Owner:  
 
The City of Columbia Heights has received a Zoning Text Amendment application from JDA Design Architects 
and Mohamed Abdulle proposing to amend 9.107 Specific Development Standards (C)(16) for Day Care Centers 
and allow for child day care centers to use an adjacent public park within 1,500 feet of the property in lieu of 
an on-site play area. Section 9.104 (F) of the Zoning Ordinance requires the Planning Commission to hold a 
public hearing on the zoning amendment and make findings before submitting a recommendation to City 
Council.  
 
You are receiving this notice because the property that you own (Affected Property), and/or reside in, is located 
within 350 feet of the Subject Property. The Planning Commission of the City of Columbia Heights will hold a 
Public Hearing on this matter on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of Columbia 
Heights City Hall, located at 3989 Central Avenue NE. A map of the Subject Property is attached. A full copy of 
the application is on file at City Hall and is available for review upon request.  
 
You are welcomed and encouraged to participate in the Public Hearing for this matter by attending the May 7, 
2024 Planning Commission meeting.  If you cannot attend the meeting, but would like to provide input, you 
can submit correspondence via email to aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov or by mail at: 
 
City of Columbia Heights 
Attn: Community Development 
3989 Central Avenue NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 55421 
 
You can participate in the meeting live and online by using Microsoft Teams at the login link below or call-in: 
 
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting Online 

Meeting ID: 252 58 988 371 
Passcode: ugquG3 
 
Dial-in for Microsoft Teams Meeting 

+1-312-626-6799 
 
 
If you have any questions about this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact the City of Columbia Heights 
Community Development Division at (763) 706-3673. 
 
 

101

Item 4.

http://www.columbiaheightsmn.gov/
mailto:aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov


 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Andrew Boucher 
Community Development Planner, City of Columbia Heights 
 
 
** Landowners (Commercial and Residential): If you do not reside on the Affected Property, located 350 feet 
from the Subject Property, it is your responsibility to share this notice with your tenants. This notice should be 
posted in a public place on your property or mailed directly to the tenants residing or leasing space on the 
Affected Property. 
 

 
-SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATION- 

(Highlighted in yellow) 

 

102

Item 4.



-Public Notice Ad Proof-

 
 Ad ID: 1388296
 Copy LIne: May 7 PH Zoning Text Amendment

 PO Number: 
 Start: 04/19/24
 Stop: 04/19/2024
 Total Cost: $57.50
 # of Lines: 44
 Total Depth: 4.917
 # of Inserts:  1
 Ad Class: 150
 Phone # (763) 691-6000
 Email: publicnotice@apgecm.com
 Rep No: CA700

 Date: 04/15/24
 
 Account #: 414681

 Customer: CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS
 

 Address: 3989 CENTRAL AVE NE
  COLUMBIA HEIGHTS

 Telephone: (763) 767-6580
 Fax: (763) 706-3637

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates
indicated below. Please proof read carefully. If changes are needed,

please contact us prior to deadline at
Cambridge (763) 691-6000 or email at publicnotice@apgecm.com 

Ad Proof
Not Actual Size

Publications: 
BSLP Col Hght Frid Life

Contract-Gross

CITY OF 
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the 
Planning Commission of the City 
of Columbia Heights will conduct 
a public hearing in the City Council 
Chambers of City Hall at 3989 Cen-
tral Avenue NE on Tuesday, May 
7, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.  The order of 
business is as follows: 

A request for a Zoning Text 
Amendment from the JDA Design 
Architects and Mohamed Abdulle 
proposing to amend City Code 
9.107 Specific Development Stan-
dards (C)(16) Day Care Centers and 
include language allowing child 
day care facilities to utilize an ad-
jacent public park to the property 
within 1,500 feet. Section 9.104 (F) 
of the Zoning Ordinance requires 
the Planning Commission to hold 
a public hearing on the zoning 
amendment and make findings be-
fore submitting a recommendation 
to City Council.

Notice is hereby given that all 
persons having an interest will be 
given an opportunity to be heard.  
For questions, contact Andrew 
Boucher, City Planner, at (763) 706-
3673.

Published in
The Life 

April 19, 2024
1388296

103

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: Donna Conwell <dsc01@comcast.net>
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 11:09 AM
To: Andrew Boucher
Subject: Regarding Public Hearing Notice to Amend City Code 9.107 Related to Day Care Centers

SUBJECT: Public Hearing Notice - Zoning Text Amendment from JDA Design Architects and Mohamed Abdulle proposing to amend 
City Code 9.107 Specific Development Standards related to Day Care Centers (Date of hearing May 7, 2024)  
   
To Whom It May Concern:  
   
I am writing in response to a notice of public hearing I recently received related to the subject cited above.  The notice states the 
amendment relates to specific development standards for day care centers and would "allow for child day care centers to use an 
adjacent public park within 1,500 feet of the property in lieu of an on-site play area.  While I am in full support of children and their right 
and need to play, I am do not support using public park space by day care centers, including private or public schools, for this 
purpose.  These businesses should provide their own recreational facilities and equipment for use by the children they are paid to care 
for.  Public parks are for the use of all residents and their individual children.  To have access to recreational equipment (e.g., swings, 
slides, etc.) essentially obstructed by a day care center business for use by its customers is not an acceptable use of these public 
areas, facilities, and equipment. For the record, I have no objection to day care operated out of someone's individual home using a local 
public park for the benefit of the children in their care.   
   
Respectfully,  
   
Donna Conwell  
(Columbia Heights, MN, Labelle Park area resident)  

104

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: Jennifer Kane <jekane32@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 11:28 AM
To: Andrew Boucher
Subject: Re: FW: Zoning Text Amendment

Hi Andrew, 
 
Ques ons I have: 
 
What degree of full park access will the daycare children have: will it be possible that the children approach fence lines in 
their play (and thereby poten ally trigger unsupervised dogs in those back yards).  I have a large dog. He is protec ve of 
his yard and will charge and bark at unknown people who approach the backyard gate to my property. We have a Beware 
of Dog sign on the gate. 
 
What hours will daycare children be at play in the park. Will there be a predictable schedule that the daycare follows 
(that we can follow or be aware of also). 
 
Can property owners or community ci zens use the park at will (with dogs and children/grandchildren) while daycare 
children are there playing. 
 
Discussion of increase in discarded trash or forgo en clothing/toys if this moves ahead. 
 
A benefit of the proposal: this could result in the park maintenance schedule being a ended to with more diligence. 1)  
the dandelions being sprayed; 2) the park being mowed regularly; 3) s cks and brush being raked and collected from the 
large sandbox area; 4) basketball hoops being repaired; and  5) the interior park fence lines being maintained and 
trimmed. 
 
 
Thanks Andrew, 
 
Jen Kane 
250 44th Avenue NE 
Columbia Heights 
 
 
 
 
On Mon, Apr 22, 2024 at 11:00 AM Andrew Boucher <ABoucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> wrote: 
> 
> 
> 
> -----Original Message----- 
> From: Andrew Boucher 
> Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 12:05 PM 
> Cc: Aaron Chirpich <AChirpich@columbiaheightsmn.gov>; Mitchell Forney  
> <MForney@columbiaheightsmn.gov> 
> Subject: RE: Zoning Text Amendment 
> 

105

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: RENEE GOWAN <rcgowan@comcast.net>
Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 3:04 PM
To: Andrew Boucher
Cc: Aaron Chirpich
Subject: Re: FW: Zoning Text Amendment

Andrew  
Thank you for speaking with me today and providing input regarding day care centers and the use of 
public parks.  My question are as follows:  
   
Would the addition of these day care centers be a burden to what I can assume are limited crews for 
maintenance and trash removal?  As I stated to you, I live directly across from Huset Park and the 
children and parents leave an enormous amount of trash daily which I pick up so I am not ashamed of 
where I live.  
Are there monies designated for daily clean up in these parks?  
   
How many people will be supervising the children daily?  We have had buses of children at Huset Park 
who took over the entire play area and other children would just leave the area.  Also how will our 
residents be able to walk dogs or want to have picnics on the grounds at the same time?  Will our 
Association be paying higher taxes for the centers?   Thank you and I look forward to meeting you on May 
7.  
 
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

On 04/22/2024 2:14 PM CDT Andrew Boucher <aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> 
wrote:  
   
   
Renee,  
   
Thank you for reaching out. The zoning text amendment is associated with a 
redevelopment project at 2201 37th Ave NE, which had previously received a Conditional 
Use Permit for a banquet hall/event space last July, but the owner (Mohamed Abdulle) also 
had some other speculative spaces for retail and office space before ultimately finding a 
tenant interested in opening a day care center. During the development process, there 
were difficulties in accommodating the on-site play area requirement for child day care 
centers. Mr. Abdulle engaged the services of JDA Design Architects to prepare some of 
their plans for the building construction as well as the prepare the zoning text amendment 

106

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: STEVEN STROMQUIST <s7even.roy@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 12:56 PM
To: Andrew Boucher
Cc: Aaron Chirpich; Mitchell Forney
Subject: Re: Zoning Text Amendment 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Thank you, Mr. Boucher for your quick and informa ve response. I’ll have to read it over again to really understand it! I 
certainly support addi onal affordable daycare for our city.  
Steve 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
> On Apr 19, 2024, at 12:05 PM, Andrew Boucher <ABoucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> wrote: 
>  
> Hey Steve, 
>  
> Thank you for reaching out. The zoning text amendment is associated with a redevelopment project at 2201 37th Ave 
NE, which had previously received a Condi onal Use Permit for a banquet hall/event space last July, but the owner 
(Mohamed Abdulle) also had some other specula ve spaces for retail and office space before ul mately finding a tenant 
interested in opening a day care center. During the development process, there were difficul es in accommoda ng the 
on-site play area requirement for child day care centers. Mr. Abdulle engaged the services of JDA Design Architects to 
prepare some of their plans for the building construc on as well as the prepare the zoning text amendment to amend 
the City Code and bring it into alignment with MN State Statute 9502.0425 (Physical Environment) which allows for a 
public park to be used if on-site outdoor play areas are not feasible on the subject property. 
>  
> This zoning text amendment would apply to all day care centers, but not necessarily all parks because some city parks 
are outside the maximum distance of 1,500 feet from commercially zoned proper es where day care centers would be 
allowed; the parks that this zoning text amendment would apply to are: 
>  
> - Edgemoor Park 
> - Gauvi e Park 
> - Huset Park 
> - Labelle Park 
> - Prestemon Park 
> - Sullivan Lake Park 
>  
> The remaining parks are either outside the distance allowed for a day care to use the park or the parks do not have any 
zones where day cares would be allowed. There are approximately 11 day care centers in Columbia Heights that this 
would apply to, but from my analysis, the vast majority of these day care centers already have on-site play areas or other 
built in ameni es. Day care centers do not pay the city for licensure as they are licensed through the state, but they do 
pay city taxes. I've included our Community Development Coordinator, Mitch Forney, on this email so we can look further 
into the taxes, but they likely pay the same or similar taxes to what other businesses do. 
>  
> This is not the first me a zoning text amendment has been applied for, the City processed and approved a zoning text 
amendment for Adult Day Care Centers on June 12, 2017 allowing them to prepare a wri en proposal demonstra ng 

107

Item 4.



2

recrea onal ac vi es for adults under the facility's care provided off-site. I've a ached a copy of that ordinance changing 
the language for adult day care centers to be able to use a public park to meet their outdoor area requirements, I 
an cipate that this zoning text amendment would be iden cal to the one that was previously approved given that the 
uses are incredibly similar and in alignment with State Statute requirements in 9502.0425. 
>  
> Please let me know if you have any ques ons and I'm happy to discuss  
> this further, 
>  
> Thanks, 
>  
> Andrew 
>  
>  
> Andrew Boucher, AICP | City Planner 
> City of Columbia Heights | Community Development Department 
> 3989 Central Avenue NE | Columbia Heights, MN 55421  
> aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov 
>  
>  
>  
> Direct: 763-706-3673 | Main: 763-706-3670 
>  
>  
>  
>  
>  
>  
> -----Original Message----- 
> From: STEVEN STROMQUIST <s7even.roy@icloud.com> 
> Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 11:10 AM 
> To: Andrew Boucher <ABoucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov> 
> Subject: Zoning Text Amendment 
>  
> Re: May 7 Hearing 
> Where exactly are the proper es located? Several widely spaced parks are highlighted on map. 
> Is new construc on planned? 
> Who is JDA Design Architects & why are they involved? Who is Mohamed Abdullah? Is he a Columbia Heights resident. 
Is he owner of said day care centers? Would this amendment apply to all day care providers? How many daycare 
providers are there in Heights to which this amendment would apply? How much to daycare facili es pay to the city for 
cer fica on? Do they pay city taxes & employment taxes & property taxes? 
> Given that there may be many daycare facili es in Heights homes, is this the first me a N Zoning Text Amendment has 
been applied for? 
> Thank you, 
> Steve Stromquist 
> 649 51st Ave NE 
> COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 
>  
> Sent from my iPhone 
>  
> ________________________________ 
>  

108

Item 4.



3

> Disclaimer: Informa on in this message or a achment may be government data and thereby subject to the Minnesota 
Government Data Prac ces Act; may be subject to a orney-client or work product privilege; may be confiden al, 
privileged, proprietary, or otherwise protected. The unauthorized review, copying, retransmission, or other use or 
disclosure of the informa on is strictly prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, please 
immediately no fy the sender of the transmission error and then promptly delete this message from your computer 
system. 
> <1641.pdf> 

109

Item 4.



1

Andrew Boucher

From: Randy Red <rps4thejob2015@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, April 28, 2024 3:28 AM
To: Andrew Boucher
Subject: Zoning Text Amendment - JDA Design Architects and Mohamed Abdulle

I Randall Schmit residing at 3983 Arthur Street NE,  am against the proposal to amend 9.107 Specific Development Standards (C) (16) for 
Day Care Centers.  
 
I vote no to allow Day Care Centers to use an adjacent public park within 1500 feet of the property in lieu of an on site play area. 
 
Sincerely,  
Randall P. Schmit  

110

Item 4.



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA SECTION PUBLIC HEARINGS 

MEETING DATE MAY 7, 2024 

 

ITEM: Minor Subdivision for 5085 Central Avenue NE 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner 

 
CASE NUMBER: 2024-0507 

APPLICANT:   Terron Wright of the Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank 

DEVELOPMENT: Minor Subdivision of a portion of the parking lot of La Casita (5085 Central Avenue NE) 
to create a separate lot for a new construction Chase Bank with a drive-thru ATM. 

LOCATION:  5085 Central Avenue NE  

REQUEST:  Minor Subdivision  

PREPARED BY:  Andrew Boucher, City Planner  
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank and La Casita has requested approval of a Minor 
Subdivision proposing to split a portion of the La Casita parking lot into two separate parcels and in 
preparation of construction of a new 3,365 square foot banking facility with a drive-thru ATM on the proposed 
parcel located at 5085 Central Avenue NE (between 51st Ave/CT NE and Central Avenue NE). 
 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide the existing 1.67 acre parcel and remove 52 of the 135 parking spaces 
on-site to create two separate lots, the La Casita parcel would be 1.18 acres and the Chase Bank parcel (5075 
Central Avenue) would be 0.48 acres. The subject site is located at the northern end of the municipal 
boundary along Central Avenue and the surrounding adjacent properties are all zoned for Commercial use 
through the General Business District; further to the south, east, and west of those commercial properties are 
pockets of multi-family, duplexes, and single-family residential zoning adjacent to Central Avenue. The subject 
site is zoned, General Business District, and the use as a financial institution with a drive-thru ATM is permitted 
use in the district subject to Specific Development Standards 9.107 (18) for a drive-up facility.  
 
The proposed subdivision would reduce the required parking for the restaurant to 83 parking spaces which is 
below the minimum requirements of 91 parking spaces for the restaurant, a deficit of 8 spaces. A total of 20 
parking spaces are required for the financial institution, one (1) per 300 gross floor area and up to nine (9) 
employees at any one time; the applicant is proposing 14 parking spaces creating a combined deficit of 14 
spaces. A shared parking agreement is a necessary condition of approval subject to approval by the City 
Attorney and filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within 60 days after approval of the shared 
parking use to ensure that both uses have compliant parking. As conditioned, the proposed minor subdivision 
meets subdivision regulations in accordance with City Code. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

111

Item 5.



 Page 2 
 

 
The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan guides the subject site, as well as properties to the north, south, east and 
west for “commercial land use” with “medium density and low density residential” further to the south and 
east of the commercial parcels.  The Plan describes the “commercial” designation as follows: 
 

The Commercial land use designation is primarily located along major transportation corridors and 
includes a variety of retail uses, services, and office uses.  

 
The subject site also lies within “Opportunity Area #2B” of the Comprehensive Plan which overlays the 
segment of the Central Avenue from 37th Avenue NE to the Fridley Border, specifically between Central 
Avenue NE and 49th Avenue NE.  In this regard, the Plan identifies the area as having development potential 
for future commercial use. Some of the guiding principles for redevelopment include commercial uses with 
appropriate parking and pedestrian accesses to Central Avenue and emphasizing on businesses that provide 
goods or services that appeal to the community at large as well as the adjacent neighborhoods. This area is 
described as having an emphasis on providing sidewalks, four season landscaping, and lighting. 
 
MINOR SUBDIVISION 
ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 
 
Lot Requirements. According to Section 9.110(C) of the Zoning Ordinance, lots within the GB District must 
have a minimum lot area of 6,000 sq. ft. and a minimum lot width of 40 feet. Presently, the La Casita parcel 
(5085 Central Avenue) measures 72,834 sq. ft. with a width of 245 feet. As a result of the proposed minor 
subdivision, the La Casita would retain 51,834 sq. ft. (1.18 acres) and an additional lot would be created 
measuring 21,000 sq. ft. (.48 acres) and a width of 210 feet. Both proposed lots meet the minimum lot area 
and width requirements of the General Business (GB) District.  
 
Setbacks. The proposed minor subdivision will result in changes to the setbacks as La Casita had corner lot 
setback requirements which are now applicable to the proposed lot. The General Business district parking and 
structure setbacks are as follows: 
 

Parking Setbacks: Building Setbacks: 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
5 feet 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
20 feet 

Side:          
0 feet 

 
The proposed minor subdivision configuration would result in the following setbacks for La Casita and Chase 
Bank, respectively: 
 

La Casita Parking Setbacks: La Casita Building Setbacks: 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         
N/A 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
5 feet 

Front:       
48.7 feet 

Corner 
Side:         
N/A 

Rear:  
81.2 feet 

Side:          
84 feet and 

9 feet  

 

Chase Bank Parking Setbacks: Chase Bank Building Setbacks: 

Front:       
18 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
15 feet 

Front:       
42 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
35 feet 

Side:         
15 feet 

112

Item 5.



 Page 3 
 

 
 
Both parcels will have building and parking lot setbacks that conform with 9.110 Commercial Districts (C) Lot 
dimension, height, and bulk requirements. The lot area, setback, height and lot coverage proposed satisfy 
these requirements. 
 
Easements. Easements for drainage and utilities are required to be shown and cover any new drainage way or 
utility on the subject properties. No easements are being proposed to be vacated. As a condition of approval, 
the applicant is responsible for filing and recording any proposed easement with Anoka County Recorder’s 
Office. As a condition of approval, a cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and 
recorded to provide access perpetually for all current and future owners.  
 
The mutual nonexclusive driveway easement recorded in Doc. No. 664049 guarantees that both properties 
have access to right-of-way service, the City Attorney confirming that the recorded easement provides both 
parcels adequate access to the right-of-way. 
 

Recording. As a condition of minor subdivision approval, the applicant will be responsible for the filing the 
approved subdivision with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office. If the minor subdivision is not filed with the 
Anoka County recorder’s Office within one year of the date of City Council approval, it will become invalid. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

Section 9.104 (K) of the Zoning Code outlines specific conditions for the City Council to approve a minor 
subdivision.  They are as follows: 

1. The proposed subdivision of land will not result in more than three lots. 

The proposed subdivision will result in two conforming lots as conditioned. 

2. The proposed subdivision of land does not involve the vacation of existing easements. 

No vacation of existing easements will occur because of the minor subdivision. 

3. All lots to be created by the proposed subdivision conform to lot area and width requirements 
established for the zoning district in which the property is located. 

Both newly created lots will conform to the lot width and lot area requirements of the applicable GB zoning 
designation. 

4. The proposed subdivision does not require the dedication of public rights-of-way for the purpose of 
gaining access to the property. 

The proposed subdivision does not require the dedication of public rights-of-way for the purpose of gaining 
access to the property. 

5. The property has not previously been divided through the minor subdivision provisions of this article. 

The subject property has not previously been subdivided via a minor subdivision process. 

6. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the conveyance of land. 

The proposed subdivision will not hinder the conveyance of land. 

7. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the making of assessments or the keeping of records 
related to assessments. 

113

Item 5.



 Page 4 
 

 
The proposed subdivision is not expected to hinder the making of assessments or the keeping of records 
related to assessments. 

8. The proposed subdivision meets all the design standards specified in Section 9.116. 

As a condition of minor subdivision approval, all applicable design standards of Section 9.116 of the Zoning 
ordinance must be satisfied. 

STAFF REVIEW 
 
The Public Works Department, Police Department, and Fire Department have been provided copies of the 
application materials and the comments from each respective department are attached, if applicable. 
 
In review of the application materials, Public Works/Engineering provided their department’s requirements and 
comments on the proposed plat in a memo dated April 17, 2024, which is referenced as a condition of approval. 
General comments and plat requirements include: 

1. Scheduling a pre-construction conference prior to any land alteration activities beginning;  
2. Showing proposed drainage and utility easements over any new drainage way/utility; 
3. All stormwater best management practices (BMPs) shall have designated drainage and utility easements 

recorded with the Plat or as a separate document at Anoka County. 
 
Public Works and Engineering reviewed the erosion control plan and SWPPP as part of the submitted plan sets 
and had additional comments and requirements that are included in the attached memo, dated April 17, 2024 
and added as conditions of approval for both the minor subdivision and site plan review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend the following to the City Council: 
 

A. Approval of the Minor Subdivision of property located at 5085 Central Avenue NE (PID: 25-30-24-22-
0065) into two separate parcels subject to the following conditions of approval: 
 
1. A shared parking agreement between La Casita and Chase Bank shall be proposed and subject to 

approval by the City Attorney and filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within 60 days 
after approval of the shared parking use to ensure that both uses have compliant parking. 
 

2. The applicant shall be responsible for filing the approved subdivision with the Anoka County 
Recorder’s Office. The approved minor subdivision shall become invalid if the subdivision is not 
filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within one year of the date of City Council approval. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the requirements and comments provided by the City Public Works 
and Engineering Departments in a memo dated April 17, 2024. The applicant is responsible for filing 
and recording any proposed easements with Anoka County Recorder’s Office. 
 

4. A cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and recorded with Anoka 
County Recorder’s Office to provide access perpetually for all current and future owners.  

 
 

114

Item 5.



 Page 5 
 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): 

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution No. 2024-036, a Minor Subdivision for 5085 
Central Avenue NE, there being ample copies available to the public.  
 
MOTION: Move to recommend the Planning Commission give a positive recommendation to draft 
Resolution No. 2024-036, a Minor Subdivision for 5085 Central Avenue NE, and recommend City Council 
approve draft Resolution No. 2024-036 as presented and subject to the conditions of approval listed in the 
draft resolution. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Draft Resolution No. 2024-036 
Minor Subdivision Application 
Applicant Narrative 
Existing Conditions 
Proposed Lot Split 
Recorded Document No. 664049 – Driveway access 
Fire Department Comments 
Engineering/Public Works Comments 
Public Notice to Newspaper  
Public Notice to Neighbors 

115

Item 5.



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-036 

A resolution of the Planning Commission for the City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, 

recommending approval of a Minor Subdivision for the property located at 5085 Central 

Avenue NE (PID: 25-30-24-22-0065) in the City of Columbia Heights, MN; 

Whereas, a proposal (Planning Case # 2024-0507) has been submitted by Terron Wright of the 

Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank and La Casita as the property owner to the 

Planning Commission requesting approval of a Minor Subdivision at the following location: 

ADDRESS: 5085 Central Avenue NE (PID: 25-30-24-22-0065) 

EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   

That part of Lot 1, Block 1, COLUMBIA COURT, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying Westerly of a 

line described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1, thence South 89 degrees 56 minutes 00 

seconds West, assumed basis for bearings, 150.00 feet along the North line of said Lot 1, to the 

point of beginning of the line to be described, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds 

East a distance of 236.51 feet, thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds West a distance 

of 35.00 feet, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds East a distance of 80.00 feet to a 

point on the South line of said Lot 1, distance of 185.00 feet Westerly from Southeast corner of 

said Lot 1, and said line there terminating. 

PROPOSED LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS: 

Parcel 1 (5085 Central Avenue NE)  

That part of Lot 1, Block 1, COLUMBIA COURT, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying Westerly of a 

line described as follows: 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1, thence South 89 degrees 56 minutes 00 

seconds West, assumed basis for bearings, 150.00 feet along the North line of said Lot 1, to the 

point of beginning of the line to be described, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds 

East a distance of 236.51 feet, thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds West a distance 

of 35.00 feet, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds East a distance of 80.00 feet to a 

point on the South line of said Lot 1, distance of 185.00 feet Westerly from Southeast corner of 

said Lot 1, and said line there terminating. 

Excepting the west 210 feet of the south 100 feet thereof. 

 

116

Item 5.



 

 

Parcel 2 (5075 Central Avenue – Chase Bank Parcel) 

The west 210 feet of the south 100 feet of that part of Lot 1, Block 1, COLUMBIA COURT, Anoka 

County, Minnesota, lying Westerly of a line described as follows. 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1, thence South 89 degrees 56 minutes 00 

seconds West, assumed basis for bearings, 150.00 feet along the North line of said Lot 1, to the 

point of beginning of the line to be described, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds 

East a distance of 236.51 feet, thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds West a distance 

of 35.00 feet, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds East a distance of 80.00 feet to a 

point on the South line of said Lot 1, distance of 185.00 feet Westerly from Southeast corner of 

said Lot 1, and said line there terminating. 

THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Minor Subdivision to subdivide a 1.67 acre lot into two separate 1.18 and 0.48 acre 

parcels to accommodate a new construction banking facility and maintaining the 

existing restaurant and parking lot in accordance with City Code Section 9.104 (K).  

Whereas, the Planning Commission held a public hearing as required by the City Zoning Code 

on May 7, 2024; 

Whereas, the Planning Commission has considered the advice and recommendations of the 

Planning Commission regarding the effect of the proposed minor subdivision upon the health, 

safety, and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concern 

related to traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety, in the 

surrounding area; 

Now, therefore, in accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the 

City of Columbia Heights, the City of Columbia Heights Planning Commission makes the 

following: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The proposed subdivision of land will not result in more than three lots. 

2. The proposed subdivision of land does not involve the vacation of existing easements. 

3. All lots to be created by the proposed subdivision conform to lot area and width 
requirements established for the zoning district in which the property is located. 

4. The proposed subdivision does not require the dedication of public rights-of-way for the 
purpose of gaining access to the property. 

5. The property has not previously been divided through the minor subdivision provisions 
of this article. 

117

Item 5.



 

 

6. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the conveyance of land. 

7. The proposed subdivision does not hinder the making of assessments or the keeping of 
records related to assessments. 

8. The proposed subdivision meets all the design standards specified in Section 9.116. 
 
 

CONDITIONS 

1. A shared parking agreement between La Casita and Chase Bank shall be proposed and 

subject to approval by the City Attorney and filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s 

Office within 60 days after approval of the shared parking use to ensure that both uses 

have compliant parking. 

2. The applicant shall be responsible for filing the approved subdivision with the Anoka 

County Recorder’s Office. The approved minor subdivision shall become invalid if the 

subdivision is not filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within one year of the 

date of City Council approval. 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the requirements and comments provided by the City 

Public Works and Engineering Departments in a memo dated April 17, 2024. The 

applicant is responsible for filing and recording any proposed easements with Anoka 

County Recorder’s Office. 

4. A cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and recorded 

with Anoka County Recorder’s Office to provide access perpetually for all current and 

future owners.  

  

118

Item 5.



 

 

 

 
Passed this 7th day of May, 2024 
 
Offered by:  
Seconded 
by: 

 

Roll Call:  
 
 
              
       Clara Wolfe, Chair 
Attest: 
 
 
        
Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
 

 

 

119

Item 5.



Page 1 of 2 

Community Development Department 

590 40th Ave. NE. Columbia Heights, MN 55421 

Phone: (763) 706-3670 

MINOR SUBDIVISION (LOT SPLIT) APPLICATION 

ORDINANCE NO. 9.104 (K), 9.116 (C), 9.116 (D) 

This application is subject to review and acceptance by the City.  Applications will be processed only if all 

required items are submitted. 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Project Address/Location: ________________________________________________________________________ 
Legal Description of property: _____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Present use of property: _________________________________________________________________________ 
Proposed use of property: ________________________________________________________________________ 
Does the proposed lot split create a buildable lot?     ______ Yes      ______No 

PROPERTY OWNER (As it appears on property title): 
Company Name/Individual (please print): SAH Partnerhip____________________________________________
Contact Person (please print):  _____Chad Anvary__________________________________________________
Mailing Address:4737 CR 101, Suite 243__________________________________________________________
City: ____Minnetonka________________     State:__MN______      Zip: ____55345_____________________
Daytime Phone: ______612-385-3797________  Cell Phone: _____612-385-3797___________________________
Email Address: _chadanvary@outlook.com__________________________________________________________

Signature/Date: __________4/3/24___________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT: 
Company Name/Individual (please print): ___________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person (please print):  ____________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
City: ______________________________     State:_____________      Zip: _________________________________ 
Daytime Phone: __________________________  Cell Phone: ___________________________________________ 
Email Address: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature/Date: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Terron Wright
The Architects Partnership, LTD.

200 S Michigan Ave.

Chicago IL 60604
561-628-9845

wright@tapchicago.com

03/26/2024

5085 Central Ave NE.
See attached.

Restaurant's parking lot
Financial institution

    X

120

Item 5.



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST  (please attach a written narrative that describes how the proposed subdivision will be 
comparable to those lots already existing in the immediate neighborhood.  There are some platted residential lots 
within the City that are different than the current standards.  In reviewing requests for approval of lot splits in such 
areas, the City is particularly interested in determining that the lots to be created will be consistent with the 
character of the surrounding area.   
 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
CASE NO: _______________________                                  
APPLICATION REC’D BY: ________________________                DATE APPLICATION REC’D: _______________ 
$275.00 APPLICATION FEE REC’D: _____________________     RECEIPT NUMBER: ____________________                          
 

 

      Approved by Planning & Zoning Commission on ____________ 

       Approved by City Council on _____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revised June 2017 

121

Item 5.



  The Architects Partnership, Ltd.  200 South Michigan Avenue, Suite 1020, Chicago, IL 60604 

 
 
Aaron Chirpich 
Community Development  
Director   
City of Columbia Heights  
3989 Central Ave. NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 
 
April 01, 2024 
 
Re: Project narrative for the property NEC Central Ave. and 51st Ave. 
 
Dear Mr. Chirpich, 
 
This  letter  is  to detail our application  for Site plan Review and Minor subdivision  to build a new single‐
story +/‐ 3,384 SF freestanding retail banking center with an attached ATM drive up lane.  
The  proposed  Chase  Bank  building,  DU  ATM  lane  and  associated  parking  lot  will  be  located  at  the 
northeast  corner  of  Central  Avenue  and  51st  Avenue.  The  new  parking  and  landscaping  will  be 
implemented  to  improve  the  aesthetics  of  the  area.  The  proposed  bank  intends  to  complement  the 
architecture of the area to boost commercial activity within the Village. Secondly, the aim of this branch is 
to bring more job opportunities to the area to contribute to the economic growth of the community.  
 
As previously mentioned, the design intent of the proposed Chase Bank is to complement the surrounding 
architecture of the area. The proposed Banking Center is comprised of cultured stone (hewn stone color), 
fiber cement panels in color “Ash” and “Bark”, ACM in “DG Silver”, along with a black anodized storefront 
system,  and  clear  glassing.  All  the  exterior  cladding  options  are modern  finishes  and  are  long  lasting 
cladding  materials  that  will  mesh  well  with  the  development  growth  of  the  area.  Additionally,  the 
proposed  floor  to  ceiling  glazing  was  incorporated  to  provide  connectivity  to  the  retail  customers 
navigating the area and pedestrians traversing the adjacent public thoroughfares.  
 
Lighting Design and Locations: 
 
To  provide  the  best  and most  efficient  lighting  design  and  locations,  a  photometric  study  has  been 
developed and  included  in this submittal. A fully new  layout of site  lighting will be proposed along with 
complementary architectural lighting within the building which will enrich the architectural design of the 
site at night and will also add to the security for the users during night hours.  
 
Sustainability Components: 
 

The  project  will  contain  the  following  components  which  would  contribute  to  sustainability 
practices the Village is encouraging:  
 

 Installation of additional trees/landscaping within development area 

 LED lighting 

 Future use of solar panels 

 Project Sustainability goal ‐ LEED Silver certification 
  
 

122

Item 5.



  The Architects Partnership, Ltd.  200 South Michigan Avenue, Suite 1020, Chicago, IL 60604 

 
 
The  proposed  schedule  has  construction  commencing  by  late  Summer  –  early  Fall  2024  (pending 
regulatory approvals) and an anticipated occupancy date of Winter 2025. 
 
 
Parties Involved: 
 
Applicant  
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 
Architect of Record  
Timothy Meseck 
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 
Property Tenant 
Theodore Foggy 
Obo JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

 
 
Landscape & Civil Engineer 
Matthew Lingam 
Kimley‐Horn and Associates, INC. 
 
Application Contact 
Terron Wright 
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 

 
 
Zoning Classification: 
 
The property in question is in a zoning district classified as GB – General Business. 
 
Type of Business: 
 
The type of business is a retail banking center. The hours of operation will be Monday – Friday 9 AM – 6 
PM and Saturday 9 AM – 2 PM. The total number of employees and any one time will be nine. The nine 
employees will consist of two (2) teller, one (1) lead teller, two (2) bankers, one (1) branch manager, one 
(1) mortgage loan office, one (1) financial advisor and one (1) business banker. 
 
 

 
Timothy R. Meseck 
The Architects Partnership, LTD. 

123

Item 5.



124

Item 5.



125

Item 5.



126

Item 5.



127

Item 5.



128

Item 5.



129

Item 5.



130

Item 5.



 

DEVELOPMENT STAFF REVIEW FORM 

 

  

PROJECT TITLE:  Chase Bank Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review (Site under 
one acre) 

 
ADDRESS:    5085 Central Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, MN  55421 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The Architects Partnership, Ltd. representing Chase Bank are 

proposing to subdivide a portion of the La Casita parking lot to 
build a new retail banking center with an attached ATM drive up 
lane. 

 
PUBLIC MEETING SCHEDULE: 
 EDA:   NA 
 P/Z:   May 7, 2024 
 Work Session:  NA 
 City Council:  May 13, 2024 
 
PROJECT MANAGER:  Andrew Boucher 
 
STAFF REVIEW FORM DUE: April 17, 2024 

 
REVIEWER: Public Works - Engineering_____________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:  

___Yes    
_X_Yes, with conditions   
___No 

 
COMMENTS/ CONDITIONS:  Attached Plan Review. 
 

131

Item 5.



CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 
Public Works Department 

 
 
TO:  ANDREW BOUCHER 
  CITY PLANNER  
 
FROM: SULMAAN KHAN 

CITY ENGINEER 
 
DATE: April 17th, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Chase Bank – Minor Subdivision – Site Plan 
 
I have reviewed the site/civil plan submittal packet dated 4/1/2024 and have the following 
requirements/comments for final approval by PW/Engineering: 
 

General / Plat 

• The City shall require a pre-construction conference prior to any land alteration activities beginning.  

• Easements for drainage and utilities are required. Please show a drainage and utility easement over 
any new drainage way / utility.   

• Comments herein are based on the City submittal plans. Final review comments will be based on from 
revised or final construction plan set. 

• All stormwater best management practices (BMP’s) shall have designated drainage and utility 
easements recorded with the Plat or as a separate document at Anoka County.   
 

 
Grading 

• The plan sets erosion control plan and SWPPP, meet the City and MWMO requirements. 

• Prior to any site disturbance activities, please provide the city with a copy of Site NPDES Construction 
Permit. 

• Perimeter and entrance erosion control measures must be installed and inspected by the Engineering 
department prior to site grading activities beginning. Coordinate erosion control measures with the 
Engineering department if building construction is initiated prior to general site grading. 

• The bio log shown across the site entrance must be relocated.  Traffic impacts to LaCasita must not be 
impacted. Once a new location is determined the bio log must be functional, any damage to the bio log 
must be repaired to restore proper function.   

• Site access during construction shall be limited to 51st Court. Parking and deliveries along Central Ave 
(T.H. 65) shall be prohibited.   

• All slopes greater than 4:1 shall be provided erosion control blanket.  

• Catch basin inlet protection, such as Wimco’s or equivalent shall be provided on catch basins until 
restoration is completed. The low point CB’s / structures at the BMP’s shall also be protected. 

• Tree protection must be fully assembled and approved by the City Forester prior to the beginning of 
demolition activities for all trees that will not be removed during the project. Tree protection must 
follow standards set forth in the tree protection detail in the landscaping plan, any changes must be 
approved in advance by the City Forester. 

 
 

 

132

Item 5.



ROW / Utilities / Paving 

• The location of the existing sanitary and water does not extend north beyond 51st Court.  The location 
of the new sanitary and water service is not a feasible option.  

o For the water service the City would suggest hooking up to either the 10” watermain at the 
southwest corner of the property or the 8” watermain in 51st Court. 

o For the sanitary sewer the City would suggest hooking up to either the 10” running north and 
south on the west side of the property or the 8” running east and west along 51st Court.  The 
City of Columbia Heights does not allow services to be tied into a manhole so the manhole in 
the southwest corner of the property is not an option for the sanitary service.  

• All utilities and storm water features serving the Development shall be privately owned and 
maintained. All utilities shall meet the City of Columbia Heights specifications for materials and 
installation. 

• Site/Civil work shall be inspected by the City Engineering Department (connection to existing utility 
system). 24-hour advance notice of an inspection is required. 

• Please provide material type for 2” water service. The City of Columbia Heights does not allow PVC as a 
material type in the ROW – water main must be DIP.  

• Is a 6” fire suppression required?  Where will this be? 

• All stormwater best management practices (BMP’s) shall have designated drainage and utility 
easements recorded with the Plat or as a separate document at Anoka County.   

• Utility disconnects must be made at the main and inspected by the utility department. 

• Location of tree installations (landscape plan) and utility locations should be coordinated to maintain 
10’ separation from all utilities. 

• Provide a set of as-built drawings meeting City requirements at the completion of site/civil 
construction in both hardcopy and electronic format. 

• Is the parking stall with the concrete wheel stop an adequate length?  Will cars impede the drive lane?  
Would a sign for compact cars only be warranted? 

• Only 13 parking spaces were counted, if 9 employees will be at the site that leaves 4 public parking 
spaces.  Is the acceptable / enough? 

•  
 

Please provide one full size and one 11x17 set of Revised Plans to the Engineering department for final 
approval.  If you have any questions or need further information, please contact me at (763) 706-3705. 
 
C: Lauren Letsche, Storm Water Specialist 
     Liam Genter, City Forester  
 
 

133

Item 5.



-Public Notice Ad Proof-

 
 Ad ID: 1388218
 Copy LIne: May 7 PH Minor Subdivision

 PO Number: 
 Start: 04/19/24
 Stop: 04/19/2024
 Total Cost: $63.25
 # of Lines: 46
 Total Depth: 5.139
 # of Inserts:  1
 Ad Class: 150
 Phone # (763) 691-6000
 Email: publicnotice@apgecm.com
 Rep No: CA700

 Date: 04/12/24
 
 Account #: 414681

 Customer: CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS
 

 Address: 3989 CENTRAL AVE NE
  COLUMBIA HEIGHTS

 Telephone: (763) 767-6580
 Fax: (763) 706-3637

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates
indicated below. Please proof read carefully. If changes are needed,

please contact us prior to deadline at
Cambridge (763) 691-6000 or email at publicnotice@apgecm.com 

Ad Proof
Not Actual Size

Publications: 
BSLP Col Hght Frid Life

Contract-Gross

CITY OF 
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the 
Planning Commission of the City 
of Columbia Heights will conduct 
a public hearing in the City Council 
Chambers of City Hall at 3989 Cen-
tral Avenue NE on Tuesday, May 
7, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.  The order of 
business is as follows: 

A request for a Minor Subdivi-
sion and Site Plan Review for The 
Architects Partnership, LTD on be-
half of Chase Bank to subdivide a 
portion of the parking lot of 5085 
Central Avenue NE (La Casita) and 
create a separate lot for a new 
construction Chase Bank facility 
with a drive-thru ATM, per Code 
Section 9.110 Commercial Districts 
(E).  Section 9.104 (K) and (N) of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires the 
Planning Commission to hold a 
public hearing to review the Minor 
Subdivision and Site Plan Review 
and make findings before submit-
ting a recommendation to the City 
Council.

Notice is hereby given that all 
persons having an interest will be 
given an opportunity to be heard.  
For questions, contact Andrew 
Boucher, City Planner, at (763) 706-
3673.

Published in
The Life 

April 19, 2024
1388218

134

Item 5.



 

City of Columbia Heights | Community Development Department  
3989 Central Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421  ▪  Ph: 763-706-3670  ▪  Fax: 763-706-3671  ▪  
www.columbiaheightsmn.gov 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Date of Hearing: May 7, 2024 
 
Subject: Public Hearing Notice – Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review for The Architects 

Partnership, LTD representing Chase Bank 
 
Subject Property: 5085 Central Avenue NE 
   Columbia Heights, MN  55421 
 
Dear Resident/Affected Property Owner:  
 
The City of Columbia Heights has received an application for a Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review from 
The Architects Partnership, LTD representing Chase Bank to subdivide a portion of the parking lot of 5085 
Central Avenue NE and create a separate lot for a new construction Chase Bank facility with a drive-thru ATM, 
per Code Section 9.110 Commercial District (E) General Business. Section 9.104 (K & N) of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing to approve the Minor Subdivision and Site Plan 
Review.  
 
You are receiving this notice because the property that you own (Affected Property), and/or reside in, is located 
within 350 feet of the Subject Property. The Planning Commission of the City of Columbia Heights will hold a 
Public Hearing on this matter on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of Columbia 
Heights City Hall, located at 3989 Central Avenue NE. A map of the Subject Property is attached. A full copy of 
the application is on file at City Hall and is available for review upon request.  
 
You are welcomed and encouraged to participate in the Public Hearing for this matter by attending the May 7, 
2024 Planning Commission meeting.  If you cannot attend the meeting, but would like to provide input, you 
can submit correspondence via email to aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov or by mail at: 
 
City of Columbia Heights 
Attn: Community Development 
590 40th Ave NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 55421 
 
You can participate in the meeting live and online by using Microsoft Teams at the login link below or call-in: 
 
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting Online 

Meeting ID: 252 58 988 371 
Passcode: ugquG3 
 
Dial-in for Microsoft Teams Meeting 

+1-312-626-6799 
 
 
If you have any questions about this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact the City of Columbia Heights 
Community Development Division at (763) 706-3673. 

135

Item 5.

http://www.columbiaheightsmn.gov/
mailto:aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov


 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Andrew Boucher 
Community Development Planner, City of Columbia Heights 
 
 
** Landowners (Commercial and Residential): If you do not reside on the Affected Property, located 350 feet 
from the Subject Property, it is your responsibility to share this notice with your tenants. This notice should be 
posted in a public place on your property or mailed directly to the tenants residing or leasing space on the 
Affected Property. 
 

 
-SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATION- 

(Highlighted in orange) 
 

 

136

Item 5.



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA SECTION PUBLIC HEARINGS 

MEETING DATE MAY 7, 2024 

 

ITEM: Site Plan Review for 5085 Central Avenue NE 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development BY/DATE: Andrew Boucher, City Planner 

 
CASE NUMBER: 2024-0508 

APPLICANT:   Terron Wright of the Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank 

DEVELOPMENT: Site Plan Review of a newly platted parcel from a portion of the parking lot of La Casita 
(5085 Central Avenue NE) to create a separate lot and establish a new construction 
Chase Bank with a drive-thru ATM. 

LOCATION:  5085 Central Avenue NE  

REQUEST:  Site Plan Review (contingent upon successful application of a Minor Subdivision) 

PREPARED BY:  Andrew Boucher, City Planner  
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank and La Casita has requested approval of a Site Plan 
Review proposing to establish a new 3,365 square foot banking facility with a drive-thru ATM located at the 
newly created parcel from a portion of 5085 Central Avenue NE (between 51st Ave/CT NE and Central Avenue 
NE). The Site Plan Review will be contingent upon the successful application of a Minor Subdivision as a 
condition of approval since the subdivision will have to be approved by the City Council apart from the Site 
Plan Review, which only requires Planning Commission approval. 
 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide the existing 1.67 acre parcel and remove 52 of the 135 parking spaces 
on-site to create two separate lots, the La Casita parcel would be 1.18 acres and the Chase Bank parcel (5075 
Central Avenue) would be 0.48 acres. The subject site is located at the northern end of the municipal 
boundary along Central Avenue and the surrounding adjacent properties are all zoned for Commercial use 
through the General Business District; further to the south, east, and west of those commercial properties are 
pockets of multi-family, duplexes, and single-family residential zoning adjacent to Central Avenue. 
 
The subject site is zoned, General Business District, and the use as a financial institution with a drive-thru ATM 
is permitted use in the district subject to Specific Development Standards 9.107 (18) for a drive-up facility. The 
proposed site plan demonstrates compliance with those standards as it is accessory to the financial institution 
use and served by a major collected or higher functional classification of roadway.  
 
The proposed subdivision and site plan would reduce the required parking for the restaurant to 83 parking 
spaces which is below the minimum requirements of 91 parking spaces for the restaurant, a deficit of 8 
spaces. A total of 20 parking spaces are required for the financial institution, one (1) per 300 gross floor area 
and up to nine (9) employees at any one time; the applicant is proposing 14 parking spaces creating a 
combined deficit of 14 spaces. A shared parking agreement is a necessary condition of approval subject to 
approval by the City Attorney and filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within 60 days after approval 

137

Item 6.



 Page 2 
 

 
of the shared parking use to ensure that both uses have compliant parking. As conditioned, the proposed 
minor subdivision and site plan shall accommodate vehicle access and stacking, performance standards, and 
subdivision regulations in accordance with City Code. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
The City’s 2040 Comprehensive Plan guides the subject site, as well as properties to the north, south, east and 
west for “commercial land use” with “medium density and low density residential” further to the south and 
east of the commercial parcels.  The Plan describes the “commercial” designation as follows: 
 

The Commercial land use designation is primarily located along major transportation corridors and 
includes a variety of retail uses, services, and office uses.  

 
The subject site also lies within “Opportunity Area #2B” of the Comprehensive Plan which overlays the 
segment of the Central Avenue from 37th Avenue NE to the Fridley Border, specifically between Central 
Avenue NE and 49th Avenue NE.  In this regard, the Plan identifies the area as having development potential 
for future commercial use. Some of the guiding principles for redevelopment include commercial uses with 
appropriate parking and pedestrian accesses to Central Avenue and emphasizing on businesses that provide 
goods or services that appeal to the community at large as well as the adjacent neighborhoods. This area is 
described as having an emphasis on providing sidewalks, four season landscaping, and lighting. 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
1. Access 
Access to the site is proposed from the southeast via 51st Court NE, a 50-foot wide public right of way, and a 
27.3 foot existing driveway with directional marking proposed splitting a 24 foot drive aisle between the 
properties and marking the eastern egress as Do Not Enter for one-way traffic. There is a recorded 
nonexclusive mutual easement appurtenant, no. 664049.0 for driveway purposes, both vehicular and 
pedestrian, over the property that will provide access to both parcels from 51st Court NE. As a condition of 
approval, a cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and recorded to provide 
access perpetually for all current and future owners.  
 
As shown on the submitted site plan, a row of 90-degree off-street parking stalls are located in the western 
corner of the site, along Central Avenue NE.  In this regard, access to such row of parking is provided via a 24 
foot divided aisle between the La Casita and Chase Bank structures, with the remaining spots located on the 
eastern side of the property.   
 
2. Off-Street Parking 
 

Supply Requirements.  The submitted site plan illustrates a total of 14 off-street parking stalls.  The Zoning 
Ordinance requires 1 space per 300 sq. ft., gross floor area plus 6 stacking spaces for the one drive-through 
lane. The Zoning Ordinance also specifies that that employee parking is only required when the parking 
requirements are based on employee counts, as such, the parking requirements for financial institutions 
are determined by gross floor area/stacking spaces and not employee counts. 
 

Use Ratio Required Parking Provided Parking 
138

Item 6.



 Page 3 
 

 

Stalls 

Restaurant  (8,494 
sq. ft.) 

30% of building 
capacity 

91 83 (-8) 

Financial Institution 
with a drive-through 
ATM (3,365 sq. ft.) 

1 space per 300 
gross square feet; 
plus six (6) stacking 
spaces  

11 14 (+3) 

Total    102 spaces 97 spaces (-5) 

 
The proposed subdivision and site plan would reduce the amount of required parking for the restaurant to 
83 parking spaces which is below the minimum requirements of 91 parking spaces for the restaurant, a 
deficit of eight (8) spaces. A total of 11 parking spaces are required for the financial institution, one (1) per 
300 gross floor area; the applicant is proposing 14 parking spaces, a surplus of three (3) spaces creating a 
combined deficit of 5 spaces. Appropriately, two off-street parking spaces on the site has been designated 
as a disability stall (in accordance with the American Disability Act). 
 
A shared parking agreement and transportation management plan are necessary conditions of approval 
and shall be subject to approval by the City Attorney and filed with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office 
within 60 days after approval of the shared parking use to ensure that both uses have compliant parking. 
As conditioned, the proposed minor subdivision and site plan shall accommodate vehicle access and 
stacking, performance standards, and subdivision regulations in accordance with City Code. 
 
 
Dimensional Requirements.  The proposed off-street parking stalls meet the minimum dimensional 
requirements of the Ordinance (9 feet in width and 20 feet in depth, 18 feet for stalls which abut curbs) 
and the provided 24 foot-wide drive aisle is the minimum width required by the Ordinance.   
 
Building and Parking Area Setbacks.  Within GB zoning districts, the following parking area setbacks are 
imposed: 
 
  

Parking Setbacks: Building Setbacks: 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
5 feet 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
20 feet 

Side:          
0 feet 

 
 
The proposed minor subdivision and site plan configuration would result in the following setbacks for La Casita 
and Chase Bank, respectively: 
 

La Casita Parking Setbacks: La Casita Building Setbacks: 

Front:       
15 feet 

Corner 
Side:         
N/A 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
5 feet 

Front:       
48.7 feet 

Corner 
Side:         
N/A 

Rear:  
81.2 feet 

Side:          
84 feet and 

9 feet  

 

Chase Bank Parking Setbacks: Chase Bank Building Setbacks: 
139

Item 6.



 Page 4 
 

 

Front:       
18 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
5 feet 

Side:          
15 feet 

Front:       
42 feet 

Corner 
Side:         

15 feet 

Rear:  
35 feet 

Side:         
15 feet 

 
Both parcels will have building and parking lot setbacks that conform with 9.110 Commercial Districts (C) Lot 
dimension, height, and bulk requirements. The lot area, setback, height and lot coverage proposed satisfy 
these requirements. 
 
3. Business Hours 
 
It is understood that the financial institution is proposing traditional business hours of operation, Monday 
through Friday from 9 AM – 6 PM and Saturday from 9AM – 2 PM, with a 24 hour drive-thru ATM. The 
operating hours are anticipated to have peak demands occurring opposite the peak demands of the 
restaurant.  
 
4. Trash 
A trash enclosure is shown on the site plan on the eastern side of the property alongside a portion of the 
parking lot and in the architectural renderings as being 6 feet, 6 inches from the slab and surrounded by at 
least three sides with screening walls that are similar to the construction material used on the banking facility. 
The open side of the enclosure shall not face any public street or the front yard of any adjacent property. 
 
5. Signage 
The applicant has not submitted drawings for on-site signage. Signs are required to have a building permit 
and are subject to review for compliance by City Staff. As a condition of approval, all signage shall be 
reviewed by the City for approval. 
 
6. Fire Access 
The fire lane shall be marked with yellow curb paint and signage that states “No Parking – Fire Lane”. As a 
condition of approval, this will be required to remain.  
 
7. Pedestrian and Bicycle Access 
The site has existing pedestrian access along the western side of the property in alignment with Central Ave, the 
applicant is proposing sidewalk from the edge of the right-of-way connection as well as crosswalk areas across 
the parking lot to connect the parking area to the building and the City’s sidewalk system so pedestrians may 
access the site. It does not appear that the site provides access or parking of bicycles. The 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan land use goals state that sites should have pedestrian and bicycle access. Pedestrian access is satisfied, but 
the site should incorporate a bicycle parking area to satisfy this goal. Staff is recommending that a bicycle rack 
capable of accommodating four bicycles be a condition of approval.  
 
8. Exterior Lighting 
The applicant has provided a lighting plan and specifications for the proposed lighting fixtures satisfying the 
requirements of 9.106 General Development Standards (K) and addresses potential security concerns from 
Public Safety.  
 
9. Loading Area 
The applicant is not proposing any discernable loading areas and the code requirements for off-street loading 
spaces apply to non-residential uses receiving or distributing materials or merchandise by trucks or similar 140

Item 6.



 Page 5 
 

 
vehicles and has a gross floor area of 5,000 sq. ft. or more are not applicable to this proposal, the loading area 
requirements are satisfied per 9.106 General Development Standards (L) (12). 
 
10. Landscaping and Screening 
The landscaping and screening requirements described in 9.106 General Development Standards (M) includes 
submission of a landscaping plan showing location, size, quantity, and species of all existing and proposed plant 
materials subject to design standards and considerations reviewed by the Urban Forester. The applicant is 
proposing maintaining the two trees along 51st Court NE and two along Central, adding the required two trees 
along 51st Court NE, and adding landscaping in a five-foot-wide strip along the street and sidewalk as well as 
providing landscaping along the parking lot and frontage containing native bee lawn seed and low maintenance 
turf seed. The combination of items described above meets the requirements of 9.106 General Development 
Standards (M). All rooftop or mechanical equipment shall be screened in a manner that minimizes the visual 
impact on adjacent properties and from public streets as a condition of approval.   
 
11. Building Design 
The proposed site is considered part of the Highway District in the City Design Guidelines and is subject to the 
standards and requirements of that design district. The proposed site plan demonstrates compliance with the 
design objectives of the Highway District, the building is set back from the street behind a parking lot and along 
a frontage road. The architectural renderings and site plan, as conditioned, show compliance with building 
configuration, façade and roof treatments, window and door openings, building equipment, drive-through 
facilities, landscaping and parking meet the design guidelines. Any proposed signage will be subject to the design 
standards as a condition of approval.  
 
12. Sustainability 
The applicant narrative details several project components that they state will contribute to sustainability 
practices including tree preservation and using native seed plantings, LED lighting, future use of solar panels, 
and LEED Silver certification as well as a reduction of overall impervious surface area by approximately 2,000 
sq. ft. 
 
13. Neighborhood Notification 
As required, neighborhood notification of the minor subdivision and site plan review applications have been 
provided to property owners within 350 feet of the subject property. 
 
At the time of this report, City Staff has received no comments.   
 
14. Staff Review 
The Public Works Department, Police Department, and Fire Department have been provided copies of the 
application materials. The Police Department was satisfied with the proposed site plan and had no concerns. 
The Fire Department had a few comments regarding the fire lane, keybox, and other fire related items that are 
conditions of approval. 
 
In review of the application materials, Public Works/Engineering provided their department’s requirements and 
comments on the proposed plat and site plan in a memo dated April 17, 2024. General comments and plat 
requirements include: 

1. Scheduling a pre-construction conference prior to any land alteration activities beginning;  
2. Showing proposed drainage and utility easements over any new drainage way/utility; 
3. All stormwater best management practices (BMPs) shall have designated drainage and utility easements 141

Item 6.



 Page 6 
 

 
recorded with the Plat or as a separate document at Anoka County. 

 
Public Works and Engineering reviewed the erosion control plan and SWPPP as part of the submitted plan sets 
and had additional comments and requirements that are included in the attached memo, dated April 17, 2024 
and added as conditions of approval for both the minor subdivision and site plan review. 
 
These recommendations have been included in the minor subdivision and site plan approval language as 
conditions of approval. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Section 9.104 (N) of the Zoning Ordinance outlines certain findings of fact that must be met in order for the 
City to approve a site plan review.  The findings are as follows: 
 

(a) The site plan conforms to all applicable requirements of this article. 
 

Upon approval of both the Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review, as conditioned, the proposed site 
plan will conform to all applicable requirements of the General Business (GB) District as well as City 
Code 9.106 General Development Standards. 

 
(b) The site plan is consistent with the applicable provisions of the City’s comprehensive plan. 

 
The use and site plan is consistent with the applicable provisions of the City’s comprehensive plan. 

 
(c) The site plan is consistent with any applicable area plan. 

 
With conditions imposed to ensure compatibility, the site plan will be consistent with the applicable 
Design Guidelines of the Highway District. 

 
(d) The site plan minimizes any adverse impacts on property in the immediate vicinity and the public 

right-of-way. 
 
As conditioned, the site plan minimizes any adverse impacts on property in the immediate vicinity and 
the public right-of-way. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the following to the Planning Commission: 
 

A. Approval of the Site Plan Review for property located at 5085 Central Avenue (PID: 25-30-24-22-0065) 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The Site Plan Review is contingent upon approval of the Minor Subdivision per Resolution No. 
2024-036. 
 

142

Item 6.



 Page 7 
 

 
2. The building and site plans adhere to the building and site plans dated April 1, 2024 as conditioned. 

 
3. The applicant shall adhere to the requirements and comments provided by the City Public Works 

and Engineering Departments in a memo dated April 17, 2024. The applicant is responsible for filing 
and recording any proposed easements with Anoka County Recorder’s Office. 
 

4. A cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and recorded with Anoka 
County Recorder’s Office to provide access perpetually for all current and future owners.  
 

5. A shared parking agreement and transportation management plan are necessary conditions of 
approval and shall be subject to approval by the City Attorney and filed with the Anoka County 
Recorder’s Office within 60 days after approval of the shared parking use to ensure that both uses 
have compliant parking. 
 

6. The applicant is required to maintain a 20 foot fire lane and shall be stripped with “No Parking – 
Fire Lane”. 
 

7. All rooftop or mechanical equipment shall be screened in a manner that minimizes the visual 
impact on adjacent properties and from public streets as a condition of approval.   
 

8. The building and site shall be meet all requirements found in the Fire Code and the Building Code. 
 

9. All new site signage shall require sign permits. 
 

10. The open side of the enclosure shall not face any public street or the front yard of any adjacent 
property. 
 

11. Provide a bicycle rack capable of accommodating four bicycles. 
 

12. The applicant is required to receive final approval by the Fire Department or Authority Having 
Jurisdiction for the location of the keybox, fire alarm panel, fire annunciator, and FDC connection. 

 
13. All required state and local codes, permits, licenses, and inspections will be met and in full 

compliance. 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION(S): 

MOTION: Move to waive the reading of draft Resolution No. 2024-037, a Site Plan Review for 5075 Central 
Avenue NE, there being ample copies available to the public.  
 
 
MOTION: Move to recommend the Planning Commission approve draft Resolution No. 2024-037, a Site 
Plan Review for 5075 Central Avenue NE, as presented and subject to the conditions of approval listed in 
the draft resolution. 

 143

Item 6.



 Page 8 
 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
Draft Resolution No. 2024-037 
Site Plan Review Application 
Applicant Narrative 
Existing Conditions 
Proposed Lot Split 
Civil Plans 
Recorded Document No. 664049 – Driveway access 
Architectural Elevations 
Floor Plan 
Public Notice to Newspaper  
Public Notice to Neighbors 

144

Item 6.



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-037 

A resolution of the Planning Commission for the City of Columbia Heights, Minnesota, 

recommending approval of a Site Plan Review for property located at 5075 Central Avenue NE 

in the City of Columbia Heights, MN; 

Whereas, a proposal (Planning Case # 2024-0508) has been submitted by Terron Wright of the 

Architects Partnership, LTD on behalf of Chase Bank and La Casita as the property owner to the 

Planning Commission requesting approval of a Site Plan Review at the following location: 

ADDRESS: 5075 Central Avenue NE  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   

(5075 Central Avenue – Chase Bank Parcel) 

The west 210 feet of the south 100 feet of that part of Lot 1, Block 1, COLUMBIA COURT, Anoka 

County, Minnesota, lying Westerly of a line described as follows. 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1, thence South 89 degrees 56 minutes 00 

seconds West, assumed basis for bearings, 150.00 feet along the North line of said Lot 1, to the 

point of beginning of the line to be described, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds 

East a distance of 236.51 feet, thence South 89 degrees 35 minutes 09 seconds West a distance 

of 35.00 feet, thence South 00 degrees 31 minutes 23 seconds East a distance of 80.00 feet to a 

point on the South line of said Lot 1, distance of 185.00 feet Westerly from Southeast corner of 

said Lot 1, and said line there terminating. 

THE APPLICANT SEEKS THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Approval of a Site Plan Review for a new construction financial institution with a drive-

through ATM on a 0.48 acre parcel in accordance with City Code Section 9.104 (N).  

Whereas, the Planning Commission held a public hearing as required by the City Zoning Code 

on May 7, 2024; 

Whereas, the Planning Commission has considered the advice and recommendations of the 

Planning Commission regarding the effect of the proposed site plan upon the health, safety, 

and welfare of the community and its Comprehensive Plan, as well as any concern related to 

traffic, property values, light, air, danger of fire, and risk to public safety, in the surrounding 

area; 

Now, therefore, in accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the 

City of Columbia Heights, the City of Columbia Heights Planning Commission makes the 

following: 

145

Item 6.



 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The site plan conforms to all applicable requirements of this article. 
2. The site plan is consistent with the applicable provisions of the City’s comprehensive 

plan. 

3. The site plan is consistent with any applicable area plan. 
4. The site plan minimizes any adverse impacts on property in the immediate vicinity and 

the public right-of-way. 
 
 

CONDITIONS 

1. The Site Plan Review is contingent upon approval of the Minor Subdivision per 
Resolution No. 2024-036. 
 

2. The building and site plans adhere to the building and site plans dated April 1, 2024 
as conditioned. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the requirements and comments provided by the City 
Public Works and Engineering Departments in a memo dated April 17, 2024. The 
applicant is responsible for filing and recording any proposed easements with Anoka 
County Recorder’s Office. 
 

4. A cross access easement for vehicular movement is required to be filed and 
recorded with Anoka County Recorder’s Office to provide access perpetually for all 
current and future owners.  
 

5. A shared parking agreement and transportation management plan are necessary 
conditions of approval and shall be subject to approval by the City Attorney and filed 
with the Anoka County Recorder’s Office within 60 days after approval of the shared 
parking use to ensure that both uses have compliant parking. 
 

6. The applicant is required to maintain a 20 foot fire lane and shall be stripped with 
“No Parking – Fire Lane”. 
 

7. All rooftop or mechanical equipment shall be screened in a manner that minimizes 
the visual impact on adjacent properties and from public streets as a condition of 
approval.   
 

8. The building and site shall be meet all requirements found in the Fire Code and the 
Building Code. 
 

9. All new site signage shall require sign permits. 

146

Item 6.



 

 

 

10. The open side of the enclosure shall not face any public street or the front yard of 
any adjacent property. 
 

11. Provide a bicycle rack capable of accommodating four bicycles. 
 

12. The applicant is required to receive final approval by the Fire Department or 
Authority Having Jurisdiction for the location of the keybox, fire alarm panel, fire 
annunciator, and FDC connection. 

 

13. All required state and local codes, permits, licenses, and inspections will be met and 
in full compliance. 
 

 
Passed this 7th day of May, 2024 
 
Offered by:  
Seconded 
by: 

 

Roll Call:  
 
 
              
       Clara Wolfe, Chair 
Attest: 
 
 
        
Andrew Boucher, City Planner 
 

 

 

147

Item 6.



Page 1 of 2 

Community Development Department 

590 40th Ave. NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421 

SITE PLAN APPLICATION (UNDER 1 ACRE) 

 ORDINANCE NO. 9.104 (N) 

This application is subject to review and acceptance by the City.  Applications will be processed only if all 

required items are submitted. 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Proposed name of development: ____________________________________________________________________ 
Project Address/Location: _________________________________________________________________________ 
Legal Description of property involved: _______________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Present use of property ___________________________________________________________________________ 
Proposed use of property __________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROPERTY OWNER (As it appears on property title): 

Name: SAH Partnerhip____________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  _____4737 CR 101, Suite 343__________________________________________________________ 
City:  ___________Minnetonka ________      State: ______MN____       Zip:  _______55345______
Daytime Phone: 612-385-3797__________________  Cell Phone: _612-385-3797______________________

E-mail Address:
___________chadanvary@outlook.com____________________________________________________________ 
Signature/Date: ________4/3/24_____________________________________________________________________ 
APPLICANT: 
Company Name (please print): ______________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person (please print):  ______________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
City: ______________________________     State:_____________      Zip: _________________
Daytime Phone: __________________________  Cell Phone: __________________________________ 
Email Address: ______________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature/Date: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
Disclaimer:  Information submitted, including contact information shall be made available to the public, unless 
otherwise noted.     

The Architects Partnership, LTD.
Terron Wright

200 S Michigan Ave.
Chicago IL 60604

561-628-9845

wright@tapchicago.com
03/26/2024

Chase Bank - Columbia Heights
5085 Central Ave NE. 

See attached

148

Item 6.

Terron Wright
Typewriter
(Parent Parcel) 

Terron Wright
Typewriter
Restaurant use which is to remain. 

Terron Wright
Typewriter
a subdivision plat is being requested for the proposed Chase Bank leasehold area  



 

 
 

REASON FOR REQUEST  (please attach a written narrative describing your proposal, the intended use of the property 
and justification for your request.) 

 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
CASE NO: _______________________                                  
APPLICATION REC’D BY: ________________________                DATE APPLICATION REC’D: _______________ 
$500 APPLICATION FEE REC’D: _____________________           RECEIPT NUMBER: ____________________                          
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

149

Item 6.



  The Architects Partnership, Ltd.  200 South Michigan Avenue, Suite 1020, Chicago, IL 60604 

 
 
Aaron Chirpich 
Community Development  
Director   
City of Columbia Heights  
3989 Central Ave. NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 
 
April 01, 2024 
 
Re: Project narrative for the property NEC Central Ave. and 51st Ave. 
 
Dear Mr. Chirpich, 
 
This  letter  is  to detail our application  for Site plan Review and Minor subdivision  to build a new single‐
story +/‐ 3,384 SF freestanding retail banking center with an attached ATM drive up lane.  
The  proposed  Chase  Bank  building,  DU  ATM  lane  and  associated  parking  lot  will  be  located  at  the 
northeast  corner  of  Central  Avenue  and  51st  Avenue.  The  new  parking  and  landscaping  will  be 
implemented  to  improve  the  aesthetics  of  the  area.  The  proposed  bank  intends  to  complement  the 
architecture of the area to boost commercial activity within the Village. Secondly, the aim of this branch is 
to bring more job opportunities to the area to contribute to the economic growth of the community.  
 
As previously mentioned, the design intent of the proposed Chase Bank is to complement the surrounding 
architecture of the area. The proposed Banking Center is comprised of cultured stone (hewn stone color), 
fiber cement panels in color “Ash” and “Bark”, ACM in “DG Silver”, along with a black anodized storefront 
system,  and  clear  glassing.  All  the  exterior  cladding  options  are modern  finishes  and  are  long  lasting 
cladding  materials  that  will  mesh  well  with  the  development  growth  of  the  area.  Additionally,  the 
proposed  floor  to  ceiling  glazing  was  incorporated  to  provide  connectivity  to  the  retail  customers 
navigating the area and pedestrians traversing the adjacent public thoroughfares.  
 
Lighting Design and Locations: 
 
To  provide  the  best  and most  efficient  lighting  design  and  locations,  a  photometric  study  has  been 
developed and  included  in this submittal. A fully new  layout of site  lighting will be proposed along with 
complementary architectural lighting within the building which will enrich the architectural design of the 
site at night and will also add to the security for the users during night hours.  
 
Sustainability Components: 
 

The  project  will  contain  the  following  components  which  would  contribute  to  sustainability 
practices the Village is encouraging:  
 

 Installation of additional trees/landscaping within development area 

 LED lighting 

 Future use of solar panels 

 Project Sustainability goal ‐ LEED Silver certification 
  
 

150

Item 6.



  The Architects Partnership, Ltd.  200 South Michigan Avenue, Suite 1020, Chicago, IL 60604 

 
 
The  proposed  schedule  has  construction  commencing  by  late  Summer  –  early  Fall  2024  (pending 
regulatory approvals) and an anticipated occupancy date of Winter 2025. 
 
 
Parties Involved: 
 
Applicant  
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 
Architect of Record  
Timothy Meseck 
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 
Property Tenant 
Theodore Foggy 
Obo JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

 
 
Landscape & Civil Engineer 
Matthew Lingam 
Kimley‐Horn and Associates, INC. 
 
Application Contact 
Terron Wright 
The Architects Partnership, LTD (TAP) 
 

 
 
Zoning Classification: 
 
The property in question is in a zoning district classified as GB – General Business. 
 
Type of Business: 
 
The type of business is a retail banking center. The hours of operation will be Monday – Friday 9 AM – 6 
PM and Saturday 9 AM – 2 PM. The total number of employees and any one time will be nine. The nine 
employees will consist of two (2) teller, one (1) lead teller, two (2) bankers, one (1) branch manager, one 
(1) mortgage loan office, one (1) financial advisor and one (1) business banker. 
 
 

 
Timothy R. Meseck 
The Architects Partnership, LTD. 

151

Item 6.



152

Item 6.



153

Item 6.



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

0-
C

O
VE

R
 S

H
EE

T.
dw

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

7a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

C000

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

NORTH
VICINITY

N.T.S.
SITE

COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, ANOKA COUNTY, MN

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THAT THE EXISTING CONDITIONS FOR THE SITE MATCH
WHAT IS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS INCLUDED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

2. IF REPRODUCED, THE SCALES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ARE BASED ON A 22x34 SHEET.
3. ALL NECESSARY INSPECTIONS AND/OR CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED BY CODES AND/OR

UTILITY SERVICES COMPANIES SHALL BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO ANNOUNCED BUILDING
POSSESSION AND THE FINAL CONNECTION OF SERVICES.

4. ALL GENERAL CONTRACTOR WORK TO BE COMPLETED (EARTHWORK, FINAL UTILITIES,
AND FINAL GRADING) BY THE MILESTONE DATE IN PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

NOTES:

PROJECT TEAM:

ENGINEER & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

PREPARED BY: BRIAN M. WURDEMAN  &
RYAN A. HYLLESTAD, PLA
11995 SINGLETREE LANE, SUITE 225
EDEN PRAIRIE, MN 55344
TELEPHONE (651) 645-4197

OWNER / DEVELOPER
THE ARCHITECTS PARTNERSHIP
200 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVENUE
SUITE 200
CHICAGO, IL 60604
CONTACT: TERRON WRIGHT
TELEPHONE: (561) 628-9845

CHASE BANK- CENTRAL AVE AND 51ST AVE
5085 CENTRAL AVENUE NORTHEAST

S25, T30N, R24W

FOR
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

SITE BENCHMARKS:
(LOCATIONS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

SBM #1 TOP NUT OF HYDRANT LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE 51ST
COURT NORTHEAST.
ELEVATION=923.97

BENCHMARKS

SURVEYOR
EGAN, FIELD & NOWAK, INC.
475 OLD HIGHWAY 8 NW, SUITE 200
NEW BRIGHTON, MN 55112
TELEPHONE: (612) 466-3300
CONTACT: CHRISTOPHER TERWEDO

52ND AVE NE

C
EN

TR
A

L 
A

VE
 N

E

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C000 COVER SHEET
C100 GENERAL NOTES
C200 DEMO & EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
C201 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN - PHASE 2
C202 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS
C300 SITE PLAN
C301 SITE DETAILS
C302 SITE DETAILS
C400 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C401 GRADING ENLARGEMENT PLAN
C402 GRADING DETAILS
C500 UTILITY PLAN
L100 LANDSCAPE PLAN
L101 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

154

Item 6.

./L1-LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG
./L1-LANDSCAPE PLAN.DWG
./L1-LANDSCAPE DETAILS.DWG
./L1-LANDSCAPE DETAILS.DWG


Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

1-
G

EN
ER

AL
 N

O
TE

S.
dw

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

7a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S

C100

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL OBTAIN A COPY OF THE LATEST EDITION OF THE

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS OF THE LOCAL JURISDICTION AND STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
AND BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THE CONTENTS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED,
ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM AS APPLICABLE TO THESE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3. PERFORM ALL WORK IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY REGULATIONS, STATE CODES, AND O.S.H.A.
STANDARDS. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FURNISHING THE NECESSARY MATERIALS & LABOR
TO CONSTRUCT THE FACILITY AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED IN THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE APPROPRIATE APPROVING
AUTHORITIES.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAR AND GRUB ALL AREAS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, REMOVING TREES,
STUMPS,  ROOTS, MUCK, EXISTING PAVEMENT AND ALL OTHER DELETERIOUS MATERIAL.

5. THE EXISTING SUBSURFACE UTILITY INFORMATION IN THIS PLAN IS QUALITY LEVEL "D" UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED. THIS QUALITY LEVEL WAS DETERMINED ACCORDING TO THE GUIDELINES OF CI/ACSE 38/02,
ENTITLED STANDARD GUIDELINES FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPICTION OF SUBSURFACE QUALITY DATA
BY THE FHA. EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ARE LOCATED ACCORDING TO THE INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO
THE ENGINEER AT THE TIME OF THE TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND HAVE NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY
VERIFIED BY THE OWNER OR THE ENGINEER.  GUARANTEE IS NOT MADE THAT ALL EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE SHOWN OR THAT THE LOCATION OF THOSE SHOWN ARE ENTIRELY
ACCURATE. FINDING THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF ANY EXISTING UTILITIES IS THE  CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY AND SHALL BE DONE BEFORE COMMENCING ANY WORK IN THE VICINITY.  FURTHERMORE,
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE  FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES DUE TO THE
CONTRACTOR'S FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.
THE OWNER OR ENGINEER WILL ASSUME NO LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES SUSTAINED OR COST INCURRED
BECAUSE OF THE OPERATIONS IN THE VICINITY OF EXISTING UTILITIES OR STRUCTURES, NOR FOR
TEMPORARY BRACING AND SHORING OF SAME.  IF IT IS NECESSARY TO SHORE, BRACE, SWING OR
RELOCATE A UTILITY, THE UTILITY COMPANY OR DEPARTMENT AFFECTED SHALL BE CONTACTED AND
THEIR PERMISSION OBTAINED REGARDING THE METHOD TO USE FOR SUCH WORK.

6. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT THE VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES WHICH MAY
HAVE BURIED OR AERIAL UTILITIES WITHIN OR NEAR THE CONSTRUCTION AREA BEFORE COMMENCING
WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR  SHALL PROVIDE 48 HOURS MINIMUM NOTICE TO ALL UTILITY COMPANIES
PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL REQUIRED  CONSTRUCTION PERMITS AND
BONDS IF REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE AVAILABLE AT THE JOB SITE AT ALL  TIMES ONE COPY OF THE
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS INCLUDING PLANS,  SPECIFICATIONS, GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND SPECIAL
CONDITIONS AND COPIES OF ANY  REQUIRED CONSTRUCTION PERMITS.

9. ANY DISCREPANCIES ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY BROUGHT  TO THE ATTENTION OF THE
OWNER AND ENGINEER BEFORE COMMENCING WORK. NO FIELD CHANGES OR DEVIATIONS FROM DESIGN
ARE TO BE MADE WITHOUT  PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE OWNER AND NOTIFICATION TO THE ENGINEER.

10. ALL COPIES OF COMPACTION, CONCRETE AND OTHER REQUIRED TEST  RESULTS ARE TO BE SENT TO THE
OWNER DIRECTLY FROM THE TESTING AGENCY.

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DOCUMENTING AND MAINTAINING AS-BUILT INFORMATION
WHICH SHALL BE RECORDED AS CONSTRUCTION PROGRESSES OR AT THE COMPLETION OF APPROPRIATE
CONSTRUCTION INTERVALS AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AS-BUILT DRAWINGS TO THE
OWNER FOR THE PURPOSE OF CERTIFICATION TO JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES AS REQUIRED.  ALL AS-BUILT
DATA SHALL BE COLLECTED BY A STATE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR WHOSE SERVICES ARE
ENGAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

12. ANY WELLS DISCOVERED ON SITE THAT WILL HAVE NO USE MUST BE PLUGGED BY A LICENSED WELL
DRILLING CONTRACTOR IN A MANNER APPROVED BY ALL JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ANY WELL ABANDONMENT PERMITS REQUIRED.

13. ANY WELL DISCOVERED DURING EARTH MOVING OR EXCAVATION SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE
APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER DISCOVERY IS MADE.

14. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THAT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN
ON THE PLANS DO NOT CONFLICT WITH ANY KNOWN EXISTING OR OTHER PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS. IF
ANY CONFLICTS ARE DISCOVERED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION
OF ANY PORTION OF THE SITE WORK THAT WOULD BE AFFECTED.  FAILURE TO NOTIFY OWNER OF AN
IDENTIFIABLE CONFLICT PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH INSTALLATION RELIEVES OWNER OF ANY
OBLIGATION TO PAY FOR A RELATED CHANGE ORDER.

15. SHOULD CONTRACTOR ENCOUNTER ANY DEBRIS LADEN SOIL, STRUCTURES NOT IDENTIFIED IN THE
DOCUMENTS, OR OTHER SOURCE OF POTENTIAL CONTAMINATION, THEY SHALL IMMEDIATELY CONTACT
THE ENGINEER AND OWNER.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE FOLLOWING
ACTIVITIES: PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING, SUBGRADE PREPARATION, BASE INSTALLATION, ASPHALT
INSTALLATION, UNDERGROUND PIPING AND UTILITIES INSTALLATION, INSTALLATION OF STRUCTURES,
CHECK VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS, ETC., SIDEWALK INSTALLATION, CONNECTIONS TO WATER AND
SEWER MAINS, TESTS OF UTILITIES.

EROSION CONTROL NOTES
1. THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN ("SWPPP") IS COMPRISED OF THE EROSION CONTROL

PLAN, THE STANDARD DETAILS, THE PLAN NARRATIVE, ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED IN THE SPECIFICATIONS
OF THE SWPPP, PLUS THE PERMIT AND ALL SUBSEQUENT REPORTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS.

2. ALL CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS INVOLVED WITH STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION
SHALL OBTAIN A COPY OF THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN AND THE STATE NATIONAL
POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM GENERAL PERMIT (NPDES PERMIT) AND BECOME FAMILIAR
WITH THEIR CONTENTS.

3. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) AND CONTROLS SHALL CONFORM TO FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL
REQUIREMENTS OR MANUAL OF PRACTICE, AS APPLICABLE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT
ADDITIONAL CONTROLS AS DIRECTED BY THE PERMITTING AGENCY OR OWNER.

4. THE CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLYING WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION, AND SHALL MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS FOR THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD ADJUST AND/OR PROVIDE ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL BMP'S AS
NEEDED TO PREVENT EROSION AND OFF-SITE SEDIMENT DISCHARGE FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. LOG
AND RECORD ANY ADJUSTMENTS AND DEVIATIONS FROM THE APPROVED EROSION CONTROL PLANS
WITHIN THE SWPPP DOCUMENTS STORED IN THE JOB SITE TRAILER.

6. BMPS SHOWN ON THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN, AND IN THE STORM WATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN, SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN FULLY FUNCTIONAL CONDITION AS REQUIRED BY ALL
JURISDICTIONS UNTIL NO LONGER REQUIRED FOR A COMPLETED PHASE OF WORK OR FINAL
STABILIZATION OF THE SITE.  ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE CHECKED
BY A CERTIFIED PERSON AT LEAST ONCE EVERY 7 CALENDAR DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF THE END OF
A 0.5-INCH OR GREATER RAINFALL EVENT.

7. EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING:

7.1. INLET PROTECTION DEVICES AND BARRIERS SHALL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED IF THEY SHOW SIGNS
OF UNDERMINING OR DETERIORATION.

7.2. ALL SEEDED AREAS SHALL BE CHECKED REGULARLY TO  VERIFY THAT A HEALTHY STAND OF
VEGETATION IS MAINTAINED.  SEEDED AREAS SHOULD BE FERTILIZED, WATERED AND RE-SEEDED AS
NEEDED. REFER TO THE LANDSCAPE PLAN AND PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS.

7.3. SILT FENCES SHALL BE REPAIRED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITIONS IF DAMAGED. SEDIMENT SHALL BE
REMOVED FROM THE SILT FENCES WHEN IT REACHES ONE-THIRD THE HEIGHT OF THE SILT FENCE.

7.4. THE ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A CONDITION WHICH WILL
PREVENT TRACKING OR FLOW OF MUD ONTO PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  THIS MAY REQUIRE PERIODIC
ADDITIONS OF ROCK TOP DRESSING AS CONDITIONS DEMAND.

7.5. THE TEMPORARY PARKING AND STORAGE AREA SHALL BE KEPT IN GOOD CONDITION (SUITABLE FOR
PARKING AND STORAGE).  THIS MAY REQUIRE PERIODIC ADDITIONS OF TOP DRESSING IF THE
TEMPORARY PARKING CONDITIONS DEMAND.

7.6. PERFORM ALL MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS IN A TIMELY MANNER BUT IN NO CASE LATER THAN 2
CALENDAR DAYS FOLLOWING THE INSPECTION.

PAVING AND STRIPING NOTES
1. ALL PAVING, CONSTRUCTION, MATERIALS, AND WORKMANSHIP WITHIN JURISDICTION'S RIGHT-OF-WAY

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE LOCAL CITY OR COUNTY SPECIFICATIONS
AND STANDARDS, OR THE STATE DOT SPECIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS IF NOT COVERED BY LOCAL CITY
OR COUNTY REGULATIONS.

2. ALL SIGNS, PAVEMENT MARKINGS, AND OTHER TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL CONFORM TO MANUAL
ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (M.U.T.C.D) AND CITY STANDARDS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS FOR FIRE LANES, ROADWAY LANES, PARKING
STALLS, ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOLS, ACCESS AISLES, STOP BARS AND SIGNS, AND MISCELLANEOUS
STRIPING WITHIN THE PARKING LOT AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

4. ALL EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL EXTEND THROUGH THE CURB.

5. THE MINIMUM LENGTH OF OFFSET JOINTS AT RADIUS POINTS SHALL BE 2 FEET.

6. ALL JOINTS, INCLUDING EXPANSION JOINTS WITH REMOVABLE TACK STRIPS, SHALL BE SEALED WITH JOINT
SEALANT.

7. THE MATERIALS AND PROPERTIES OF ALL CONCRETE SHALL MEET THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS IN
THE A.C.I. (AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE) MANUAL OF CONCRETE PRACTICE.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY A SECOND COATING OVER ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE
BY OWNER FOLLOWED BY A COAT OF GLASS BEADS AS APPLICABLE PER THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

9. ANY EXISTING PAVEMENT, CURBS AND/OR SIDEWALKS DAMAGED OR REMOVED WILL BE REPAIRED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT HIS EXPENSE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ENGINEER AND OWNER.

10. BEFORE PLACING PAVEMENT, CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY  SUITABLE ACCESSIBLE ROUTES (PER A.D.A).
GRADING FOR ALL SIDEWALKS AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTES INCLUDING CROSSING DRIVEWAYS SHALL
CONFORM TO CURRENT ADA STATE/NATIONAL STANDARDS. IN NO CASE SHALL ACCESSIBLE RAMP SLOPES
EXCEED 1 VERTICAL TO 12 HORIZONTAL.  IN NO CASE SHALL SIDEWALK CROSS SLOPES EXCEED 2% . IN NO
CASE SHALL LONGITUDINAL SIDEWALK SLOPES EXCEED 5%. IN NO CASE SHALL ACCESSIBLE PARKING
STALLS OR AISLES EXCEED 2% (1.5% TARGET) IN ALL DIRECTIONS. SIDEWALK ACCESS TO EXTERNAL
BUILDING DOORS AND GATES SHALL BE ADA COMPLIANT. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER
IMMEDIATELY IF ADA CRITERIA CANNOT BE MET IN ANY LOCATION PRIOR TO PAVING. NO CONTRACTOR
CHANGE ORDERS WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR A.D.A COMPLIANCE ISSUES.

11. MAXIMUM JOINT SPACING IS TWICE THE DEPTH OF THE CONCRETE PAVEMENT IN FEET.

GRADING AND DRAINAGE NOTES
1. GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY THE SUITABILITY OF ALL EXISTING AND

PROPOSED SITE CONDITIONS INCLUDING GRADES AND DIMENSIONS BEFORE START OF CONSTRUCTION.
THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GRADE THE SITE TO THE ELEVATIONS INDICATED  AND SHALL ADJUST BMP'S AS
NECESSARY AND REGRADE WASHOUTS WHERE THEY OCCUR AFTER EVERY RAINFALL UNTIL A GRASS
STAND IS WELL ESTABLISHED OR ADEQUATE STABILIZATION OCCURS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THERE IS POSITIVE DRAINAGE FROM THE PROPOSED BUILDINGS SO THAT
SURFACE RUNOFF WILL DRAIN BY GRAVITY TO NEW OR EXISTING DRAINAGE OUTLETS. CONTRACTOR
SHALL ENSURE NO PONDING OCCURS IN PAVED AREAS AND SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER IF ANY GRADING
DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND IN THE EXISTING AND PROPOSED GRADES PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF
PAVEMENT OR UTILITIES.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL MANHOLE COVERS, VALVE COVERS, VAULT LIDS, FIRE HYDRANTS,
POWER POLES, GUY WIRES, AND TELEPHONE BOXES THAT ARE TO REMAIN IN PLACE AND UNDISTURBED
DURING CONSTRUCTION. EXISTING CASTINGS AND STRUCTURES TO REMAIN SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO
MATCH THE PROPOSED FINISHED GRADES.

5. BACKFILL FOR UTILITY LINES SHALL BE PLACED PER DETAILS, STANDARDS, AND SPECIFICATIONS SO THAT
THE UTILITY WILL BE STABLE. WHERE UTILITY LINES CROSS THE PARKING LOT, THE TOP 6 INCHES SHALL
BE COMPACTED SIMILARLY TO THE REMAINDER OF THE LOT. UTILITY DITCHES SHALL BE VISUALLY
INSPECTED DURING THE EXCAVATION PROCESS TO ENSURE THAT UNDESIRABLE FILL IS NOT USED.

6. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF 4" OF TOPSOIL AT COMPLETION
OF WORK. ALL UNPAVED AREAS IN EXISTING RIGHTS-OF-WAY DISTURBED BY  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
REGRADED AND SODDED.

7. AFTER PLACEMENT OF SUBGRADE AND PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF PAVEMENT, CONTRACTOR SHALL TEST
AND OBSERVE PAVEMENT AREAS FOR EVIDENCE OF PONDING. ALL AREAS SHALL ADEQUATELY DRAIN
TOWARDS THE INTENDED STRUCTURE TO CONVEY STORM RUNOFF. CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY
NOTIFY OWNER AND ENGINEER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE DISCOVERED.

8. WHERE EXISTING PAVEMENT IS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED AND  REPLACED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
SAW CUT FULL DEPTH FOR A SMOOTH AND STRAIGHT JOINT AND REPLACE THE PAVEMENT WITH THE SAME
TYPE AND  DEPTH OF MATERIAL AS EXISTING OR AS INDICATED.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL PROTECTION OVER ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES FOR THE DURATION OF
CONSTRUCTION AND UNTIL  ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT BY THE OWNER.  ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES
SHALL BE CLEANED OF DEBRIS AS REQUIRED DURING AND AT THE END OF CONSTRUCTION TO PROVIDE
POSITIVE DRAINAGE FLOWS.

10. IF DEWATERING IS REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ANY APPLICABLE REQUIRED PERMITS.
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER AND THE DESIGN ENGINEER PRIOR TO ANY
EXCAVATION.

11. FIELD DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE TAKEN AT INTERVALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL
AGENCY OR TO STATE DOT STANDARDS. IN THE EVENT THAT THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND THE
JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY REQUIREMENTS ARE NOT IN AGREEMENT, THE MOST STRINGENT SHALL
GOVERN.

12. ALL SLOPES AND AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE GRADED AS PER PLANS.  THE AREAS
SHALL THEN BE SODDED OR SEEDED AS SPECIFIED IN THE PLANS, FERTILIZED, MULCHED, WATERED AND
MAINTAINED UNTIL GROWTH IS ESTABLISHED TO MINIMUM COVERAGE OF 70% IN ALL AREAS.  ANY AREAS
DISTURBED FOR ANY REASON PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE JOB SHALL BE CORRECTED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.  ALL EARTHEN AREAS WILL  BE SODDED OR
SEEDED AND MULCHED AS SHOWN ON THE LANDSCAPING PLAN.

13. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONTROL OF DUST AND DIRT RISING AND
SCATTERING IN THE AIR DURING CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL PROVIDE WATER SPRINKLING OR OTHER
SUITABLE METHODS OF CONTROL.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL GOVERNING
REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.

14. SOD, WHERE CALLED FOR, MUST BE INSTALLED AND MAINTAINED ON EXPOSED SLOPES WITHIN 48 HOURS
OF COMPLETING FINAL GRADING, AND AT ANY OTHER TIME AS NECESSARY, TO PREVENT EROSION,
SEDIMENTATION OR TURBID DISCHARGES.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT LANDSCAPE ISLAND PLANTING AREAS AND OTHER PLANTING
AREAS ARE NOT COMPACTED AND DO NOT CONTAIN ROAD BASE MATERIALS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
ALSO EXCAVATE AND REMOVE ALL UNDESIRABLE MATERIAL FROM ALL AREAS ON THE SITE TO BE PLANTED
AND PROPERLY DISPOSED OF IN A LEGAL MANNER.

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL UNDERGROUND STORM WATER PIPING PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS AND STATE DOT SPECIFICATIONS.

17. PAVEMENTS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE SITE SPECIFIC
GEOTECHNICAL EVALUATION REPORT AND CITY & STATE DOT SPECIFICATIONS.

18. SPOT ELEVATIONS REPRESENT THE FINISHED SURFACE GRADE OR FLOWLINE OF CURB UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

19. LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION ARE TO THE PROPERTY LINE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON THE PLAN.

20. IMMEDIATELY REPORT TO THE OWNER ANY DISCREPANCIES FOUND BETWEEN ACTUAL FIELD CONDITIONS
AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

21. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING AND PROTECTING EXISTING UTILITIES, AND SHALL
REPAIR ALL DAMAGE TO EXISTING UTILITIES THAT OCCUR DURING CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT
COMPENSATION.

22. BLEND NEW EARTHWORK SMOOTHLY TO TRANSITION BACK TO EXISTING GRADE.

23. ALL PROPOSED GRADES ONSITE SHALL BE 3:1 OR FLATTER UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED ON THE PLANS.
ANY SLOPES STEEPER THAN 4:1 REQUIRE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BLANKET.

24. ADHERE TO ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS NECESSARY IN THE GENERAL N.P.D.E.S. PERMIT AND
STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) FOR STORMWATER DISCHARGE ASSOCIATED WITH
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

25. ADJUST AND/OR CUT EXISTING PAVEMENT AS NECESSARY TO ASSURE A SMOOTH FIT AND CONTINUOUS
GRADE.

WATER STORM SEWER & SANITARY SEWER NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT GRAVITY SEWER LATERALS, MANHOLES, GRAVITY SEWER LINES,

AND DOMESTIC WATER AND FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM AS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL FURNISH ALL NECESSARY MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, MACHINERY, TOOLS, MEANS OF
TRANSPORTATION AND LABOR NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK IN FULL AND COMPLETE
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SHOWN, DESCRIBED AND REASONABLY INTENDED REQUIREMENTS OF THE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY REQUIREMENTS.  IN THE EVENT THAT THE
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND THE JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY REQUIREMENTS ARE NOT IN AGREEMENT, THE
MOST STRINGENT SHALL GOVERN.

2. ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
COMPLY WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS FOR UTILITY LOCATION AND COORDINATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
NOTES CONTAINED IN THE GENERAL CONSTRUCTION SECTION OF THIS SHEET.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL DISTURBED VEGETATION IN KIND, UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE.

4. DEFLECTION OF PIPE JOINTS AND CURVATURE OF PIPE SHALL NOT EXCEED THE  MANUFACTURER'S
SPECIFICATIONS.  SECURELY CLOSE ALL OPEN ENDS OF  PIPE AND FITTINGS WITH A WATERTIGHT PLUG
WHEN WORK IS NOT IN  PROGRESS.  THE INTERIOR OF ALL PIPES SHALL BE CLEAN AND JOINT SURFACES
WIPED CLEAN AND DRY AFTER THE PIPE HAS BEEN LOWERED INTO THE  TRENCH.  VALVES SHALL BE
PLUMB AND LOCATED ACCORDING TO THE PLANS.

5. ALL PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL BE CAREFULLY STORED FOLLOWING MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS.  CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO AVOID  DAMAGE TO THE COATING OR LINING IN ANY D.I.
PIPE FITTINGS.  ANY PIPE OR FITTING WHICH IS DAMAGED OR WHICH HAS FLAWS OR IMPERFECTIONS
WHICH, IN THE OPINION OF THE ENGINEER OR OWNER, RENDERS IT UNFIT FOR USE, SHALL NOT BE USED.
ANY PIPE NOT SATISFACTORY FOR USE SHALL BE CLEARLY MARKED AND IMMEDIATELY REMOVED FROM
THE JOB SITE, AND SHALL BE REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

6. WATER FOR FIRE FIGHTING SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR USE BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO
COMBUSTIBLES BEING BROUGHT ON SITE.

7. ALL UTILITY AND STORM DRAIN TRENCHES LOCATED UNDER AREAS TO RECEIVE PAVING SHALL BE
COMPLETELY BACK FILLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNING JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY'S
SPECIFICATIONS.  IN THE EVENT THAT THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND THE JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY
REQUIREMENTS ARE NOT IN AGREEMENT, THE MOST STRINGENT SHALL GOVERN.

8. UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES SHALL BE SURVEYED BY A STATE LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND
SURVEYOR PRIOR TO  BACK FILLING.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM, AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE, ANY AND ALL TESTS REQUIRED BY THE
SPECIFICATIONS AND/OR ANY AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION. THESE TESTS MAY INCLUDE, BUT MAY NOT
BE LIMITED TO, INFILTRATION AND EXFILTRATION, TELEVISION INSPECTION AND A MANDREL TEST ON
GRAVITY SEWER.  A COPY OF THE TEST RESULTS SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE UTILITY PROVIDER, OWNER
AND JURISDICTIONAL AGENCY AS REQUIRED.

10. BETWEEN WATER AND SEWER MANHOLES AND PIPES, CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE FOR A MINIMUM
HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE OF 10-FEET AND A MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION OF 18-INCHES.

11. IF ANY EXISTING STRUCTURES TO REMAIN ARE DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION IT SHALL BE THE
CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO REPAIR AND/OR REPLACE THE EXISTING STRUCTURE AS NECESSARY
TO RETURN IT TO EXISTING CONDITIONS OR BETTER.

12. ALL STORM PIPE ENTERING STRUCTURES SHALL BE GASKETED AND/OR GROUTED TO ASSURE
CONNECTION AT STRUCTURE IS WATERTIGHT UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED BY CITY AND STATE DESIGN
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

13. UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED IN CITY AND STATE DESIGN STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS, ALL STORM
SEWER MANHOLES IN PAVED AREAS SHALL BE FLUSH WITH PAVEMENT, AND SHALL HAVE TRAFFIC
BEARING RING & COVERS. MANHOLES IN UNPAVED AREAS SHALL BE 6" ABOVE FINISH GRADE. LIDS SHALL
BE  LABELED "STORM SEWER". EXISTING CASTINGS AND STRUCTURES WITHIN PROJECT LIMITS SHALL BE
ADJUSTED TO MEET THESE CONDITIONS AND THE PROPOSED FINISHED GRADE.

14. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION IS TAKEN FROM A TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BY LAND SURVEYORS.  IF THE
CONTRACTOR DOES NOT ACCEPT EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS, WITHOUT
EXCEPTION, THEN THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY, AT THEIR EXPENSE, A TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY BY A
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR TO THE OWNER FOR REVIEW.

15. CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE GOVERNING CODES AND BE CONSTRUCTED TO
SAME.

16. ALL STORM STRUCTURES SHALL HAVE A SMOOTH UNIFORM POURED MORTAR FROM INVERT IN TO INVERT
OUT.

17. ROOF DRAINS SHALL BE CONNECTED TO STORM SEWER BY PREFABRICATED WYES OR AT STORM
STRUCTURES.  ROOF DRAINS AND TRUCK WELL DRAIN SHALL RUN AT A MINIMUM 2.0% SLOPE, UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE, AND TIE IN AT THE CENTERLINE OF THE STORM MAIN.

18. PROVIDE INSULATION OF UNDERGROUND ROOF DRAINS AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICES IF ADEQUATE
FROST DEPTH CANNOT BE PROVIDED.

19. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND APPURTENANCES THAT ARE
TO REMAIN FROM DAMAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

20. THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, STORM DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AND OTHER ABOVE AND
BELOW-GRADE IMPROVEMENTS ARE APPROXIMATE AS SHOWN. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
TO DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION, SIZE AND INVERT ELEVATIONS OF EACH PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

21. A MINIMUM SEPARATION OF 5-FEET IS REQUIRED BETWEEN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND TREES UNLESS
A ROOT BARRIER IS UTILIZED.

22. GAS, PHONE AND ELECTRIC SERVICES SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. DRY UTILITY
COMPANIES MAY ALTER THE DESIGN LAYOUT DURING THEIR REVIEW. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE
FINAL DESIGN AND INSTALLATION WITH UTILITY COMPANIES.

23. COORDINATE UTILITY INSTALLATION WITH IRRIGATION DESIGN AND INSTALLATION.

24. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FLOW LINE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  PERIMETER WALL DIMENSIONS
ARE TO INSIDE WALL FACE. REFERENCE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT WALL WIDTH AND
SPECIFICATIONS.

25. REFERENCE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS (BY OTHERS) FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS, MATERIALS
SPECIFICATIONS.

26. REFERENCE M.E.P. PLANS (BY OTHERS) FOR MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT DIMENSIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

27. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE STRUCTURAL PLANS (BY OTHERS) FOR FOOTING AND FOUNDATION PAD
PREPARATION SPECIFICATIONS.

28. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE M.E.P PLANS (BY OTHERS) FOR ROUTING OF PROPOSED ELECTRICAL  &
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES AND SITE LIGHTING LAYOUT.

THIRD PARTY SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
KIMLEY-HORN ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, INACCURACIES, OR OMISSIONS
CONTAINED WITHIN SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THIRD PARTY CONSULTANTS.

1. BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
PERFORMED BY: EGAN, FIELD & NOWAK, INC.
ADDRESS: 475 OLD HIGHWAY 8 NW, SUITE 200 NEW BRIGHTON, MN 55112

       PHONE: (612) 466-3300
       DATED: 02/02/2024

2. GEOTECHNICAL EVALUATION REPORT
PERFORMED BY: ELEMENT MATERIALS TECHNOLOGY

ADDRESS: 662 CROMWELL AVENUE, ST. PAUL, MN 55114
PHONE: 651-645-3601
DATED: 03/01/2024

3. CONSTRUCTION TESTING
TEST REPORTS REQUIRED FOR CLOSE OUT INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO:
· DENSITY TEST REPORTS
· BACTERIOLOGICAL TESTS OF WATER SYSTEM
· PRESSURE TEST OF WATER/SEWER
· LEAK TESTS ON SEWER SYSTEM AND GREASE TRAPS
· ANY OTHER TESTING REQUIRED BY THE AGENCY/MUNICIPALITY

155

Item 6.



51ST COURT NORTHEAST

ITEM 9

920

918

919

921

922

920

92
0

91
8

91
9

921

921

92
1

92
1

92
2

92
2

922

922

1.07%

2.10%

2.08%

1.88%

2.
43

%

922

922

92
2

920

919

921

920

921

92
1

919

922

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING 12" RCP STORM
SEWER TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING STORM INLET
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINE
TO BE RELOCATED EXISTING GAS LINE

TO BE RELOCATED

EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING GAS LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

SAWCUT

LIMITS OF CURB REMOVAL

LIMITS OF CURB REMOVAL

EXISTING CURB
TO BE REMOVED

SILT FENCE

EXISTING WATER LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING WATER LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING STOP SIGN TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING UTILITY APPURTENANCE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

SILT FENCE

EXISTING GAS LINE STAKE
TO REMAIN, PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING GAS LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

EXISTING BUILDING TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

INLET PROTECTION (TYP.)

INLET PROTECTION (TYP.)

EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

1.
74

%

BIOROLL
(OFFSET FOR CLARITY)

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

EXISTING TREE TO
BE REMOVED

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

2-
D

EM
O

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

Ap
ril

 0
1,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:3
7a

m

©

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

D
EM

O
 &

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

A
N

D
 S

ED
IM

EN
T

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
A

N

C200

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

NORTH

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEMOLITION,
REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL (IN A LOCATION APPROVED BY ALL
GOVERNING AUTHORITIES) OF ALL STRUCTURES, PADS, WALLS,
FLUMES, FOUNDATIONS, PARKING, DRIVES, DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, ETC. SUCH THAT THE IMPROVEMENTS
ON THE PLANS CAN BE CONSTRUCTED. FACILITIES TO BE
REMOVED SHALL BE UNDERCUT TO SUITABLE MATERIAL AND
BROUGHT TO GRADE WITH SUITABLE COMPACTED FILL
MATERIAL PER THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

2. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ALL DEBRIS
FROM THE SITE AND DISPOSING OF THE DEBRIS IN A LAWFUL
MANNER AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE
REGULATIONS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ANY
REQUIRED PERMITS FOR DEMOLITION AND DISPOSAL FROM THE
APPROPRIATE LOCAL AND STATE AGENCIES. CONTRACTOR
SHALL PROVIDE COPIES OF THE PERMIT AND RECEIPTS OF
DISPOSAL OF MATERIALS TO THE OWNER AND OWNERS
REPRESENTATIVE, INCLUDING THE TYPE OF DEBRIS AND
LOCATION WHERE IT WAS DISPOSED.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN UTILITY SERVICES TO
ADJACENT PROPERTIES AT ALL TIMES. UTILITY SERVICES SHALL
NOT BE INTERRUPTED WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM THE
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND COORDINATION WITH THE
ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND/OR THE CITY.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH RESPECTIVE
UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO THE REMOVAL AND/OR
RELOCATION OF UTILITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY COMPANY CONCERNING
PORTIONS OF WORK WHICH MAY BE PERFORMED BY THE
UTILITY COMPANY'S FORCES AND ANY FEES WHICH ARE TO BE
PAID TO THE UTILITY COMPANY FOR THEIR SERVICES. THE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING ALL FEES AND
CHARGES.

5. THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THE PLAN
HAVE BEEN DETERMINED FROM THE BEST INFORMATION
AVAILABLE AND ARE GIVEN FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE
CONTRACTOR. THE ENGINEER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY

FOR THEIR ACCURACY. PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY
DEMOLITION ACTIVITY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE
AFFECTED UTILITY COMPANIES TO PROVIDE LOCATIONS OF
EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN PROPOSED WORK AREA.

6. EXISTING SEWERS, PIPING AND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE BASED
ON AVAILABLE RECORD PLAN DATA AND/OR FIELD UTILITY
MARKINGS AND ARE NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS THE EXACT
LOCATION. ADDITIONAL UNMARKED OBSTACLES MAY EXIST ON
THE SITE. VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS AND PROCEED WITH
CAUTION AROUND ANY ANTICIPATED UNDERGROUND
FEATURES. GIVE NOTICE TO AFFECTED UTILITY COMPANIES
REGARDING REMOVAL OF SERVICE LINES AND CAP ANY
ABANDONED LINES BEFORE PRECEDING WITH THE PROPOSED
WORK.

7. ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE, CABLE, WATER, FIBER OPTIC, AND/OR
GAS LINES NEEDING TO BE REMOVED OR RELOCATED SHALL BE
COORDINATED WITH THE AFFECTED UTILITY COMPANY.
ADEQUATE TIME SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR RELOCATION AND
CLOSE COORDINATION WITH THE UTILITY COMPANY IS
NECESSARY TO PROVIDE A SMOOTH TRANSITION IN UTILITY
SERVICE. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY CLOSE ATTENTION TO
EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN ANY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

8. CONTRACTOR MUST PROTECT THE PUBLIC AT ALL TIMES WITH
FENCING, BARRICADES, ENCLOSURES, ETC. (AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES) AS APPROVED
BY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC
CONTROL SHALL BE COORDINATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
CITY, COUNTY, AND STATE DOT AS NECESSARY.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ACCESS TO ADJACENT
PROPERTIES DURING CONSTRUCTION, AND SHALL NOTIFY
ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS IF ACCESS WILL BE
INTERRUPTED OR ALTERED AT ANY TIME DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

10. PRIOR TO THE START OF DEMOLITION, INSTALL EROSION
CONTROL BMP'S IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EROSION &

SEDIMENT CONTROL PLANS / SWPPP.

11. CONTRACTOR MAY LIMIT SAW-CUT AND PAVEMENT REMOVAL
TO ONLY THOSE AREAS WHERE IT IS REQUIRED AS SHOWN ON
THESE CONSTRUCTION PLANS BUT IF ANY DAMAGE IS
INCURRED ON ANY OF THE SURROUNDING PAVEMENT OR CURB,
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ITS REMOVAL
AND REPAIR.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WATER MAIN WORK
WITH THE CITY WATER AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS TO ENSURE
ADEQUATE FIRE PROTECTION IS CONSTANTLY AVAILABLE TO
THE SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTIES THROUGH ALL
PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR WILL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ARRANGING/PROVIDING ANY REQUIRED
WATER MAIN SHUT OFFS WITH THE CITY. ANY COSTS
ASSOCIATED WITH WATER MAIN SHUT OFFS WILL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND NO EXTRA
COMPENSATION WILL BE PROVIDED.

13. IN THE EVENT A WELL IS FOUND, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
CONTACT THE ENGINEER AND OWNER IMMEDIATELY. ALL
WELLS SHALL BE SEALED BY A LICENSED WELL CONTRACTOR IN
ACCORDANCE WITH STATE  REQUIREMENTS.

14. IN THE EVENT THAT UNKNOWN CONTAINERS OR TANKS ARE
ENCOUNTERED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE
OWNER AND/OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE IMMEDIATELY. ALL
CONTAINERS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AT A PERMITTED
LANDFILL PER THE PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IF ANY EXISTING
DRAINTILE IS ENCOUNTERED ON SITE; ACTIVE DRAINTILE SHALL
NOT BE REMOVED WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEER.

16. IF CONTAMINATED MATERIAL IS ENCOUNTERED ON THE
PROJECT SITE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP WORK AND
NOTIFY THE OWNER AND ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

DEMOLITION PLAN NOTESPHASE 1 BMP QUANTITIES
INLET PROTECTION 2 EA

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA

BIO ROLL ±25 LF

SILT FENCE ±365 LF

1. INSTALL PERIMETER EROSION CONTROL (I.E. SILT FENCE) AND INLET PROTECTION AT EXISTING
STORMWATER INLETS.

2. CONSTRUCT STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AND CONCRETE WASHOUT
3. PREPARE TEMPORARY PARKING AND STORAGE AREA.
4. CONSTRUCT AND STABILIZE DIVERSIONS AND TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASINS.
5. CLEAR AND GRUB THE SITE.
6. BEGIN MASS SITE GRADING AND ROUGH GRADE SITE SUFFICIENTLY TO ESTABLISH PROPOSED

DRAINAGE PATTERNS.
7. START CONSTRUCTION OF THE BUILDING PAD AND STRUCTURES.
8. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DISTURBED AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR

14 DAYS OR MORE OR AS REQUIRED BY THE NPDES AND/OR CITY GRADING PERMIT(S).

NOTE: THE SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION IS INTENDED TO CONVEY THE GENERAL CONCEPTS OF THE
EROSION CONTROL DESIGN AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. THE
CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETAILED PHASING AND CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCING
NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE
ENGINEER IN WRITING IMMEDIATELY, PRIOR TO AND/OR DURING CONSTRUCTION IF ANY ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION ON THE CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE IS NECESSARY.

PHASE 1 SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION

REMOVE BITUMINOUS SURFACE

REMOVE CONCRETE SURFACE

REMOVE BUILDING

REMOVE TREE

REMOVE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

REMOVE UTILITY LINES

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER LINE
EXISTING CHAINLINK FENCE
EXISTING J-BARRIER
EXISTING RETAINING WALL
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
EXISTING STORM SEWER
EXISTING WATERMAIN
EXISTING GAS MAIN

EXISTING UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND CABLE

EXISTING CONTOUR

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING FLARED END SECTION

EXISTING STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING STORM CATCHBASIN

EXISTING GAS METER

EXISTING POST INDICATOR VALVE
EXISTING WELL
EXISTING AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER
EXISTING ROOF DRAIN
EXISTING GATE VALVE

EXISTING HYDRANT
EXISTING METAL COVER

EXISTING ELECTRICAL METER

EXISTING AIR CONDITIONER
EXISTING TELEPHONE MANHOLE
EXISTING CABLE BOX
EXISTING GUY WIRE
EXISTING POWER POLE

CLEARING & GRUBBING

FILL & ABANDON UTILITY LINES

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

LEGEND

FULL DEPTH SAWCUT

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING TREE LINE

ROCK ENTRANCE

INLET PROTECTION

SILT FENCE

BIOROLL

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

156

Item 6.



END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

T

BIOROLL,
OFFSET FOR CLARITY, TYP.

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

922

92
2

92
1

921

921921

920

918

919

921

920

920

921

921

921

920

920

920

92
0

91
8

91
9

92
1

92
2

920

920

92
0

918

919
921

921

921

92
1

92
2

922

92
2 922

922

922

921

919

PROPOSED ROCK
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

SILT FENCE

922

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

NORTH

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

ER
O

SI
O

N
 A

N
D

SE
D

IM
EN

T
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

A
N

 -
PH

A
SE

 2

C201

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

1. TEMPORARILY SEED, THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION, DENUDED AREAS THAT WILL BE INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE.
2. CONSTRUCT UNDERGROUND SITE UTILITIES AND STORM SEWER, INCLUDING UNDERGROUND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

SYSTEM.
3. INSTALL APPROPRIATE INLET PROTECTION AT ANY NEW STORM SEWER STRUCTURES AS EACH STRUCTURE IS CONSTRUCTED.
4. COMPLETE SITE GRADING AND PERMANENTLY STABILIZE AREAS TO BE VEGETATED AS THEY ARE BROUGHT TO FINAL GRADE.
5. PLACE PAVEMENT BASE MATERIAL AND INSTALL SUBDRAINAGE SYSTEM.
6. CONSTRUCT PAVEMENTS, CURB & GUTTER, AND SIDEWALKS.
7. AS APPROPRIATE, REPLACE & MAINTAIN INLET PROTECTION DEVICES WITHIN PAVED AREAS AS WORK PROGRESSES.
8. COMPLETE FINAL GRADING AND INSTALL OF PERMANENT STABILIZATION (SEEDING, SODDING, ETC.) WITHIN LANDSCAPED

AREAS.
9. WHEN THE SITE HAS ACHIEVED FINAL STABILIZATION AS DEFINED BY THE APPLICABLE EROSION CONTROL PERMITS, REMOVE

ALL REMAINING TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S AND RE-STABILIZE ANY AREAS DISTURBED BY THE
REMOVAL.

NOTE: THE SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION IS INTENDED TO CONVEY THE GENERAL CONCEPTS OF THE EROSION CONTROL DESIGN AND
SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. THE CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETAILED PHASING
AND CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCING NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE ENGINEER IN WRITING IMMEDIATELY, PRIOR TO AND/OR DURING CONSTRUCTION IF ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE IS NECESSARY.

PHASE 2 SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION

ROCK ENTRANCE

INLET PROTECTION

SILT FENCE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

SAFETY FENCE

LEGEND

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

1. THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
("SWPPP") IS COMPRISED OF THE EROSION CONTROL
PLAN, THE STANDARD DETAILS, THE PLAN NARRATIVE,
ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED IN THE SPECIFICATIONS OF
THE SWPPP, PLUS THE PERMIT AND ALL SUBSEQUENT
REPORTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS.

2. ALL CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS INVOLVED
WITH LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES SHALL OBTAIN A
COPY OF THE SWPPP AND NATIONAL POLLUTANT
DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) GENERAL
PERMIT, AND BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THEIR
CONTENTS.

3. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) AND
CONTROLS SHALL CONFORM TO FEDERAL, STATE AND
LOCAL REQUIREMENTS, AS APPLICABLE. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT ADDITIONAL
CONTROLS AS DIRECTED BY THE PERMITTING AGENCY,
ENGINEER OR OWNER.

4. SITE ENTRY AND EXIT LOCATIONS SHALL BE
MAINTAINED IN A CONDITION THAT WILL PREVENT THE
TRACKING OR FLOWING OF SEDIMENT ONTO PUBLIC
ROADWAYS.  SEDIMENT SPILLED, DROPPED, WASHED,
OR TRACKED ONTO A PUBLIC ROADWAY FROM THE
CONSTRUCTION SITE MUST BE REMOVED AS SOON AS
PRACTICABLE. WHEN WASHING IS REQUIRED TO
REMOVE SEDIMENT PRIOR TO ENTRANCE ONTO A
PUBLIC ROADWAY, IT SHALL BE DONE IN AN AREA
STABILIZED WITH CRUSHED STONE WHICH DRAINS
INTO AN APPROVED SEDIMENT BASIN.  ANY FINES

IMPOSED FOR DISCHARGING SEDIMENT ONTO A
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY SHALL BE PAID BY THE
CONTRACTOR.

5. TEMPORARY SEEDING OR OTHER APPROVED
METHODS OF STABILIZATION SHALL BE INITIATED
WITHIN 7 DAYS OF THE LAST DISTURBANCE ON ANY
AREA OF THE SITE.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MINIMIZE LAND
DISTURBANCE AND CLEARING TO THE MAXIMUM
EXTENT PRACTICAL OR AS REQUIRED BY THE
GENERAL PERMIT.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL DENOTE ON THE PLAN THE
TEMPORARY PARKING AND STORAGE AREA WHICH
SHALL ALSO BE USED AS THE EQUIPMENT
MAINTENANCE AND CLEANING AREA, EMPLOYEE
PARKING AREA, AND AREA FOR LOCATING PORTABLE
FACILITIES, OFFICE TRAILERS, AND TOILET FACILITIES.

8. ALL WASH WATER FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE
(CONCRETE TRUCKS, VEHICLE CLEANING, EQUIPMENT
CLEANING, ETC.) SHALL BE DETAINED AND PROPERLY
TREATED BEFORE DISPOSAL.

9. SUFFICIENT OIL AND GREASE ABSORBING MATERIALS
AND FLOTATION BOOMS SHALL BE MAINTAINED ON
SITE OR READILY AVAILABLE TO CONTAIN AND
CLEAN-UP FUEL OR CHEMICAL SPILLS AND LEAKS.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DUST

CONTROL ON SITE. THE USE OF MOTOR OILS AND
OTHER PETROLEUM BASED OR TOXIC LIQUIDS FOR
DUST SUPPRESSION OPERATIONS IS PROHIBITED.

11. RUBBISH, TRASH, GARBAGE, LITTER, OR OTHER SUCH
MATERIALS SHALL BE DEPOSITED INTO SEALED
CONTAINERS.  MATERIALS SHALL BE PREVENTED FROM
LEAVING THE PREMISES THROUGH THE ACTION OF
WIND OR STORM WATER DISCHARGE INTO DRAINAGE
DITCHES OR WATERS OF THE STATE.

12. STAGING AREAS, STOCKPILES, SPOILS, ETC. SHALL BE
LOCATED OUTSIDE OF DRAINAGE WAYS SUCH THAT
STORM WATER RUNOFF WILL NOT BE ADVERSELY
AFFECTED. PROVIDE STABILIZATION MEASURES SUCH
AS PERIMETER EROSION CONTROL BMP'S, SEEDING,
OR OTHER COVERING AS NECESSARY TO PREVENT
EROSION.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
RE-ESTABLISHING ANY EROSION CONTROL BMP
DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.
NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY
DEFICIENCIES IN THE ESTABLISHED EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES THAT MAY LEAD TO
UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE OF STORM WATER
POLLUTANTS. UNAUTHORIZED POLLUTANTS INCLUDE
(BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO) EXCESS CONCRETE
DUMPING, CONCRETE RESIDUE, PAINTS, SOLVENTS,
GREASES, FUELS, LUBRICANT OILS, PESTICIDES, AND
SOLID WASTE MATERIALS.

14. EROSION CONTROL BMP'S SHOWN ON THESE PLANS
SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO THE START OF
LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES ON THE PROJECT, AND
INITIATED AS SOON AS PRACTICABLE.

15. THE CONTRACTOR IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
COMPLYING WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION, AND SHALL
MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS FOR THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.

16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD ADJUST AND/OR
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL BMP'S AS
NEEDED TO PREVENT EROSION AND OFF-SITE
SEDIMENT DISCHARGE FROM THE CONSTRUCTION
SITE. LOG AND RECORD ANY ADJUSTMENTS AND
DEVIATIONS FROM THE APPROVED EROSION CONTROL
PLANS WITHIN THE SWPPP DOCUMENTS STORED IN
THE JOB SITE TRAILER.

EROSION CONTROL PLAN NOTES

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

3-
ER

O
S 

PH
2 

PL
AN

.d
w

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

7a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

BIOROLL

PHASE 2 BMP QUANTITIES
INLET PROTECTION 4 EA

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA

BIO ROLL ±25 LF

SILT FENCE ±365 LF

157

Item 6.



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

3-
ER

O
S 

D
ET

AI
LS

.d
w

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

8a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

ER
O

SI
O

N
 A

N
D

SE
D

IM
EN

T
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
D

ET
A

IL
S

C202

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

BACKFILL

NOTES:
1. PAID FOR AS SILT FENCE - LIGHT DUTY
2. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVAL OF ALL EROSION

CONTROL MATERIALS FOLLOWING TURF ESTABLISHMENT

BURY BOTTOM
6'' OF FABRIC

EXISTING GROUND

WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT

ENGINEERING FABRIC
(MIRAFI ENVIRO - FENCE OR
APPROVED EQUAL)

STEEL FENCE POST
7'-7'' O.C.

OVERLAP GEOTEXTILE
FABRIC 6'' AND FASTEN

2'
2'

-6
''

NO SCALE

SILT FENCE2

EXPANSION RESTRAINT
[1/4" (6 MM) NYLON
ROPE, 2" (51 MM) FLAT
WASHERS]

2 EACH DUMP STRAPS

SILTSACK

1" (25 mm) REBAR
FOR BAG REMOVAL
FROM INLET

DUMP STRAP

DUMP STRAP

NO SCALE

INLET PROTECTION - SEDIMENT FILTER SACK3

50' (15.24 m ) MINIMUM

HARD SURFACE

PUBLIC ROAD

VARIES: FULL
WIDTH OF EXISTING
DRIVEWAY
OPENING, ELSE 20'
(6.10 m) MIN. WIDTH.24" (457 mm) MIN. HIGH CUT-OFF

BERM TO MINIMIZE SILT RUNOFF
FROM SITE.

MNDOT STANDARD
SPECIFICATION 3733 TYPE V

PERMEABLE GEOTEXTILE
FABRIC BENEATH ROCK

MIN. 6" (152 mm) OF 1"
TO 2" (25 mm TO 51 mm)

DIA ROCK.

NO SCALE

ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE1

SCALE: NTS

BIOROLL4

FIBER BIOLOG
(IMPERVIOUS SURFACES)

10'

6"
-8

"

1.0' 2.0' 2.0' 2.0' 2.0' 1.0'

6"
-8

"

STAGGER JOINTS

2.0' 2.0'4.0' 4.0'

5 POUND SAND BAG

DIRECTION OF

RUNOFF FLOW

2" X 2" X 2'
WOOD STAKES

DIRECTION OF

RUNOFF FLOW

DIRECTION OF

RUNOFF FLOW

FIBER BIOLOG
(PERVIOUS SURFACES)

NOTES:
1. STRAW WATTLE SHALL BE COMPACTED STRAW AND/OR ORGANIC FIBER

MATERIAL.
2. STRAW OR FIBER SHALL BE WRAPPED IN UV STABILIZED DEGRADABLE

TUBULAR POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC NETTING.

SCALE: NTS

TREE PROTECTION5

TREE PROTECTION
N.T.S.

158

Item 6.



51ST COURT NORTHEAST

N
O

 PAR
KIN

G

END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

T

DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

5' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT

15' BUILDING & PARKING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

5' PARKING SETBACK

15' BUILDING & PARKING SETBACK

PROPOSED LOT SPLIT

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

U

D

K

Q

Q

Q

U

Z

X

W

W

E

E
F

F

J

J

M

L

G

L

D

V

N

L

M

L

M

L

M L

N

N

A

I

I

I

A

I

9.0'

16.0' 18.0'

9.0'

18.0'

8.
0'

8.
0'

8.
0'

R15.0'

R25.0'

R20.0'

R25.0'

Q

L

L

PROPOSED ROW CONNECTION T

P

P

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

5.0'

6.0'

5.
0'

5.
0'

AA

5.0'

30' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT

4

7

3

M

Q

Q

24.0'18.0'

25.0'

12.0'

±2
4.

0'

27.3'

I

J

M

C

CC

C

5.
0'

C

R8.0'

R

6.0'

9.
0'

9.
0'

9.
0'

BB

D

6.0'

S

5.8'

O

O
O

O

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

4-
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

.d
w

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

8a
m

©

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

NORTH

PROPERTY SUMMARY
TOTAL PROPERTY AREA 0.49 AC / 21,372 SF

DISTURBED AREA 0.46 AC / 19,903 SF

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA 0.41 AC / 17,668 SF / 88.77%

EXISTING PERVIOUS AREA 0.05 AC / 2,235 SF / 11.23%

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA 0.36 AC / 15,474 SF / 77.75%

PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREA 0.10 AC / 4,429 SF / 22.25%

NET DECREASE IN IMPERVIOUS AREA 0.05 AC / 2,194 SF

SITE DATA
EXISTING ZONING GB- GENERAL BUSINESS

PARKING SETBACKS

FRONT = 15'
CORNER SIDE = 15'

REAR = 5'
SIDE = 5'

BUILDING SETBACKS

FRONT = 15'
CORNER SIDE = 15'

REAR = 20'
SIDE = 0'

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

C300

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

BUILDING  DATA
TOTAL BUILDING AREA 3,365 SF

PERCENT OF TOTAL PROPERTY AREA 15.74%

PARKING SUMMARY

REQUIRED PARKING
11 SPACES

@ 1/300 SF PLUS 2 STACKING
SPACES PER ATM

TOTAL PROPOSED PARKING 14 SPACES

REQUIRED ACCESSIBLE PARKING 1 STANDARD SPACES
1 VAN ACCESSIBLE

PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE PARKING 2 STANDARD SPACES
2 VAN ACCESSIBLE

SITE PLAN NOTES
1. REFER TO THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT LOCATIONS AND DIMENSIONS

OF STOOPS, TRUCK DOCKS, TRASH ENCLOSURES & PRECISE BUILDING
DIMENSIONS. REFER TO THE SITE ELECTRICAL PLAN FOR LOCATIONS OF PROPOSED
LIGHT POLES, CONDUITS, AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.

2. REFER TO CERTIFIED SITE SURVEY OR PLAT FOR EXACT LOCATION OF EXISTING
EASEMENTS, PROPERTY BOUNDARY DIMENSIONS, AND ADJACENT RIGHT-OF-WAY &
PARCEL INFORMATION.

3. DIMENSIONS AND RADII ARE DRAWN TO THE FACE OF CURB, UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED. DIMENSIONS ARE ROUNDED TO THE NEAREST TENTH FOOT, AND AREAS
ARE ROUNDED TO THE NEAREST SQUARE FOOT.

4. UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
RELOCATING EXISTING SITE IMPROVEMENTS THAT CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED
WORK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO TRAFFIC SIGNS, LIGHT POLES,
ABOVEGROUND UTILITIES, ETC. PERFORM WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNING AUTHORITIES REQUIREMENTS AND PROJECT SITE WORK
SPECIFICATIONS.  COST SHALL BE INCLUDED IN BASE BID.

5. TYPICAL PARKING STALL DIMENSIONS SHALL BE 9.0-FEET IN WIDTH AND 20-FEET IN
LENGTH UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. (18-FEET IN LENGTH WHEN ABUTTING A
CURB.)

7. ALL INTERIOR CURBED RADII ARE TO BE 3' AND OUTER CURBED RADII ARE TO BE 8'
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

8. MONUMENT SIGN(S) ARE DETAILED ON THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND ARE
SHOWN FOR GRAPHICAL & INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. CONTRACTOR TO
VERIFY SIGN DIMENSIONS, LOCATION AND REQUIRED PERMITS WITH THE OWNER.

9. THE CURB & GUTTER AND CONCRETE WHEEL STOPS LOCATED IN FRONT OF THE
PROPOSED ADA STALLS ARE TO BE PAINTED THE SAME AS THE ADA STRIPING.

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED FENCE

SETBACK LINE

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT

PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

LEGEND

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

EASEMENT

KEYNOTE LEGEND
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

6" CONCRETE FILLED PIPE BOLLARD

MATCH EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT/ CURB & GUTTER

ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN, SIGN AND POST FURNISHED
BY CHASE SIGN VENDOR. BOLLARD AND CONCRETE
FOUNDATION PROVIDED BY GC

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL

AREA STRIPED WITH 4" SYSL @ 45° 2' O.C.

"NO PARKING" SIGN

LANDSCAPE AREA - SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP, SEE DETAIL

SITE DIRECTIONAL SIGN (SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS)

6" CURB AND GUTTER (TYP.), SEE DETAIL

TRANSITION CURB

FLUSH CURB

LIGHT POLE (SEE ARCH SITE PLAN FOR DETAILS)

4" WIDE PAINTED SOLID LINE, TYP.

TRAFFIC FLOW PAVEMENT MARKINGS, TYP. (SEE DETAILS)

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER, CONCRETE PAD, & BOLLARDS
(SEE MEP PLANS FOR DETAILS).

TRASH ENCLOSURE (SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS)

BIKE RACK WITH ASSOCIATED CONCRETE PAD FLATWORK
(SEE ARCH PLANS)

ACCESSIBLE CROSSWALK

PYLON SIGN (SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS)

'DO NOT ENTER' SIGN

CLEARANCE BAR (SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS)

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAD

VRF ENCLOSURE (SEE ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS)

TRUNCATED DOMES

CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER, SEE DETAIL

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

M

N

O

P

Q

R

S

T

U

V

W

X

Y

Z

AA

BB

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE

159

Item 6.



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

4-
SI

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g 

Ap
ril

 0
1,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:3
8a

m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

SCALE: NTS

STANDARD DETAIL3

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

SI
TE

 D
ET

A
IL

S

C301

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

SLOPE 3/4" per ft.

Curb Type X Y
B612 12" 20"
B618 18" 26"
B624 24" 32"

13
 1

/2
"

6"

Y"

7"

R3"

R3"

R1
/2

"

8"X"

3

1

NOTE: EXPANSION JOINT SPACING IS 100'
MIN. 3" CL. 5 UNDER C.&G.

NO SCALE

B6 CURB AND GUTTER1 NO SCALE

CURB TAPER2

CONCRETE CURB
AND GUTTER

TAPER

PERSPECTIVE

FLOW LINE

BITUMINOUS
PAVEMNT

24"

4" STEEL TROWLED
EDGES AND JOINTS

COARSE BROOM
FINISH

1/2" EXPANSION JOINT VERY 60',
CONTRACTION JOINT EVERY 6'

MEMBRANE CURING
COMPOUND (200 SF/GALLON)
(STD. WALK AND MEDIAN ONLY

4" CONCRETE WALK

COMPACTED,
APPROVED
SUBGRADE

NOTES:
1. ALL EXCAVATION, COMPACTION AND BACKFILL INCIDENTAL TO

UNIT PRICE BID FOR 4" SIDEWALK

NO SCALE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK4

1/2" DEEP HOLE,
SEAL WITH
MORTAR

#6 BAR, 2'-6"
LONG

1"Ø HOLE

1"Ø HOLE

#3 BARS

NO SCALE

PRECAST WHEEL STOP8

2" WEAR COURSE ASPHALT
CONCRETE

PROPERLY PREPARED FILLS,
NATURAL SUB-GRADE SOILS,
AND/OR STRUCTURAL SITE
GRADING FILL

8" AGGREGATE BASE

TACK COAT

2" NON WEAR COURSE ASPHALT
CONCRETE

NO SCALE

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION5

PAVEMENT SECTIONS SHOWN ARE PROVIDED AS A REFERENCE ONLY. REFER
TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ALL PAVEMENT, SUBGRADE PREPARATION
AND COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS.

24"

3/8"

7"

NO SCALE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION7

PAVEMENT SECTIONS SHOWN ARE PROVIDED AS A REFERENCE ONLY. REFER
TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ALL PAVEMENT, SUBGRADE PREPARATION
AND COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS.

NO SCALE

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION6

PAVEMENT SECTIONS SHOWN ARE PROVIDED AS A REFERENCE ONLY. REFER
TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ALL PAVEMENT, SUBGRADE PREPARATION
AND COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS.

160

Item 6.



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

4-
SI

TE
 D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g 

Ap
ril

 0
1,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:3
8a

m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

SI
TE

 D
ET

A
IL

S

C302

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

NOTE:
1. TAPED AREAS TO BE CENTERED AND ALIGNED ON CENTER LINE AND LANE LINES.

MAKE ADJUSTMENTS IN CENTER MEDIAN AREA.
2. ZEBRA CROSSWALKS SHALL BE WHITE POLYMER-PREFORMED TAPE OR AN

ACCEPTABLE EQUALIVANT APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.
3. A MINIMUM OF 1.5 FT. CLEAR DISTANCE MUST BE LEFT ADJACENT TO CURB. IF

LAST STRIPED AREA FALLS INTO THIS DISTANCE, IT MUST BE OMITTED.
4. REMOVE ALL CONFLICTING PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS DIRECTED BY THE
ENGINEER.
5. AT SKEWED CROSSWALKS, THE TAPED AREAS ARE TO REMAIN PARALLEL TO THE

LANE  LINES.
6. WHERE PAVEMENT MARKINGS CAN NOT BE INLAYED INTO THE HOT MAT,

PAVEMENT SHALL BE GROOVED FOR THE INSTALLATION OF THE
POLYMER-PREFORMED MARKINGS. SEE Mn/DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 2564.

6'

3'

3'

PAVEMENT MARKING (TYP.) DRIVING LANE
(WIDTH VARIES)

DRIVING LANE
(WIDTH VARIES)

℄
ROAD

NO SCALE

CROSSWALK STRIPING1

12" 48" 12"

12"

ASPHALT CONCRETE
APPROVED DENSE

GRADED AGGREGATE

HOT TAR SEAL

SCALE: NTS

ASPHALT TO ASPHALT TRANSITION3 SCALE: NTS

CONCRETE TO ASPHALT TRANSITION4SCALE: NTS

TRUNCATED DOMES2

SCALE: NTS

ADA PARKING STALL LAYOUT5 SCALE: NTS

ADA PARKING SYMBOL6 SCALE: NTS

ADA SIGNAGE7

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL
N.T.S.

SCALE: NTS

BIKE RACK8

BIKE RACK
N.T.S.

161

Item 6.



END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

T

51ST COURT NORTHEAST

EXISTING 36" RCP
STORM SEWER

2.
94

%

1.85%

1.4
8%

1.50%

2.
85

%

3.10%

2.79%

2.14%

2.76%

3.
43

%

4.81%

1.30%

1.27%

0.
33

%

CBMH 01
RE:920.46

CONNECT TO EXISTING STRUCTURE

6" EXPOSED FOUNDATION

921

92
2

922

922

922

922

921

921

92
1

92
2

922

922

922

921

921

920

920

920

920

92
1

921

48 LF - 6" PVC
@ 6.49%

RD-01

42 LF - 6" PVC
@ 6.40%

RD 02

G:921.50

G:921.46

G:921.43

G:921.61

G:921.32

G:921.61

G:921.55

G:921.14
G:921.14

G:921.47 G:921.55

G:920.95 G:920.48

G:920.57

G:920.58

G:920.68

G:920.85

G:921.04

G:920.96

G:920.99

LP:920.46
G:921.06

G:921.00

922.17

922.20

922.20

922.20

922.20

922.04

921.70

922.20

922.20

922.13

922.20
G:921.70

G:921.63

HP:921.65

ME:921.95 ME:921.49ME:922.04
ME/G:922.15

ME/G:921.57

ME:921.42

T:921.92T/G:921.44

T/G:921.36

T/G:921.08

T/G:921.08

T:921.64

T:921.56

T:922.09

T:922.09

T:922.10

T:922.05

G:921.60

G:921.37

HP:921.20

922.13

922.17

922.14

922.20

922.20

G:921.69

G:921.69

T/G:921.72

T/G:921.72

922.11

922.11

FFE = 922.2

FFE = 922.2

T:922.00

921.86

921.94

ME:922.66

ME:922.65
G:921.07

T:921.57

921.02

G:921.07 G:921.29

ME:???

ME:921.79

922

922

2.57%

1.3
8%

922

2.08%

0.
34

%

23 LF - 12" HDPE
@ 2.00%

0.81%

1.
53

%

LP:920.94

2.78% 921

921

LP:920.51

922

922

922

G:921.02G:921.29

123 LF - 12" HDPE
@ 2.00%CBMH 02

RE:920.94

61 LF - 12" HDPE
@ 2.00%

CB 01
RE:920.51

92
1

92
1

921

921

920

4:
1

922

92
1

92
1

92
1

92
2

922

921

1.11%

920.88

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

5-
G

R
AD

IN
G

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

Ap
ril

 0
1,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:3
8a

m

©

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

NORTH

GRADING PLAN NOTES
1. PERFORM GRADING WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY SPECIFICATIONS AND BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.

2. CONTACT STATE 811 CALL-BEFORE-YOU-DIG LOCATING SERVICE AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION FOR UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATIONS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONTROL.

4. FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND TOPOGRAPHIC FEATURES PRIOR TO THE START OF LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.  NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR VARIATIONS IMPACTING THE PROPOSED DESIGN OF THE PROJECT.

5. IN PAVED AREAS, ROUGH GRADE TO SUBGRADE ELEVATION AND LEAVE THE SITE READY FOR SUB-BASE.

6. SUBGRADE EXCAVATION SHALL BE BACKFILLED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EXCAVATION TO HELP OFFSET ANY STABILITY PROBLEMS DUE TO WATER SEEPAGE OR STEEP SLOPES. WHEN PLACING NEW SURFACE MATERIAL ADJACENT TO EXISTING PAVEMENT, THE EXCAVATION SHALL BE BACKFILLED PROMPTLY TO AVOID UNDERMINING OF EXISTING PAVEMENT.

7. ELEVATIONS SHOWN REPRESENT FINISHED SURFACE GRADES. SPOT ELEVATIONS ALONG CURB & GUTTER REPRESENT THE FLOW LINE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

8. EXCESS MATERIAL, BITUMINOUS SURFACING, CONCRETE ITEMS, ABANDONED UTILITY ITEMS, AND OTHER UNSTABLE MATERIALS SHALL BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE DISPOSED OF OFF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION OF PAVEMENTS AND CURB AND GUTTER WITH SMOOTH UNIFORM SLOPES THAT PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO COLLECTION POINTS. MAINTAIN A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 1.25% IN ASPHALT PAVEMENT AREAS AND A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 0.50% IN CONCRETE PAVEMENT AREAS.

10. MAINTAIN A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 0.50% ALONG CURB & GUTTER. REVIEW PAVEMENT GRADIENT AND CONSTRUCT "INFALL" CURB WHERE PAVEMENT DRAINS TOWARD THE GUTTER, AND "OUTFALL" CURB WHERE PAVEMENT DRAINS AWAY FROM THE GUTTER.

11. INSTALL A MINIMUM OF 4-INCHES OF AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL UNDER PROPOSED CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, SIDEWALKS, AND TRAILS UNLESS OTHERWISE DETAILED.

12. GRADING FOR SIDEWALKS AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTES, INCLUDING CROSSING DRIVEWAYS, SHALL CONFORM TO CURRENT STATE & NATIONAL ADA STANDARDS:

ACCESSIBLE RAMP SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 8.3% (1:12).
SIDEWALK CROSS-SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2.0%.
LONGITUDINAL SIDEWALK SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 5.0%.
ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS AND ACCESS AISLES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2.0% IN ANY DIRECTION. A MAXIMUM SLOPE OF 1.50% IS PREFERRED.

SIDEWALK ACCESS TO EXTERNAL BUILDING DOORS AND GATES SHALL BE ADA COMPLIANT. NOTIFY ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY IF ADA CRITERIA CANNOT BE MET IN ANY LOCATION PRIOR TO PAVEMENT INSTALLATION. CHANGE ORDERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR ADA COMPLIANCE ISSUES.

13. UPON COMPLETION OF LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES, RESTORE ADJACENT OFFSITE AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION TO MATCH OR EXCEED THE ORIGINAL CONDITION. LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE RE-VEGETATED WITH A MINIMUM OF 4-INCHES OF TOPSOIL.

14. EXCAVATE DRAINAGE TRENCHES TO FOLLOW PROPOSED STORM SEWER ALIGNMENTS.
REFER TO THE UTILITY PLANS FOR LAYOUT AND ELEVATIONS FOR PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, AND OTHER BUILDING UTILITY SERVICE CONNECTIONS.

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR925

PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION100.00

LEGEND

PROPOSED HIGH POINT ELEVATION HP:0.0
PROPOSED LOW POINT ELEVATION 

PROPOSED GUTTER ELEVATION 

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEVATION 

PROPOSED FLUSH PAVEMENT ELEVATION 

LP:0.0

G:0.00

T:0.00

PROPOSED EMERGENCY OVERFLOW  ELEVATION

T/G:0.0

EOF:0.0

0.0% PROPOSED DRAINAGE DIRECTION 

ME:0.0 MATCH EXISTING ELEVATION 

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE (SOLID CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE (ROUND INLET CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE/ CATCH BASIN (CURB INLET CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM SEWER CLENOUT

PROPOSED RIPRAP

PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION

CO

D

PROPOSED RIDGE LINE

PROPOSED SWALE

PROPOSED TOP/BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION TW:0.0
BW:0.0

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

PL
A

N

C400

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

162

Item 6.



END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

7.75%

0.
02

%1.45%

0.
02

%

1.30%

0.
35

%

1.37%

0.
02

% 1.33%

0.
32

%

1.04%

0.
38

%

0.81%

0.
48

%

7.93%

0.
98

%0.59%

1.
00

%

8.09%

0.
36

%

1.03%

0.
96

%

1.50%

0.
00

%1.61%

0.
01

%

1.34%

0.
02

%

1.14%

0.
03

%

1.39%

0.
12

%

1.32%

0.
15

%

1.02%

0.
17

%

0.90%

1.
34

%

921.45

921.45

921.45

921.45 G:921.67

921.71

921.71

T/G:921.72

T/G:921.72

922.11

922.11

T:922.07

G:921.67
T:922.07

922.14 922.20

922.20

922.17922.13

922.04

921.37
921.86

T:922.08

G:921.69
T:922.09

G:921.69
T:922.09

G:921.55
T:922.05

G:921.47
T:921.92

G:921.50
T:922.00

1.48%

1.
51

% 1.23%

1.
38

%

921.93

G:921.05
T:921.58

921.10

921

92
1

92
2

922

922.17T:922.11

T/G:921.44

T/G:921.36

T/G:921.08

T/G:921.08

0.93%

0.
31

%
921.98

922.10

922.20
921.45

1.12%

0.
94

%1.80%

0.
39

%

4.55%

0.
75

%

1.28%

1.
06

%

921.60921.69921.99

ME:922.65

ME:922.66

G:921.03
T:921.67

G:921.00
T:922.00

1.8
9%4.77%0.

43
%

4.82%0.
84

%

G:921.58

G:921.61

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

5-
G

R
AD

IN
G

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

Ap
ril

 0
1,

  2
02

4 
- 9

:3
8a

m

©

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

0.0% PROPOSED DRAINAGE DIRECTION 

NORTH

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR925

PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION100.00

LEGEND

PROPOSED HIGH POINT ELEVATION HP:0.0
PROPOSED LOW POINT ELEVATION 

PROPOSED GUTTER ELEVATION 

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB ELEVATION 

PROPOSED FLUSH PAVEMENT ELEVATION 

LP:0.0

G:0.00

T:0.00

PROPOSED EMERGENCY OVERFLOW  ELEVATION

T/G:0.0

EOF:0.0

ME:0.0 MATCH EXISTING ELEVATION 

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE (SOLID CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE (ROUND INLET CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE/ CATCH BASIN (CURB INLET CASTING)

PROPOSED STORM SEWER CLENOUT

PROPOSED RIPRAP

PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION

CO

D

PROPOSED RIDGE LINE

PROPOSED SWALE

PROPOSED TOP/BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION TW:0.0
BW:0.0

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

G
R

A
D

IN
G

EN
LA

R
G

EM
EN

T
PL

A
N

C401

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

GRADING PLAN NOTES
1. PERFORM GRADING WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY SPECIFICATIONS AND BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.

2. CONTACT STATE 811 CALL-BEFORE-YOU-DIG LOCATING SERVICE AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION FOR UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATIONS.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL CONTROL.

4. FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND TOPOGRAPHIC FEATURES PRIOR TO THE START OF LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.  NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR VARIATIONS IMPACTING THE PROPOSED DESIGN OF THE PROJECT.

5. IN PAVED AREAS, ROUGH GRADE TO SUBGRADE ELEVATION AND LEAVE THE SITE READY FOR SUB-BASE.

6. SUBGRADE EXCAVATION SHALL BE BACKFILLED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EXCAVATION TO HELP OFFSET ANY STABILITY PROBLEMS DUE TO WATER SEEPAGE OR STEEP SLOPES. WHEN PLACING NEW SURFACE MATERIAL ADJACENT TO EXISTING PAVEMENT, THE EXCAVATION SHALL BE BACKFILLED PROMPTLY TO AVOID UNDERMINING OF EXISTING PAVEMENT.

7. ELEVATIONS SHOWN REPRESENT FINISHED SURFACE GRADES. SPOT ELEVATIONS ALONG CURB & GUTTER REPRESENT THE FLOW LINE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

8. EXCESS MATERIAL, BITUMINOUS SURFACING, CONCRETE ITEMS, ABANDONED UTILITY ITEMS, AND OTHER UNSTABLE MATERIALS SHALL BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE DISPOSED OF OFF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION OF PAVEMENTS AND CURB AND GUTTER WITH SMOOTH UNIFORM SLOPES THAT PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE TO COLLECTION POINTS. MAINTAIN A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 1.25% IN ASPHALT PAVEMENT AREAS AND A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 0.50% IN CONCRETE PAVEMENT AREAS.

10. MAINTAIN A MINIMUM SLOPE OF 0.50% ALONG CURB & GUTTER. REVIEW PAVEMENT GRADIENT AND CONSTRUCT "INFALL" CURB WHERE PAVEMENT DRAINS TOWARD THE GUTTER, AND "OUTFALL" CURB WHERE PAVEMENT DRAINS AWAY FROM THE GUTTER.

11. INSTALL A MINIMUM OF 4-INCHES OF AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL UNDER PROPOSED CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, SIDEWALKS, AND TRAILS UNLESS OTHERWISE DETAILED.

12. GRADING FOR SIDEWALKS AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTES, INCLUDING CROSSING DRIVEWAYS, SHALL CONFORM TO CURRENT STATE & NATIONAL ADA STANDARDS:

ACCESSIBLE RAMP SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 8.3% (1:12).
SIDEWALK CROSS-SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2.0%.
LONGITUDINAL SIDEWALK SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 5.0%.
ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS AND ACCESS AISLES SHALL NOT EXCEED 2.0% IN ANY DIRECTION. A MAXIMUM SLOPE OF 1.50% IS PREFERRED.

SIDEWALK ACCESS TO EXTERNAL BUILDING DOORS AND GATES SHALL BE ADA COMPLIANT. NOTIFY ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY IF ADA CRITERIA CANNOT BE MET IN ANY LOCATION PRIOR TO PAVEMENT INSTALLATION. CHANGE ORDERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR ADA COMPLIANCE ISSUES.

13. UPON COMPLETION OF LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES, RESTORE ADJACENT OFFSITE AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION TO MATCH OR EXCEED THE ORIGINAL CONDITION. LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE RE-VEGETATED WITH A MINIMUM OF 4-INCHES OF TOPSOIL.

14. EXCAVATE DRAINAGE TRENCHES TO FOLLOW PROPOSED STORM SEWER ALIGNMENTS.
REFER TO THE UTILITY PLANS FOR LAYOUT AND ELEVATIONS FOR PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, AND OTHER BUILDING UTILITY SERVICE CONNECTIONS.

163

Item 6.



Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

5-
G

R
AD

IN
G

 D
ET

AI
LS

.d
w

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

9a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 D
ET

A
IL

S

C502

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

NOTE: THE CROSS SLOPE  OF THE GUTTER SHALL MATCH THE CROSS SLOPE OF THE  ADJACENT PAVEMENT.

24" CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER
SCALE: NTS1

164

Item 6.



END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

T

CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WATERMAIN VIA A CORP STOP
AND TAPPING SLEEVE. CONNECTION POINT PROPOSED
IS APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING WATERMAIN.
CONTRACTOR IS TO LOCATE EXISTING MAIN PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION & NOTIFY ENGINEER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION WITH ELECTRICAL PROVIDER.

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER
(SEE MEP PLANS)

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
TELECOM CONNECTION WITH

TELECOM PROVIDER. PROVIDE (2)
ELECTRICAL STATES 2" C.

(2) 4" DATA CONDUITS.
(SEE ARCH PLANS)

ELECTRIC METER PANEL
LOCATION. (SEE ARCH PLANS)

PROPOSED 2" WATER SERVICE

EXISTING 8" DIP WATERMAIN

SS-01
RE:921.50

IE:913.82 S
IE:913.82 E

SAN. STUB
IE:914.51 N

CONNECT TO EXISTING SAN. LINE VIA WYE CONNECTION
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY INVERT ELEVATIONS

AND NOTIFY ENGINEER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES.
IE:911.01 W

17 LF - 6" PVC
@ 4.00%

70 LF - 6" PVC
@ 4.00%

PROPOSED GATE VALVE

10.0'

EXISTING SANITARY
SERVICE LINE

13.8'

UTILITY CROSSING. MAINTAIN
18" OF VERTICAL CLEARANCE.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE GAS
SERVICE CONNECTION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE
ELECTRICAL CONNECTION.

RELOCATED ELECTRICAL
SERVICE LINE

RELOCATED GAS
SERVICE LINE

UTILITY CROSSING.
B/STRM: 916.47
T/SAN: 905.88

EXISTING 10" PVC SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING 36" RCP STORM SEWER

UTILITY CROSSING.
B/STRM: 916.62
T/STRM: 912.60

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
C

6-
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

.d
w

g 
Ap

ril
 0

1,
  2

02
4 

- 9
:3

9a
m

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

NORTH

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER

WATERMAIN

GATE VALVE

HYDRANT

TEE

REDUCER

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

TELEPHONE

GAS MAIN

STORM SEWER

LEGEND

CO SANITARY CLEANOUTCO

EXISTING PROPOSED

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C500

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

EN
G

IN
EE

R
 U

N
D

ER
 T

H
E 

LA
W

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
ST

AT
E 

O
F

M
IN

N
ES

O
TA

.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

BR
IA

N
 M

. W
U

R
D

EM
AN

03
/2

8/
20

24
53

11
3

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

BS
K

BS
K

M
TL

UTILITY PLAN NOTES
1. INSTALL UTILITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE CITY SPECIFICATIONS,

STATE PLUMBING CODE, AND BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.

2. CONTACT STATE 811 CALL-BEFORE-YOU-DIG LOCATING SERVICE AT LEAST
TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION FOR UNDERGROUND UTILITY
LOCATIONS.

3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL
CONTROL.

4. SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE:
PVC: ASTM D-2729, D-3034
PVC SCH 40: ASTM D-1785, F-714, F-894

SANITARY SEWER FITTINGS SHALL BE:
PVC: ASTM D-2729, D-3034
PVC SCH40: ASTM D-2665, F-2794, F-1866

5. WATER MAIN PIPE SHALL BE:
PVC: ASTM D-1785, D-2241, AWWA C-900
DUCTILE IRON: AWWA C115

     WATER MAIN FITTINGS SHALL BE:
PVC: ASTM D-2464, D-2466, D-2467, F-1970, AWWA C-907
DUCTILE IRON: AWWA C-153, C-110, ASME 316.4

5. STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE:
RCP: ASTM C-76
HDPE: ASTM F-714, F-894
PVC: ASTM D-2729
PVC SCH40: ASTM D-1785, D-2665, F-794

DRAIN TILE SHALL BE:

PE: ASTM F-6667
PVC: ASTM D-2729

STORM SEWER FITTINGS SHALL BE:
RCP: ASTM C-76, JOINTS PER ASTM C-361, C-990, AND C-443
HDPE: ASTM D-3212
PVC: ASTM D-2729, JOINTS PER ASTM D-3212
PVC SCH40: ASTM D-2665, F-794, F-1866

6. WHEN CONNECTING TO AN EXISTING UTILITY LINE, FIELD VERIFY THE
LOCATION, DEPTH, AND SIZE OF THE EXISTING PIPE(S) PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF THE NEW LINES.  NOTIFY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES OR VARIATIONS IMPACTING THE PROPOSED DESIGN OF THE
PROJECT.

7. PLACE AND COMPACT ALL FILL MATERIAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF
PROPOSED UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. MINIMUM TRENCH WIDTH SHALL BE 2
FEET.

8. MAINTAIN A MINIMUM OF 7'-6" COVER ON ALL WATER LINES.

9. FOR WATER LINES AND STUB-OUTS UTILIZE MECHANICAL JOINTS WITH
RESTRAINTS SUCH AS THRUST BLOCKING, WITH STAINLESS STEEL OR
COBALT BLUE BOLTS, OR AS INDICATED IN THE CITY SPECIFICATIONS AND
PROJECT DOCUMENTS.

10. MAINTAIN 18-INCH MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION WHERE SEWER PIPE
CROSSES WATER LINES (OUTSIDE EDGE OF PIPE TO OUTSIDE EDGE OF PIPE
OR STRUCTURE). PROVIDE 10-FOOT HORIZONTAL SEPARATION BETWEEN
SEWER PIPE AND WATER LINES.

11. IN THE EVENT OF A VERTICAL CONFLICT BETWEEN WATER LINES, SANITARY
LINES, STORM LINES AND GAS LINES (OR ANY OBSTRUCTION EXISTING AND
PROPOSED), THE SANITARY PIPE MATERIAL SHALL BE PVC SCHEDULE 40 OR
PVC C900 AND HAVE MECHANICAL JOINTS AT LEAST 10 FEET ON EITHER SIDE
OF THE CENTER LINE OF THE CROSSING. THE WATER LINE SHALL HAVE
MECHANICAL JOINTS WITH APPROPRIATE FASTENERS AS REQUIRED TO
PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 18-INCH VERTICAL SEPARATION MEETING
REQUIREMENTS OF ANSI A21.10 OR ANSI 21.11 (AWWA C-151) (CLASS 50).

12. ALL PVC & HDPE SEWER AND WATER PIPE SHALL HAVE A TRACER WIRE
INSTALLED IN THE TRENCH AND TERMINATED PER THE DETAILS.

13. UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINES SHALL BE INSTALLED, INSPECTED AND
APPROVED PRIOR TO PLACING BACKFILL.

14. IN PAVEMENT AREAS, RAISE MANHOLE CASTINGS TO BE FLUSH WITH
PROPOSED FINISHED SURFACE GRADE. IN GREEN AREAS, RAISE MANHOLE
CASTINGS TO BE ONE FOOT ABOVE FINISHED GROUND ELEVATION & INSTALL
A WATERTIGHT LID.

15. REFER TO PLUMBING PLANS FOR LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UTILITY
SERVICE CONNECTIONS AND ROOF DRAINS TO THE INTERIOR BUILDING
SYSTEMS. BACKFLOW DEVICES (DDCV AND PRZ ASSEMBLIES) & METERS ARE
LOCATED INSIDE THE BUILDING.

16. CONTRACTOR IS SPECIFICALLY CAUTIONED THAT THE LOCATION AND/OR
ELEVATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS IS BASED ON
RECORDS OF THE VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES, AND WHERE POSSIBLE,
MEASUREMENTS TAKEN IN THE FIELD. THE INFORMATION IS NOT TO BE
RELIED ON AS BEING EXACT OR COMPLETE. THE CONTRACTOR MUST CALL

THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AT LEAST 72 HOURS BEFORE ANY
EXCAVATION TO REQUEST EXACT FIELD LOCATION OF UTILITIES. IT SHALL BE
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO RELOCATE ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES WHICH CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON
THE PLANS.

17. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL NECESSARY INSPECTIONS AND/OR
CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED BY CODES AND/OR UTILITY SERVICE COMPANIES.
COORDINATE WITH ALL UTILITY COMPANIES FOR INSTALLATION
REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

18. REFER TO THE SITE ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR SPECIFICATIONS OF THE
PROPOSED SITE LIGHTING AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.

19. EXCAVATE DRAINAGE TRENCHES TO FOLLOW PROPOSED STORM SEWER
ALIGNMENTS.
REFER TO THE UTILITY PLANS FOR LAYOUT AND ELEVATIONS FOR PROPOSED
SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, AND OTHER BUILDING UTILITY SERVICE
CONNECTIONS. REFER TO THE GRADING PLAN FOR DETAILED SURFACE
ELEVATIONS.

20. EXCESS MATERIAL, ABANDONED UTILITY ITEMS, AND OTHER UNUSABLE
MATERIALS SHALL BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL
BE DISPOSED OF OFF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

21. COORDINATE WITH THE PLUMBING PLANS FOR THE LOCATION, SIZE AND
ELEVATION OF THE PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ROOF DRAIN CONNECTIONS.

22. WHERE STORM SEWER ROOF DRAINS HAVE LESS THAN 4-FEET OF COVER IN
PAVED AREAS OR 3-FEET OF COVER IN LANDSCAPE AREAS, PROVIDE 3-INCH

THICK INSULATION A MINIMUM OF 5-FEET IN WIDTH, CENTERED ON THE PIPE.

23. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE JOINTS SHALL BE WATER-TIGHT CONNECTIONS.

24. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE CONNECTIONS TO MANHOLES SHALL BE GASKETED
AND WATER TIGHT. BOOTED COUPLERS AT THE STRUCTURE OR A WATER
STOP WITH NON-SHRINK GROUT MAY BE USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL
CODES.

25. CONTRACTOR SHALL AIR TEST ALL STORM SEWER PIPE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH LOCAL CODE REQUIREMENTS.

165

Item 6.



LANDSCAPE LEGEND

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE (TYP.)

EXISTING CONIFEROUS TREE TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE (TYP.)

EDGER (TYP.)

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF SEEDING /
IRRIGATION, SEED ALL DISTURBED
AREAS (TYP.)

SEED WITH MNDOT 25-131: LOW
MAINTENANCE TURF SEED MIX (TYP.)

SOD (TYP.)

SEED WITH NATIVE BEE LAWN SEED MIX
BY PRAIRIE RESTORATIONS (TYP.)

A

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

LANDSCAPE KEYNOTES
EDGER (TYP.)

ROCK MULCH (TYP.)

SEED WITH MNDOT 25-131: LOW
MAINTENANCE TURF SEED MIX (TYP.)

SEED WITH NATIVE BEE LAWN SEED MIX BY
PRAIRIE RESTORATIONS (TYP.)

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN, PROTECT IN
PLACE (TYP.)

3-4' BOULDER (TYP.)

SOD (TYP.)

N
O

 PAR
KIN

G

END ENTRY W/ TTW DU
3,365 S.F.
FFE: 922.20

T

51ST COURT NORTHEAST

B

A

C

B

D

C

D

C

B

A

E

E

G

G

C

F

F F
F

SYMBOL CODE COMMON NAME

ORNAMENTAL TREE

ALS AUTUMN BRILLANCE SERVICEBERRY CLUMP

OVERSTORY TREE

BOL BOULEVARD LINDEN

CSO CRIMSON SPIRE OAK

IHL IMPERIAL HONEYLOCUST

CONIFEROUS SHRUBS

GOJ GREY OWL JUNIPER

SGJ SEA GREEN JUNIPER

PLANT KEY

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

BLC IROQUOIS BEAUTY BLACK CHOKEBERRY

DBH DWARF BUSH HONEYSUCKLE

DVB DWARF EUROPEAN VIBURNUM

GGD GARDEN GLOW DOGWOOD

GLS GRO-LOW FRAGRANT SUMAC

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

HMS HEAVY METAL SWITCHGRASS

KFG KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS

PDS PRAIRIE DROPSEED

PERENNIALS

ALL MILLENIUM ORNAMENTAL ONION

BES BLACK-EYED SUSAN

BMW BUTTERFLY MILKWEED

NW WALKER'S LOW CATMINT

PCF PURPLE CONEFLOWER

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
L1

-L
AN

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

.D
W

G
 A

pr
il 

01
,  

20
24

 - 
9:

39
am

©

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

FRONTAGE REQUIREMENTS

MINIMUM TREES REQUIRED: 1 TREE / 50 L.F. OF FRONTAGE

REQUIRED 51ST COURT NE: 5 TREES = 210 L.F. / 50 
REQUIRED CENTRAL NE: 2 TREES = 100 L.F. / 50

PROVIDED 51ST COURT NE: 5 TREES = 2 EXISTING + 3 PROPOSED
PROVIDED CENTRAL NE: 2 TREES

PARKING LOT REQUIREMENTS

LANDSCAPE FRONTAGE REQUIRED: LANDSCAPE FRONTAGE STRIP AT LEAST FIVE FEET WIDE 
ALONG THE PUBLIC STREET OR SIDEWALK

LANDSCAPE FRONTAGE PROVIDED: SEE PLAN

SCREENING REQUIRED: MINIMUM 3' HEIGHT, 50% OPAQUE, ALONG FRONTAGE
SCREENING PROVIDED: SEE PLAN

TREE REQUIREMENT: TREES SHALL BE PLANTED AT REGULAR INTERVALS NO 
GREATER THAN 50' WITHIN THE FRONTAGE STRIP

LANDSCAPE SUMMARY

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N

L100

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
LA

W
S 

O
F

TH
E 

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
M

IN
N

ES
O

TA
.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

R
YA

N
 A

. H
YL

LE
ST

ED
, P

LA

04
/0

1/
20

24
53

82
8

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

C
FK

C
FK

R
AH

NORTH

NOTE: SEE SHEET L101 FOR FULL PLANT SCHEDULE

166

Item 6.

file:///k:/TWC_LDEV/the%20architects%20partnership/columbia%20heights-%20chase%20bank/3%20Design/CAD/plansheets/L1-LANDSCAPE%20DETAILS.DWG


SYMBOL CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME CONTAINER CAL/SIZE

ORNAMENTAL TREE

ALS 1 AUTUMN BRILLANCE SERVICEBERRY CLUMP AMELANCHIER X GRANDIFLORA `AUTUMN BRILLANCE` B & B 6` HT.

OVERSTORY TREE

BOL 2 BOULEVARD LINDEN TILIA AMERICANA `BOULEVARD` B & B 2.5" CAL.

CSO 1 CRIMSON SPIRE OAK QUERCUS ROBUR X ALBA `CRIMSCHMIDT` B & B 2.5" CAL.

IHL 3 IMPERIAL HONEYLOCUST GLEDITSIA TRIACANTHOS VAR. INERMIS `IMPERIAL` B & B 2.5" CAL.

SYMBOL CODE QTY COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME CONTAINER SPACING

CONIFEROUS SHRUBS

GOJ 11 GREY OWL JUNIPER JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA `GREY OWL` #5 CONT. 4` O.C.

SGJ 15 SEA GREEN JUNIPER JUNIPERUS CHINENSIS `SEA GREEN` #5 CONT. 5` O.C.

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

BLC 10 IROQUOIS BEAUTY BLACK CHOKEBERRY ARONIA MELANOCARPA `IROQUOIS BEAUTY` TM #5 CONT. 4` O.C.

DBH 3 DWARF BUSH HONEYSUCKLE DIERVILLA LONICERA #5 CONT. 3` O.C.

DVB 5 DWARF EUROPEAN VIBURNUM VIBURNUM OPULUS `NANUM` #5 CONT. 4` O.C.

GGD 8 GARDEN GLOW DOGWOOD CORNUS HESSEI `GARDEN GLOW` #5 CONT. 5` O.C.

GLS 15 GRO-LOW FRAGRANT SUMAC RHUS AROMATICA `GRO-LOW` #5 CONT. 4` O.C.

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

HMS 34 HEAVY METAL SWITCHGRASS PANICUM VIRGATUM 'HEAVY METAL' #1 CONT. 3` O.C.

KFG 41 KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS CALAMAGROSTIS X ACUTIFLORA `KARL FOERSTER` #1 CONT 18" O.C.

PDS 25 PRAIRIE DROPSEED SPOROBOLUS HETEROLEPIS #1 CONT. 24" O.C.

PERENNIALS

ALL 10 MILLENIUM ORNAMENTAL ONION ALLIUM X `MILLENIUM` #1 CONT. 1.5` O.C.

BES 29 BLACK-EYED SUSAN RUDBECKIA FULGIDA `GOLDSTURM` #1 CONT. 18" O.C.

BMW 24 BUTTERFLY MILKWEED ASCLEPIAS TUBEROSA #1 CONT. 24" O.C.

NW 29 WALKER'S LOW CATMINT NEPETA X 'WALKER'S LOW' #1 CONT. 18" O.C.

PCF 20 PURPLE CONEFLOWER ECHINACEA PURPUREA #1 CONT. 18" O.C.

PLANT SCHEDULE

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 a
s 

an
 in

st
ru

m
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
, i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 c

lie
nt

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 it
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 R
eu

se
 o

f a
nd

 im
pr

op
er

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
ou

t w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

by
 K

im
le

y-
H

or
n 

an
d 

As
so

ci
at

es
, I

nc
. s

ha
ll 

be
 w

ith
ou

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 K
im

le
y-

H
or

n 
an

d 
As

so
ci

at
es

, I
nc

.

SHEET NUMBER

 2
02

4 
KI

M
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S,
 IN

C
.

11
99

5 
SI

N
G

LE
TR

EE
 L

N
 S

U
IT

E 
22

5,
 E

D
EN

 P
R

AI
R

IE
, M

N
 5

53
44

PH
O

N
E:

 6
51

-6
45

-4
19

7

W
W

W
.K

IM
LE

Y-
H

O
R

N
.C

O
M

K:
\T

W
C

_L
D

EV
\th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
\c

ol
um

bi
a 

he
ig

ht
s-

 c
ha

se
 b

an
k\

3 
D

es
ig

n\
C

AD
\p

la
ns

he
et

s\
L1

-L
AN

D
SC

AP
E 

D
ET

AI
LS

.D
W

G
 A

pr
il 

01
,  

20
24

 - 
9:

39
am

BY
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

o.
D

AT
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

- N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

NOTES:

2X ROOT BALL WIDTH

PREPARED PLANTING BED AND
BACKFILL SOIL
(THOROUGHLY LOOSENED)

NOTES:

1. SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF HOLE.
2. PROCEED WITH CORRECTIVE PRUNING OF TOP AND ROOT.
3. REMOVE CONTAINER AND SCORE OUTSIDE OF SOIL MASS TO REDIRECT

AND PREVENT CIRCLING FIBROUS ROOTS. REMOVE OR CORRECT STEM
GIRDLING ROOTS.

4. PLUMB AND BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.
5. WATER THOROUGHLY WITHIN 2 HOURS TO SETTLE PLANTS AND FILL

VOIDS.
6. BACK FILL VOIDS AND WATER SECOND TIME.
7. PLACE MULCH WITHIN 48 HOURS OF THE SECOND WATERING UNLESS

SOIL MOISTURE IS EXCESSIVE.
8. MIX IN 3-4" OF ORGANIC COMPOST.

1. SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF HOLE.
2. PROCEED WITH CORRECTIVE PRUNING.
3. SET PLANT ON UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL OR

THOROUGHLY COMPACTED PLANTING SOIL.
INSTALL PLANT SO THE ROOT FLARE IS AT OR UP
TO 2" ABOVE THE FINISHED GRADE WITH BURLAP
AND WIRE BASKET, (IF USED), INTACT.

4. SLIT REMAINING TREATED BURLAP AT 6"
INTERVALS.

5. BACKFILL TO WITHIN APPROXIMATELY 12" OF THE
TOP OF THE ROOTBALL, THEN WATER PLANT.
REMOVE THE TOP 1/3 OF THE BASKET OR THE TOP
TWO HORIZONTAL RINGS WHICHEVER IS
GREATER.  REMOVE ALL BURLAP AND NAILS FROM
THE TOP 1/3 OF THE BALL.  REMOVE ALL TWINE.
REMOVE OR CORRECT STEM GIRDLING ROOTS.

6. PLUMB AND BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL.
7. WATER THOROUGHLY WITHIN 2 HOURS TO

SETTLE PLANTS AND FILL VOIDS.
8. BACK FILL VOIDS AND WATER SECOND TIME.
9. PLACE MULCH WITHIN 48 HOURS OF THE SECOND

WATERING UNLESS SOIL MOISTURE IS EXCESSIVE.
10. FINAL LOCATION OF TREE TO BE APPROVED BY

OWNER.

PLANTING SOIL
AS SPECIFIED

ON CENTER SPACING
PER PLANT SCHEDULE.

EXTEND HOLE EXCAVATION WIDTH
A MINIMUM OF 6" BEYOND
THE PLANTS ROOT SYSTEM.

FINISHED GRADE

EDGER, AS SPECIFIED

TREE PLANTING DETAIL
SCALE:  N.T.S. L1011

SHRUB / PERENNIAL PLANTING DETAIL
SCALE:  N.T.S. L1012

MULCH

3/16" X 5" STEEL EDGER

12" STEEL EDGER SPIKE

TURF/SOD

SUBGRADE

12" STEEL EDGER SPIKE

3/16" X 5" STEEL EDGER

4'

MULCH

TURF/SOD

TOP OF EDGER TO BE
FLUSH WITH SOD

PLANSECTION

STEEL EDGER DETAIL
SCALE:  N.T.S. L1013

PLANTING

1. CONTACT COMMON GROUND ALLIANCE AT 811 OR CALL811.COM TO VERIFY LOCATIONS OF ALL UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF ANY PLANTS OR LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.

2. ACTUAL LOCATION OF PLANT MATERIAL IS SUBJECT TO FIELD AND SITE CONDITIONS.

3. NO PLANTING WILL BE INSTALLED UNTIL ALL GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN THE
IMMEDIATE AREA.

4. ALL SUBSTITUTIONS MUST BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF ANY BID
AND/OR QUOTE BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

5. PROVIDE TWO YEAR GUARANTEE OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS.  THE GUARANTEE BEGINS ON THE DATE OF THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S OR OWNER'S WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF THE INITIAL PLANTING.  REPLACEMENT PLANT
MATERIAL SHALL HAVE A ONE YEAR GUARANTEE COMMENCING UPON PLANTING.

6. ALL PLANTS TO BE SPECIMEN GRADE, MINNESOTA-GROWN AND/OR HARDY.  SPECIMEN GRADE SHALL ADHERE
TO, BUT IS NOT LIMITED BY, THE FOLLOWING STANDARDS:
ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM DISEASE, PESTS, WOUNDS, SCARS, ETC.
ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM NOTICEABLE GAPS, HOLES, OR DEFORMITIES.
ALL PLANTS SHALL BE FREE FROM BROKEN OR DEAD BRANCHES.
ALL PLANTS SHALL HAVE HEAVY, HEALTHY BRANCHING AND LEAFING.
CONIFEROUS TREES SHALL HAVE AN ESTABLISHED MAIN LEADER AND A HEIGHT TO WIDTH RATIO OF NO LESS
THAN 5:3.

7. PLANTS TO MEET AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK (ANSI Z60.1-2014 OR MOST CURRENT VERSION)
REQUIREMENTS FOR SIZE AND TYPE SPECIFIED.

8. PLANTS TO BE INSTALLED AS PER MNLA & ANSI STANDARD PLANTING PRACTICES.

9. INSTALL PLANTS BY PLANT INSTALLATION PERIOD INFORMATION IN THE LATEST STANDARD PLANTING DETAILS
FROM MNDOT. PLANTINGS BEFORE OR AFTER THESE DATES ARE DONE AT RISK.

10. PLANTS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY PLANTED UPON ARRIVAL AT SITE.  PROPERLY HEEL-IN MATERIALS IF
NECESSARY; TEMPORARY ONLY.

11. PRIOR TO PLANTING, FIELD VERIFY THAT THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT FLARE IS LOCATED AT THE TOP OF THE
BALLED & BURLAP TREE.  IF THIS IS NOT THE CASE, SOIL SHALL BE REMOVED DOWN TO THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT
FLARE.  WHEN THE BALLED & BURLAP TREE IS PLANTED, THE ROOT COLLAR/ROOT FLARE SHALL BE EVEN OR
SLIGHTLY ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

12. OPEN TOP OF BURLAP ON BB MATERIALS; REMOVE POT ON POTTED PLANTS; SPLIT AND BREAK APART PEAT
POTS.

13. PRUNE PLANTS AS NECESSARY - PER STANDARD NURSERY PRACTICE AND TO CORRECT POOR BRANCHING OF
EXISTING AND PROPOSED TREES.

14. WRAP ALL SMOOTH-BARKED TREES - FASTEN TOP AND BOTTOM.  REMOVE BY APRIL 1ST.

15. STAKING OF TREES AS REQUIRED; REPOSITION, PLUMB AND STAKE IF NOT PLUMB AFTER ONE YEAR.

SOIL

16. THE NEED FOR SOIL AMENDMENTS SHALL BE DETERMINED UPON SITE SOIL CONDITIONS PRIOR TO PLANTING.
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR THE NEED OF ANY SOIL AMENDMENTS.

17. BACKFILL SOIL AND TOPSOIL TO ADHERE TO MNDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 3877 (LOAM TOPSOIL BORROW)
AND TO BE EXISTING TOP SOIL FROM SITE FREE OF ROOTS, ROCKS LARGER THAN ONE INCH, SUBSOIL DEBRIS,
AND LARGE WEEDS UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.  MINIMUM 4" DEPTH TOPSOIL FOR ALL LAWN GRASS AREAS
AND 12" DEPTH TOPSOIL FOR TREE, SHRUBS, AND PERENNIALS.

MULCH

18. MULCH TO BE AT ALL TREE, SHRUB, PERENNIAL, AND MAINTENANCE AREAS.  ROCK MULCH TO BE RIVER ROCK, 1
1/2" DIAMETER, AT MINIMUM 3" DEPTH, OR APPROVED EQUAL. APPLY PREMENEGRENT HERBICIDE PRIOR TO
MULCH PLACEMENT PER MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS, USE PREEN OR PRE-APPROVED EQUAL. ROCK
MULCH TO BE ON COMMERCIAL GRADE FILTER FABRIC, BY TYPAR, OR APPROVED EQUAL WITH NO EXPOSURE.
MULCH AND FABRIC TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  MULCH TO MATCH EXISTING
CONDITIONS (WHERE APPLICABLE).

EDGER

19. EDGING TO BE COMMERCIAL GRADE COL-MET (OR EQUAL) STEEL EDGING; 3/16" THICK x 5" TALL, COLOR BLACK,
OR SPADED EDGE, AS INDICATED.  STEEL EDGING SHALL BE PLACED WITH SMOOTH CURVES AND STAKED WITH
METAL SPIKES NO GREATER THAN 4 FOOT ON CENTER WITH TOP OF EDGER AT GRADE, FOR MOWERS TO CUT
ABOVE WITHOUT DAMAGE.  UTILIZE CURBS AND SIDEWALKS FOR EDGING WHERE POSSIBLE. WHERE EDGING
TERMINATES AT A SIDEWALK, BEVEL OR RECESS ENDS TO PREVENT TRIP HAZARD. SPADED EDGE TO PROVIDE
V-SHAPED DEPTH AND WIDTH TO CREATE SEPARATION BETWEEN MULCH AND GRASS.  INDIVIDUAL TREE, SHRUB,
OR RAIN-GARDEN BEDS TO BE SPADED EDGE, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  EDGING TO MATCH EXISTING
CONDITIONS (WHERE APPLICABLE).

SEED/SOD

20. ALL DISTURBED AREAS TO BE SEEDED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL TOPSOIL AREAS TO BE RAKED TO
REMOVE DEBRIS AND ENSURE DRAINAGE.  SLOPES OF 3:1 OR GREATER SHALL BE STAKED.  SEED AS SPECIFIED,
PER MNDOT SPECIFICATIONS AND SUPPLIER/MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS.  IF NOT INDICATED ON
LANDSCAPE PLAN, SEE EROSION CONTROL PLAN.

IRRIGATION

20. PROVIDE PROVIDE IRRIGATION TO ALL PLANTED AREAS ON SITE. IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO BE DESIGN/BUILD BY
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.  PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS TO CONSULTANT FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF IRRIGATION SYSTEM.   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE OPERATION MANUALS, AS-BUILT PLANS, AND
NORMAL PROGRAMMING.  SYSTEM TO BE WINTERIZED AND HAVE SPRING STARTUP DURING FIRST YEAR OF
OPERATION.  SYSTEM TO HAVE ONE-YEAR WARRANTY ON ALL PARTS AND LABOR.  ALL INFORMATION ABOUT
INSTALLATION AND SCHEDULING CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.CONTROLLER TO BE ,
INTEGRATED FLOW FEATURES, WEATHER BASED INTERNET SERVICE INCLUDED, AND EPA WATERSENSE
APPROVED.  IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO INCLUDE SOIL SENSORS, 2 REQUIRED; ONE FOR SOD AREAS AND ONE FOR
LANDSCAPE BED AREAS. REFER TO MANUFACTURERS GUIDELINES ON SOIL MOISTURE PER PLANT MATERIAL
TYPE AND REGION. SYSTEM TO INCLUDE WIRED RAIN / FREEZE AND FLOW SENSOR. NATIVE SEED AREA TO BE ON
A SEPARATE TEMPORARY ZONE TO IRRIGATE UNTIL ESTABLISHED OR PROVIDE QUICK COUPLERS FOR MANUAL /
HAND WATERING. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED AS PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. 
ZONE PARAMETERS: HEAD-TO-HEAD COVERAGE AND NO SPRAYING OVER WALKS. SEPARATE LAWN ZONES BY
MICROCLIMATE- LAWN ON NORTH SIDE OF BUILDING VS LAWN ON SOUTH SIDE OF BUILDING, LAWN ON SLOPE VS
LAWN ON LEVEL GRADE. LAWN AREAS TO HAVE MULTI-STREAM ROTARY SPRINKLERS/ SPRAYS/ ROTORS. SHRUB
AND PERENNIAL BED AREAS TO HAVE DRIP. TREES IN LAWN AREA TO BE COVERED BY MULTI-STREAM ROTARY
SPRINKLERS/ SPRAYS/ ROTORS.  TREES IN SHRUBS / PERENNIAL BED AREA TO BE WATERED WITH DRIP
IRRIGATION. PROVIDE MASTER VALVE. ALL IRRIGATION HEADS TO BE PRESSURE REGULATED. THE INTENT FOR
THIS SYSTEM IS TO ESTABLISH PLANTS IN THEIR FIRST 3 GROWING SEASONS. WORK WITH OWNER ON
PROGRAMMING SYSTEM TO ADJUST ONCE PLANTS ARE INITIALLY ESTABLISHED.

ESTABLISHMENT

21. PROVIDE NECESSARY WATERING OF PLANT MATERIALS UNTIL THE PLANT IS FULLY ESTABLISHED OR IRRIGATION
SYSTEM IS OPERATIONAL.  OWNER WILL NOT PROVIDE WATER FOR CONTRACTOR.

22. REPAIR, REPLACE, OR PROVIDE SOD/SEED AS REQUIRED FOR ANY ROADWAY BOULEVARD AREAS ADJACENT TO
THE SITE DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION.

WARRANTY

23. REPAIR ALL DAMAGE TO PROPERTY FROM PLANTING OPERATIONS AT NO COST TO OWNER.

24. MAINTAIN TREES, SHRUBS, SEED AND OTHER PLANTS UNTIL PROJECT COMPLETION, BUT IN NO CASE, LESS THAN
FOLLOWING PERIOD; 1 YEAR AFTER PROJECT COMPLETION. MAINTAIN TREES, SHRUBS, SEED AND OTHER
PLANTS BY PRUNING, CULTIVATING, AND WEEDING AS REQUIRED FOR HEALTHY GROWTH.  RESTORE PLANTING
SAUCERS.  TIGHTEN AND REPAIR STAKE AND GUY SUPPORTS AND RESET TREES AND SHRUBS TO PROPER
GRADES OR VERTICAL POSITION AS REQUIRED.   RESTORE OR REPLACE DAMAGED WRAPPINGS.  SPRAY AS
REQUIRED TO KEEP TREES AND SHRUBS FREE OF INSECTS AND DISEASE.  REPLENISH MULCH TO THE REQUIRED
DEPTH. MAINTAIN LAWNS FOR 60 DAYS AFTER INSTALLING SOD INCLUDING MOWING WHEN SOD RECITES 4” IN
HEIGHT. WEED PLANTING BEDS AND MULCH SAUCERS AT MINIMUM ONCE A MONTH DURING THE GROWING
SEASON. PROVIDE A MONTHLY REPORT TO THE OWNER ON WEEDING AND OTHER MAINTENANCE
RESPONSIBILITIES.

25. SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR SITE LIGHTING.

LANDSCAPE NOTES

PR
EP

A
R

ED
 F

O
R

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

D
ET

A
IL

S

L101

C
H

A
SE

 B
A

N
K

- C
EN

TR
A

L
A

VE
 A

N
D

 5
1S

T 
A

VE

TH
E 

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TS
PA

R
TN

ER
SH

IP
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
H

EI
G

H
TS

M
N

D
AT

E:

I H
ER

EB
Y 

C
ER

TI
FY

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

N
,

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
 O

R
 R

EP
O

R
T 

W
AS

 P
R

EP
AR

ED
 B

Y
M

E 
O

R
 U

N
D

ER
 M

Y 
D

IR
EC

T 
SU

PE
R

VI
SI

O
N

 A
N

D
TH

AT
 I 

AM
 A

 D
U

LY
 L

IC
EN

SE
D

 P
R

O
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

AR
C

H
IT

EC
T 

U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
LA

W
S 

O
F

TH
E 

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
M

IN
N

ES
O

TA
.

M
N

LI
C

. N
O

.

R
YA

N
 A

. H
YL

LE
ST

ED
, P

LA

04
/0

1/
20

24
53

82
8

D
AT

E

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y

SC
AL

E

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

KH
A 

PR
O

JE
C

T
16

00
94

05
0

04
/0

1/
20

24
AS

 S
H

O
W

N

C
FK

C
FK

R
AH

167

Item 6.



168

Item 6.



169

Item 6.



170

Item 6.



171

Item 6.



172

Item 6.



173

Item 6.



174

Item 6.



175

Item 6.



176

Item 6.



177

Item 6.



178

Item 6.



179

Item 6.



180

Item 6.



181

Item 6.



182

Item 6.



183

Item 6.



184

Item 6.



185

Item 6.



186

Item 6.



187

Item 6.



188

Item 6.



189

Item 6.



190

Item 6.



191

Item 6.



192

Item 6.



193

Item 6.



194

Item 6.



195

Item 6.



196

Item 6.



197

Item 6.



198

Item 6.



199

Item 6.



-Public Notice Ad Proof-

 
 Ad ID: 1388218
 Copy LIne: May 7 PH Minor Subdivision

 PO Number: 
 Start: 04/19/24
 Stop: 04/19/2024
 Total Cost: $63.25
 # of Lines: 46
 Total Depth: 5.139
 # of Inserts:  1
 Ad Class: 150
 Phone # (763) 691-6000
 Email: publicnotice@apgecm.com
 Rep No: CA700

 Date: 04/12/24
 
 Account #: 414681

 Customer: CITY OF COLUMBIA HEIGHTS
 

 Address: 3989 CENTRAL AVE NE
  COLUMBIA HEIGHTS

 Telephone: (763) 767-6580
 Fax: (763) 706-3637

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run on the dates
indicated below. Please proof read carefully. If changes are needed,

please contact us prior to deadline at
Cambridge (763) 691-6000 or email at publicnotice@apgecm.com 

Ad Proof
Not Actual Size

Publications: 
BSLP Col Hght Frid Life

Contract-Gross

CITY OF 
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS 

PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the 
Planning Commission of the City 
of Columbia Heights will conduct 
a public hearing in the City Council 
Chambers of City Hall at 3989 Cen-
tral Avenue NE on Tuesday, May 
7, 2024, at 6:00 p.m.  The order of 
business is as follows: 

A request for a Minor Subdivi-
sion and Site Plan Review for The 
Architects Partnership, LTD on be-
half of Chase Bank to subdivide a 
portion of the parking lot of 5085 
Central Avenue NE (La Casita) and 
create a separate lot for a new 
construction Chase Bank facility 
with a drive-thru ATM, per Code 
Section 9.110 Commercial Districts 
(E).  Section 9.104 (K) and (N) of 
the Zoning Ordinance requires the 
Planning Commission to hold a 
public hearing to review the Minor 
Subdivision and Site Plan Review 
and make findings before submit-
ting a recommendation to the City 
Council.

Notice is hereby given that all 
persons having an interest will be 
given an opportunity to be heard.  
For questions, contact Andrew 
Boucher, City Planner, at (763) 706-
3673.

Published in
The Life 

April 19, 2024
1388218

200

Item 6.



 

City of Columbia Heights | Community Development Department  
3989 Central Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, MN 55421  ▪  Ph: 763-706-3670  ▪  Fax: 763-706-3671  ▪  
www.columbiaheightsmn.gov 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Date of Hearing: May 7, 2024 
 
Subject: Public Hearing Notice – Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review for The Architects 

Partnership, LTD representing Chase Bank 
 
Subject Property: 5085 Central Avenue NE 
   Columbia Heights, MN  55421 
 
Dear Resident/Affected Property Owner:  
 
The City of Columbia Heights has received an application for a Minor Subdivision and Site Plan Review from 
The Architects Partnership, LTD representing Chase Bank to subdivide a portion of the parking lot of 5085 
Central Avenue NE and create a separate lot for a new construction Chase Bank facility with a drive-thru ATM, 
per Code Section 9.110 Commercial District (E) General Business. Section 9.104 (K & N) of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing to approve the Minor Subdivision and Site Plan 
Review.  
 
You are receiving this notice because the property that you own (Affected Property), and/or reside in, is located 
within 350 feet of the Subject Property. The Planning Commission of the City of Columbia Heights will hold a 
Public Hearing on this matter on Tuesday, May 7, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of Columbia 
Heights City Hall, located at 3989 Central Avenue NE. A map of the Subject Property is attached. A full copy of 
the application is on file at City Hall and is available for review upon request.  
 
You are welcomed and encouraged to participate in the Public Hearing for this matter by attending the May 7, 
2024 Planning Commission meeting.  If you cannot attend the meeting, but would like to provide input, you 
can submit correspondence via email to aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov or by mail at: 
 
City of Columbia Heights 
Attn: Community Development 
590 40th Ave NE 
Columbia Heights, MN 55421 
 
You can participate in the meeting live and online by using Microsoft Teams at the login link below or call-in: 
 
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting Online 

Meeting ID: 252 58 988 371 
Passcode: ugquG3 
 
Dial-in for Microsoft Teams Meeting 

+1-312-626-6799 
 
 
If you have any questions about this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact the City of Columbia Heights 
Community Development Division at (763) 706-3673. 

201

Item 6.

http://www.columbiaheightsmn.gov/
mailto:aboucher@columbiaheightsmn.gov


 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Andrew Boucher 
Community Development Planner, City of Columbia Heights 
 
 
** Landowners (Commercial and Residential): If you do not reside on the Affected Property, located 350 feet 
from the Subject Property, it is your responsibility to share this notice with your tenants. This notice should be 
posted in a public place on your property or mailed directly to the tenants residing or leasing space on the 
Affected Property. 
 

 
-SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATION- 

(Highlighted in orange) 
 

 

202

Item 6.


	Top
	Item 1.	Approve April 2, 2024 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	04.02.2024 Planning Commission Meeting

	Item 2.	Interim Use Permit for a Seasonal Fireworks Sales Tent at 4001 Central Avenue
	Staff Report Fireworks IUP
	Fireworks IUP Resolution
	Application
	Narrative
	Legal Description
	Product Storage Information
	Renaissance Fireworks COI
	Tent Layout Drawing
	Tent Location Map
	Product List
	Temporary Lease Agreement
	Fireworks IUP - Public Hearing to Newspaper
	Safety Data Sheet
	Certificate of Flame Resistance

	Item 3.	Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.106 General Development Standards (M) Landscaping and Screening to include Tree Preservation and Planting Standards
	Planning Case Report - Tree Preservation
	Tree Preservation - Work Session Memo
	Draft Ordinance No. 1696
	Zoning Amendment Application
	Existing Landscaping and Screening Code
	New Hope Code
	Shakopee Code
	Maple Grove Code
	LMC
	CITYOFCOLU-95-1388209-1

	Item 4.	Zoning Ordinance Amendment to amend 9.107 Specific Development Standards (16) Day Care Centers
	Planning Case Report - Day Care Specific Development Standards
	Draft Ordinance No. 1697
	Zoning Text Amendment - Application
	Applicant Narrative
	Existing and Proposed Text
	PArks
	MN State Statute 9502.0425
	Accessible Playground Equipment - Building Official
	Big Lake - Daycare Facilities
	Minneapolis Day Care Facilities
	Minnetonka Day Care Facilities
	Roseville Day Care Facilities
	St. Paul Day Care Facilities
	Public Hearing Notice to Neighbors
	CITYOFCOLU-10-1388296-1
	Donna Conwell - 1001 41st Ave NE
	Jen Kane - 250 44th Avenue NE
	Renee Gowen - 542 Huset Parkway NE
	Steven Stromquist - 649 51st Avenue NE
	Randall Schmit - 3983 Arthur Street NE

	Item 5.	Minor Subdivision for 5085 Central Avenue NE
	Planning Case Report - Minor Subdivision
	Draft Resolution_2024-036
	Minor Subdivision Application
	Project narrative
	Existing Conditions
	39770 - Certificate of Survey_Proposed Lot Split
	664049.0-1 (003)
	Completed Development Staff Review - Fire
	COMPLE~1
	CITYOFCOLU-98-1388218-1
	Public Hearing Notice to Neighbors

	Item 6.	Site Plan Review for 5085 Central Avenue NE
	Planning Case Report - Site Plan Review
	Draft Resolution_2024-037
	Site Plan Application (Under 1 acre)_240326
	Project narrative
	Existing Conditions
	39770 - Certificate of Survey_Proposed Lot Split
	2024-0401_Chase Bank_Columbia Heights, MN_Civil & Landscape Plans
	664049.0-1 (003)
	24023 Columbia Heights_Architectural Elevations_Color
	24023 Columbia Heights_Floor Plan_Color
	Lighting Plan And Spec Sheets
	CITYOFCOLU-98-1388218-1
	Public Hearing Notice to Neighbors

	Bottom



